
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431 THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN MEETING IN
THE SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY
PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY
MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260,
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, AUGUST 7, 2012 - 10 A.M.
           

1 Call to Order - Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation  
 

2 PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A Public Hearing-Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No.
12-08-01, which approves Gila County Planning and Zoning Case No.
CUP-12-02, an application submitted by Stephanie Marr requesting use of
Gila County Assessor's tax parcel numbers 205-21-041 through -046 as a
swap meet on Fridays and Saturdays from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  
(Robert Gould)

 

B Public Hearing-Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No.
12-08-02, which approves Gila County Planning and Zoning Case No.
CUP-12-01, an application submitted by David Stoghill, agent for owner,
Donald Garvin, requesting to operate a vehicle dismantling and metal
recycling business on Gila County Assessor's tax parcel number
304-32-003A.  
(Robert Gould)

 

3 REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation No. 12-06
proclaiming August 1-31, 2012, as Child Support Awareness Month in Gila
County.  
(Jeff Dalton)

 

B (Motion to adjourn as the Board of Supervisors and convene as the
Gila County Library District Board of Directors.)
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Library Service Agreements
between the Gila County Library District and  the following libraries to
cooperate in the provision of library services to the citizens of the District
for the period July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013: Hayden Public Library -
match up to $52,100; Isabelle Hunt Memorial Library - fund $104,750;
Miami Memorial Library - match up to $43,600; Payson Public Library -
match up to $229,230; Tonto Basin Public Library - fund $60,950; and
Young Public Library - fund $57,670. 
(John Nelson) 
(Motion to adjourn as the Library district Board of Directors and
reconvene as the Board of Supervisors.)

 

C Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental

  

  



C Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental
Agreement (Contract No. A.G. P001-2012-001854) between the Arizona
Department of Public Safety and the Gila County Sheriff's Office in the
amount of $25,000 for the period of July 1, 2012, to December 31, 2012, in
order to provide overtime pay for Sheriff's Office deputies/officers under
the Domestic Cannabis Eradication/Suppression Program.  (Johnny
Sanchez)

 

D Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Invitation
for Bids No. 032712-1 for the Russell Road Reconstruction Project.  
(Joseph Heatherly)

 

E Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the quarterly posting of
a public notice of on-line auction of surplus materials in the Arizona Silver
Belt newspaper per A.R.S. §11-251[9].  (Joseph Heatherly)

 

4 CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  
 

A Approval of an Annual Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification
Report between the Gila County Sheriff's Office, U.S. Department of
Justice, and U.S. Department of Treasury to participate in the federal
equitable sharing program for fiscal year 2011-2012, all of which pertains
to the use of federally forfeited cash, property, proceeds and any interest
earned thereon.

 

B Approval of an Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Drug, Gang and
Violent Crime Control Grant Agreement (FY 2013 Grant Cycle 26 Award -
ACJC Grant No. DC-13-036) awarded to the Gila County Sheriff's Office to
provide continued funding for the Gila County Drug, Gang and Violent
Crime Task Force in the amount of $344,288  ($181,784 in federal funds,
$93,646 in state funds and $68,858 in matching funds from the Sheriff's
Office Specialized Funds) for the period July 1, 2012, through June 30,
2013.

 

C Approval of Amendment No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement
(Contract No. DE101056001) between the Arizona Department of Economic
Security and Gila County pursuant to Paragraph 33.3 Termination, Section
3.3.1 at the Contractor's request and mutually agreed upon by both
parties, the contract is terminated effective July 1, 2012.

 

D Approval of Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. A11PC00100 between the
Bureau of Indian Affairs and Gila County, on behalf of the Gila County
Juvenile Detention Center, decreasing the total contract amount by
$17,000 for a grand total contract amount of $83,400 for payment coverage
of continuing detention services.

 

E Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Intergovernmental Agreement

  

  



E Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Intergovernmental Agreement
(Contract No. HG060003) between the Arizona Department of Health
Services and the Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services in
the amount of $135,000 to extend tobacco free services from July 1, 2012,
through June 30, 2013.

 

F Approval of a Weatherization Low Income Assistance Agreement (OEP
Contract No. EW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2) between the State of Arizona,
Governor's Office of Energy Policy, and the Gila County Division of
Community Services, Housing Services, to continue to provide
weatherization services to eligible citizens residing in Gila County, using
the remaining unspent Department of Energy funds assigned to the Gila
County Weatherization Program from Fiscal Year 2012; amount to be
determined and contract is effective upon signature by both parties
through June 30, 2013.

 

G Approval of Amendment No. 5 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract
No. DE111073001) between the Arizona Department of Economic Security
and Gila County Division of Community Services, Housing Services,
requiring Contractors and subcontractor staff who are required or allowed
to provide services directly to juveniles or vulnerable adults to possess a
fingerprint clearance card that meets Level One requirements effective on
the date of last signature through June 30, 2013.

 

H Approval of Intergovernmental Agreements for Election Services between
Gila County and the Pine Creek Canyon Domestic Water
Improvement District and between Gila County and the Rim Trail Domestic
Water Improvement District to provide election services.

 

I Adoption of an Order canceling precinct elections and appointing the
precinct committeemen shown on Attachment A attached to Order who
have filed nomination petitions or nominating papers for precinct
committeeman of their party in the precinct shown.

 

J Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement for Election Services between
Gila County and the Whispering Pines Domestic Water Improvement
District.

 

K Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement for Election Services between
Gila County and the Gila County School Superintendent.

 

L Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement for Election Services between
Gila County and the Pine-Strawberry Water Improvement District.

 

M Acknowledgment of the Beaver Valley Fire District Governing Board's
appointment of Ms. Pat Walker to fill the board vacancy created by the
passing of member Joyce Lynch.  Ms. Pat Walker will complete the term
that expires November 30, 2014.

 

  

  



N Acknowledgment of the resignation of Mr. Robert O'Brien from the Northern
Gila County Sanitary District Governing Board and the appointment of Mr.
Bill Easton to complete the term of Mr. O'Brien, which expires November
30, 2014.

 

O Acknowledgment of the resignation of Mr. Jerry Nicholas from the Beaver
Valley Domestic Water Improvement District and the appointment of Mr.
Scott Smith to complete the term of Mr. Nicholas which expires November
30, 2012.

 

P Approval of the appointment of Judge Charles Adornetto as Justice of the
Peace Pro Tempore of the Globe and Payson Regional Justice Courts for a
period of five months from August 1, 2012, through December 31, 2012.

 

Q Approval to accept the updated and corrected membership list for the Gila
County Community Action Program Advisory Board.

 

R Approval of a request by the Payson Rodeo Committee, a non-profit
organization, for the use of the Payson Court Complex grounds for a Chili
Cook Off on September 15, 2012, from 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

 

S Approval of the June 2012 monthly activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Constable.

 

T Approval of the fiscal year 2011-2012 annual activity report submitted by
the Payson Regional Constable.

 

U Approval of the June 2012 monthly activity report submitted by the Globe
Regional Justice Court.

 

V Approval of the June 2012 monthly activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Justice of the Peace. 

 

W Approval of the June 2012 monthly activity report submitted by the
Recorder's Office.

 

X Approval of the June 26, 2012, BOS meeting minutes.
 

Y Approval of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of July 3, 2012,
July 10, 2012, July 17, 2012, July 24, 2012 and July 31, 2012.

 

Z Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved by
the County Manager for the weeks of June 30, 2012, to July 6, 2012, July
7, 2012, to July 13, 2012, and July 14, 2012 to July 20, 2012.

 

AA Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of July 24,
2012, July 31, 2012, and August 7, 2012. 

 

 

5 CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public benefit to  

  

  



5 CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public benefit to
allow individuals to address issue(s) within the Board’s jurisdiction.
Board members may not discuss items that are not specifically identified
on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute
§38-431.01(G), action taken as a result of public comment will be limited
to directing staff to study the matter, responding to criticism, or
scheduling the matter for further discussion and decision at a future date.

 

 

6 At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(K),
members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief Administrator may
present a brief summary of current events. No action may be taken on
issues presented.

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928) 425-3231 AS EARLY AS
POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL 7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY
SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO (928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING LEGAL ADVICE FROM
THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE MEETING

  

  



   

ARF-1327     Public Hearing      2- A             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Robert Gould, Community
Development Division Director

Submitted By: Beverly Valenzuela, Executive
Administrative Assistant, Community
Development Division

Department: Community Development Division Division: Community Development Administration

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Resolution No. 12-08-01 Regarding P&Z Dept Case No. CUP-12-02--Stephanie Marr

Background Information
This area is an island within the City of Globe on East Ash Street and the City is opposed to the project (see
attached letter from the City of Globe.) The applicant proposed to operate a swap meet on Fridays and
Saturdays from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. year round. The parcels being proposed for the swap meet include five
parcels with a total of 1.7 acres (+-.) The area has historically been used by the current owner for the display of
trailers for sale.

Evaluation
Current zoning regulations do not list swap meets or flea markets as permissible uses within any commercial
district.  In fact it is completely silent on this type of use.  Due to this reason, it has been requested by the
Community Development Division Director that the applicant obtain a Conditional Use Permit to establish this
use based on the following section from current zoning regulations.  

Gila County Zoning Ordinance - Section 103.11 Conditional Uses and Conditional Use Permits:  A. General: As
defined in Section 102, Conditional Uses are those uses which, although not specifically permitted in a given
zoning district, would become harmonious or compatible with neighboring uses through the application and
maintenance of qualifying conditions.  Conditional Use Permits shall be issued setting forth all qualifying
conditions subject to the procedures for rezoning found in Section 105 Amendment Procedures.

Gila County Zoning Ordinance - Section 104.2.H.-Commericial Two District: 4.a. reads "Indoor or outdoor sales
or rental of new and used autos, trucks, boats, mobile homes, trailers, agricultural implements, lumber, lawn
furniture, nursery stock and home gardening supplies and equipment; provided that no sales, rentals or
displays are performed in the required front setback."  
 
Staff has received two letters of opposition for this application.

Conclusion
Efforts need to be made to ensure this this area is under the jurisdiction of the Design Review Guidelines; while
there are no permanent structures, there are guidelines for the site that will apply.  The intent in developing the
Design Review Guidelines was to ensure that development along this corridor enhanced the overall character of
our main commerical activity center.

Recommendation
The Planning and Zoning Commission has unanimously recommended approval.

Suggested Motion
Public Hearing-Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 12-08-01, which approves Gila County
Planning and Zoning Case No. CUP-12-02, an application submitted by Stephanie Marr requesting use of Gila
County Assessor's tax parcel numbers 205-21-041 through -046 as a swap meet on Fridays and Saturdays
from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  
(Robert Gould)

Attachments
Public Hearing Notice
Staff Report
Resolution and Exhibit
Assessor's Parcel Map
Gerhardt opposition letter



City of Globe opposition letter



LEGAL NOTICE
GILA COUNTY

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
AND

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Gila County Planning & Zoning Commission
will hold a public hearing on July 19, 2012, and the Board of Supervisors will 
hold a public hearing on August 7, 2012 concerning application CUP-12-02, filed by 
Stephanie Marr/property owner is John Angal.  CUP-12-02 is a request to use Gila 
County Tax Assessor’s Parcels 205-21-041, 042, 043, 044, 045 (zoned C2) and 046
(zoned C1) as a swap meet on Fridays and Saturdays from 8:00 am to 5:00 pm;
property address is known as 1980 E. Ash Street, Globe, AZ.

The P & Z Commission hearing will be held at 10:00 a.m. in the Public Works
Conference Room located at 745 N Rose Mofford Way, Globe, Arizona; video 
conferencing will be available in Payson at the Board of Supervisors Conference 
Room located at 610 E Highway 260. The Board of Supervisors hearing will be held 
at 10:00 a.m. in the Board of Supervisors Hearing Room, 1400 E. Ash Street, Globe, 
Arizona and will also be available by video conference from the Payson Conference 
Room.

The Board of Supervisors hearing date will be continued if the Planning & Zoning 
Commission has not given a recommendation. Citizens may file a statement in writing 
for or against the Conditional Use Permit request or appear and be heard at the 
dates set forth. Citizens can mail their statements to the addresses listed below.

Information regarding this application will be available for review in the Gila County 
Community Development Division offices, located at 745 N Rose Mofford Way in 
Globe, Arizona and at 608 E. Highway 260 in Payson, Arizona. Citizens may also call 
the offices at 928-402-8513 (Globe) or at 928-474-9276 (Payson), during normal 
business hours. 

Planning and Zoning 

By:   Robert A. Gould, Community Development Director

Publications:  Arizona Silver Belt One Publication:  July 3, 2012
                         Payson Roundup One Publication: July 3, 2012



Board of Supervisors

Staff Report
To the

Board of Supervisors

Meeting Date-August 7, 2012

Conditional Use Permit Application
CUP-12-02

1



2

I APPLICATION

Applicant Name Stephanie Marr
Applicant Address 4750 Gold Strike Road
Site Address 1980 East Ash, Globe, AZ
APN Number 205-21-041 thru 046
Current Zoning Parcels 41 thru 46 are zoned C2 and Parcel 46 is zoned C1
Current Comprehensive 
Plan Designation

Community Commercial: 

The Community Commercial category denotes the areas of the 
county where facilities that provide community and regional 
scale commercial services are preferred. Community Commercial
development  typically includes a grocery store and may contain 
numerous other support commercial services. Community 
Commercial facilities are typically located at the intersections of 
major roadways that carry regional and community-wide traffic. 
Community Commercial facilities shall be designed to be 
compatible with adjacent residential and nonresidential 
development and shall provide a common architectural theme 
for the center.

Application Number CUP-12-02

II Purpose & Description

The applicant proposes to operate the Swap Meet on Fridays and Saturdays from the hours of 
8:00 AM to 5:00 PM year round. The parcels being proposed for the Swap Meet include five 
parcels with a total of 1.7 acres.  The area is a flat level area with no significant vegetation. The 
area has historically been used by the current owner for the display of trailers for sale.

III Zoning Regulations

Our current zoning regulations do not list Swap Meets or Flea Markets as permissible 
uses within any commercial district. In fact it is completely silent on this type of use. Due 
to this I have requested the applicant to obtain a Condition Use Permit to establish this 
use based on the following section from our current zoning regulations.

A. GENERAL:

As defined in Section 102, Conditional Uses are those uses which, although not 
specifically permitted in a given zoning district, would become harmonious or 
compatible with neighboring uses through the application and maintenance of 
qualifying conditions. Conditional Use Permits shall be issued setting forth all qualifying 
conditions subject to the procedures for rezoning found in Section 105 Amendment 
Procedures.



Under the C2 zoning district
with a use permit. A use permit is an administrative tool allowing the Director to decide the 
appropriateness of the proposed use in the district. In this section it list indoor and out
sales or rental of various items. Staff opinion is that this list is too 
meet and therefore have chosen to utilize the Conditional Use Permit process. The following 
was extracted from our current Zoning Ordinance.

Uses Subject to Use Permits:

a. Indoor or outdoor sales or rental of new and used autos, trucks, boats, mobile homes, 
trailers, agricultural implements, lumber, lawn furniture, nursery stock and home 
gardening supplies and equipment; provided that no sales, rentals 
performed in the required front setback.

Another issue regarding zoning is related to a request by the property owner to recognize this 
use as a continuing nonconforming use as the property has historically been utilized for outdoor 
sales and display of trailers. After considering this request it is staff opinion that this use is very 
different from the use of selling trailers and would not constitute a continuation of a similar use 
and grandfathering rights should not apply to the establi

IV Primary issue or issues to consider

Parking:

There is an area fifty-two feet wide between the chain linked fence and the actual State 
Highway 60/70 pavement section. Just about all this area belongs to ADOT right of way. It is
unpaved. This would be ample room for one row of parking with room to provide forward 
movement of the vehicle to both ingress and egress the property. There would be no need to 
back out onto the State Highway.
provide ingress and egress to the parking area.

Under the C2 zoning district in the zoning ordinance there is a section for uses being established 
with a use permit. A use permit is an administrative tool allowing the Director to decide the 
appropriateness of the proposed use in the district. In this section it list indoor and out
sales or rental of various items. Staff opinion is that this list is too general to apply to a swap 
meet and therefore have chosen to utilize the Conditional Use Permit process. The following 
was extracted from our current Zoning Ordinance.

ect to Use Permits:

Indoor or outdoor sales or rental of new and used autos, trucks, boats, mobile homes, 
trailers, agricultural implements, lumber, lawn furniture, nursery stock and home 
gardening supplies and equipment; provided that no sales, rentals or displays are 
performed in the required front setback.

issue regarding zoning is related to a request by the property owner to recognize this 
use as a continuing nonconforming use as the property has historically been utilized for outdoor 

trailers. After considering this request it is staff opinion that this use is very 
different from the use of selling trailers and would not constitute a continuation of a similar use 
and grandfathering rights should not apply to the establishment of a Swap Meet.

Primary issue or issues to consider

two feet wide between the chain linked fence and the actual State 
Highway 60/70 pavement section. Just about all this area belongs to ADOT right of way. It is

This would be ample room for one row of parking with room to provide forward 
movement of the vehicle to both ingress and egress the property. There would be no need to 
back out onto the State Highway. There are two curb cuts along State Highway 6
provide ingress and egress to the parking area.

Parking Area

3

in the zoning ordinance there is a section for uses being established 
with a use permit. A use permit is an administrative tool allowing the Director to decide the 
appropriateness of the proposed use in the district. In this section it list indoor and outdoor 

to apply to a swap 
meet and therefore have chosen to utilize the Conditional Use Permit process. The following 

Indoor or outdoor sales or rental of new and used autos, trucks, boats, mobile homes, 
trailers, agricultural implements, lumber, lawn furniture, nursery stock and home 

or displays are 

issue regarding zoning is related to a request by the property owner to recognize this 
use as a continuing nonconforming use as the property has historically been utilized for outdoor 

trailers. After considering this request it is staff opinion that this use is very 
different from the use of selling trailers and would not constitute a continuation of a similar use 

shment of a Swap Meet.

two feet wide between the chain linked fence and the actual State 
Highway 60/70 pavement section. Just about all this area belongs to ADOT right of way. It is

This would be ample room for one row of parking with room to provide forward 
movement of the vehicle to both ingress and egress the property. There would be no need to 

There are two curb cuts along State Highway 60/70 that 



Design Review Regulations:

This project is within the area designated for the Design Review Guidelines. While no structures 
are proposed the area of the Guidelines designated for 
guidelines are listed in Attachment “A” of this report

Waste Disposal:

The applicant proposes to provide two Port

Solid Waste Disposal:

There is no proposal for dealing 
that all vendors pack out their waste materials. This does not work well for the customers on the 
site therefore some arrangements will need to be required for waste containers and 
maintenance of these containers.

Adjoining Properties:

1. North: Hwy 60 and Circle K

2. South: Skyline Drive and single family residential development
Zoning designation R1

3. East: Undeveloped and 

4. West: C2 zoned property
the Gila County

Design Review Regulations:

This project is within the area designated for the Design Review Guidelines. While no structures 
are proposed the area of the Guidelines designated for site planning would apply. The applicable 
guidelines are listed in Attachment “A” of this report

The applicant proposes to provide two Port-a-potties on the site.

Port-a-Potty

There is no proposal for dealing with solid waste. The property owner has included in the rules 
that all vendors pack out their waste materials. This does not work well for the customers on the 
site therefore some arrangements will need to be required for waste containers and 

of these containers.

Hwy 60 and Circle K and UPS business (Within City of Globe)

Skyline Drive and single family residential development  
Zoning designation R1-D8 (Within the City of Globe)

Undeveloped and Church Property within the City of Globe

C2 zoned property (Trailer Sales & Pawn Shop) within unincorporated area
the Gila County

4

This project is within the area designated for the Design Review Guidelines. While no structures 
site planning would apply. The applicable 

with solid waste. The property owner has included in the rules 
that all vendors pack out their waste materials. This does not work well for the customers on the 
site therefore some arrangements will need to be required for waste containers and 

within unincorporated area of 



Buffering:

There is a significant cliff face to south that rises approximately 
Drive on the other side and residential development across the street. There is no 
buffering provided other than the cliff face.
across the top. There is a requirement that the use provide an opaque fence in our 
current zoning regulations

Landscaping:

No landscaping is proposed

Signage:

No signage plan is submitted. Below is the current signage on the property.

There is a significant cliff face to south that rises approximately 35 feet with Skyline 
other side and residential development across the street. There is no 

buffering provided other than the cliff face. The fencing is chain linked with barbed wire 
There is a requirement that the use provide an opaque fence in our 

ng regulations

Current Fencing

No landscaping is proposed

No signage plan is submitted. Below is the current signage on the property.

Current Signage

5

feet with Skyline 
other side and residential development across the street. There is no 

The fencing is chain linked with barbed wire 
There is a requirement that the use provide an opaque fence in our 



6

V Background

The SWAP Meet has historically operated on Highway 60/70 to the west of this location within 
the City of Globe. Due to a Hotel being proposed for that site the SWAP Meet was required to 
relocate to another site. Parcels 205-21-041 thru 046 have been used for outdoor sales of 
Manufactured homes and Trailers for approximately 20 years according to the applicant.

VI Analysis

Swap meets are an important part of our economy. They provide a means of income for low 
income families and usually do not have significant impacts on community commercial. It is very 
important  that vendors at a swap meet follow all tax laws that are applicable to them.

This area is an island within the City of Globe. A copy of this report will be sent to the City for 
their input.

This Swap Meet is proposed to operate Friday thru Sunday for each weekend throughout the 
year. The unpaved parking could create dust conditions for neighboring properties. All of the 
parking is within ADOT rights-of-way. The applicant has been told to request approval from 
them to utilize this area for their business.

This area is also under the jurisdiction of the Design Review Guidelines. While there are no 
permanent structures there are guidelines for the site that will apply to this project. A list of 
those guidelines is attached to this report in Attachment “A”. I’m not sure it is feasible to 
address those guidelines and still have a swap meet at this location.

There are two port-a-potties on site for use by the vendors and customers. With no permanent 
structures being utilized on the site the port-a-potties should be adequate

The fencing does not meet the regulations requiring an opaque fence and I also believe it will be 
an issue with the Design Review Board. Landscaping and signage should also be addressed by 
the Design Review Board.

Buffering could be an issue. The high embankment between this project and the residential area 
is more than sufficient for visual buffering, but we also need to be careful about lighting and 
noise issues. All lighting on this site should be shielded in accordance with our dark sky 
ordinance. Limiting activities to day time hours should mitigate noise problems as well as 
lighting.

VII Summary

Efforts need to be made to ensure this proposed use is compatible with nearby residential 
property and that it fits within the overall plan for development of properties along the Highway 
60/70 corridor. The intent in developing the Design Review Guidelines was to ensure that 
development along this corridor enhanced the overall character of our main commercial activity 
center. 



7

VIII Recommendation

The Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing on July 19th, 2012 and 
unanimously recommended approval to the Board of Supervisors.  

Staff has included two recommendations in this section one to approve and one to not approve 
this activity. 

Motion to approve:

I move to approve the proposal to establish a Swap Meet with the following conditions:

1. That the applicant must submit for approval of site planning guidelines to the Design 
Review Board.

2. That all lighting on this site must be shielded
3. That the applicant shall provide to the County approval of use of parking area from 

ADOT.
4. The applicant shall provide trash receptacles on site for use by both vendors and 

customers and maintain those receptacles.
5. The applicant shall ensure that all vendors are properly registered with ADOR.

I move to deny the CUP 12 02 application due to the fact that it is not compatible with the intent 
and purpose of our Design Review Program to help beautify the Highway 60/70 Corridor.

IX Attachments

Attachment “A” Applicable Design Review Guidelines
Attachment “B” Area Map



8

Attachment “A”
Applicable Design Review Guidelines

1. Pedestrian and Vehicular Circulation

a. Circulation patterns should be obvious and simple. All likely pedestrian routes should be
considered in the design phase to eliminate “short cuts” that damage landscaped areas.

b. Circulation systems should limit conflicts between vehicular, bicycle and pedestrian
Traffic. 

c. Where pedestrian routes cross vehicular traffic paths; a change in grade; materials;
textures and/or colors should be provided.

d. Pedestrian routes/paths should be provided to the front entrance of a building from the
public right of way.

e. Bicycle parking facilities may be substituted for automobile parking spaces required at a
ratio of five (5) bicycle spaces for one required vehicle parking space. A maximum of 5%
of the total required parking spaces may be reduced from the total number of parking
spaces required under the established Parking spaces related requirements in the
government agency’s standards. Bicycle parking facilities should include provisions for
locking of the bicycle in a secure rack.

2. Parking Facilities

Parking should not be positioned between the public sidewalk and the front of the building,
where feasible. Parking at the side of the property must be landscaped and screened

3. Driveways

a. Shared or common driveways are encouraged.
b. There should be a maximum of one driveway per lot or parcel except where the lot has

more than one hundred (100) feet of frontage on the Highway Corridor. Driveways
should be separated by a minimum of 100 feet. Approval of the Arizona Department of
Transportation must be obtained in each case. The State’s jurisdiction and decision shall
always prevail if different than the recommendation of the Design Review Committee.

4. Signage

a. No roof sign should be permitted except where significant negative grade change exists
from the roadway to the building site.

b. Portable freestanding signs must not exceed three (3) feet in height, six (6) square feet



9

c. On each face, and must not obstruct pedestrian ways or cause line of sight problems.
Permanent freestanding signs should not exceed thirty‐two (32) square feet on each
face and must be low profile.

d. Marquee signs must not be installed in such a manner that the illumination from the
sign causes distraction or hindrance to vehicles on the corridor nor occupants of nearby
properties.

e. Colors should be used from the approved color board.
f. Signs must be properly maintained.
g. Signs should be architecturally integrated with their surroundings in terms of size,

shape, color, texture and lighting.
h. Signs should not be in visual competition with each other.
i. In the event that these signage guidelines are found to be in conflict with the adopted

sign code provisions of the government agency with jurisdiction, the established
governmental sign code requirements shall have precedence.

5. Lighting

a. Colored lighting is allowed but should not:

i. spill over onto adjacent properties,
ii. be the primary lighting theme,
iii. contain moving or streaming lights or components

b. Lighting fixtures should be historically appropriate to the area, close in appearance to
other installed historic lighting within the government jurisdiction.

6. Utility Equipment

a. Mechanical systems equipment should be screened and sound attenuated, using
approved building materials and positioned to maintain minimum intrusion on the
public view.

b. Utility areas and equipment, such as trash receptacles, storage areas, service yards,
loading/unloading areas should be screened from public view with approved building
materials.

c. Permanently installed utility standards and communication equipment should blend
into the surrounding environment. The use of earth colors and/or the installation of
faux foliage, and/or the installation of equipment constructed to replicate a living plant,
such as a palm tree, cactus, or other tree as appropriate to blend the equipment into
the environment should be considered

7. Landscaping

a. Landscaping should soften the visual appearance of the site, and provide a pedestrian
friendly environment.

b. Any planting within the rights of way should not create a line of sight nuisance, or be a
nuisance to pedestrian and vehicular traffic in any way.

c. All undeveloped areas, within public view, should be landscaped or left with
undisturbed natural vegetation



10

i. Deciduous or evergreen shrubs and trees can be used.
ii. Planter boxes are encouraged for flowers.

8. Hardscape

a. Colors, textures and materials selected for walkways, patios, and other ground plane
enhancements must support the architectural character of the area. 

b. Materials should not impede accessibility to those who are physically challenged
c. The texture and color of hardscape should clearly differentiate between driveways,

parking facilities, and those areas used by bicyclists or pedestrians.
d. Stone, brick, colored concrete, pavers, covered boardwalks, and concrete finishes are

acceptable.
e. Natural materials should be used to the maximum extent; Synthetic materials may be

considered.

9. Fences and Walls

When adding fences and walls, the building materials should comply with the approved
building materials in this guideline

10. Overhead Protection Structures

a. Overhead protection structures should be installed on the façade of the ground floor
above any installed or planned pedestrian pathways.

b. A minimum of seven (7) foot vertical clearance is required for overhead structures
above potential pedestrian pathways.



                                                                  RESOLUTION NO. 12-08-01

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING GILA COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

CASE NO. CUP-12-02, A REQUEST BY STEPHANIE MARR FOR A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ON 
GILA COUNTY ASSESSOR’S TAX PARCELS NO. 205-21-041, 042, 043, 044, 045 & 046

LOCATED AT 1980 E. ASH STREET IN GLOBE, AZ.

WHEREAS, the Gila County Planning and Zoning Commission, at a duly noticed public hearing held on July 
19, 2012, has recommended to the Board of Supervisors of Gila County, Arizona, that a Conditional Use 
Permit request, set forth in the attached Exhibit “A”, be adopted as provided in Section 11-829, Arizona 
Revised Statutes; and

WHEREAS, after holding a public hearing as provided by law, the Board of Supervisors of Gila County, 
Arizona, is of the opinion that the adoption of such recommendation would be in the best interest of Gila 
County.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors, at a regularly scheduled and 
duly noticed public hearing did pass and adopt Gila County Planning and Zoning Department Case No. 
CUP-12-02, as set forth in the attached Exhibit “A” and that said zoning request become effective 
immediately.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 7th day of August 2012, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona.

Attest: GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

_____________________________ _________________________________
Marian Sheppard Tommie C. Martin, Chairman
Chief Deputy Clerk 

Approved as to form:

____________________________
Bryan Chambers
Chief Deputy County Attorney



EXHIBIT “A” to Resolution No. 12-08-01
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT

PLANNING AND ZONING CASE NO. CUP-12-02
for Stephanie Marr

1980 East Ash St, Globe, AZ.
Gila County Tax Assessor’s Parcel 205-21-041 thru 046

Conditional Use Permit to allow property to be used as a Swap Meet on Fridays and Saturdays from
the hours of 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM year round.  The parcels include five parcels with at total of 1.7 acres (+-) 
and Gila County Tax Assessor’s Parcels 205-21-041 thru 45 (zoned C2) and 205-21-046 (zoned C1).  
  
The following conditions shall apply; violation of any of these conditions may constitute the conditional 
use permit to be revoked:

1. The applicant must submit for approval of site planning guidelines to the Design Review Board

2. All lighting on this site must be shielded

3. The applicant shall provide to the County approval of use of parking are from ADOT

4. Applicant shall provide trash receptacles on site for use by both vendors and customers and 
maintain those receptacles.

5. Applicant shall ensure that all vendors are properly registered with ADOR.









   

ARF-1326     Public Hearing      2- B             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Robert Gould, Community
Development Division Director

Submitted By: Beverly Valenzuela, Executive
Administrative Assistant, Community
Development Division

Department: Community Development Division Division: Community Development Administration

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Resolution No. 12-08-02  Re: P&Z Dept Case No. CUP-12-01

Background Information
The property is located on Highway 87 in Rye and it is zoned C-3.  In the past it has been used for sales of used
items and for RV repair.  Surrounding properties are zoned C-3 and the rear of the property is adjacent to
Forest Service land.

Evaluation
The applicant is proposing to use the north portion of this property for dismantling automobiles and sales of the
parts.  The applicant is in the process of getting the required approvals from the state and/or other agencies. 
The public will come to the office and only the employees will have access to the area where the parts are
stored.  Storage will be in racks/shelves outside.

Conclusion
The proposed use of dismantling and recycling automobiles will be compatible with the surrounding uses, if the
following conditions are met:

1. Addition of any electrical, mechanical, structures, signs, etc will require permits. Building permits shall be
obtained and the applicable structures for the dismantling and storage business shall be inspected and
approved by the Building Safety Department.

2. All required county, state and/or federal licenses/permits shall be obtained and copies shall be provided to
Gila County Community Development. It is the business owner’s responsibility to research the necessary
licenses/permits that are required.

3. Outside lighting must comply with the Gila County Outdoor Lighting Ordinance, and must be hooded or
shielded so as to deflect light away from the right-of-way.

4. Opaque fencing approved by staff shall be installed to screen the business from Highway 87.

5. Violations of any of the previous conditions shall be grounds for suspension or revocation of this Conditional
Use Permit.

6. This Conditional Use Permit will be reviewed for compliance every 5 years. If there are no violations, it will be
automatically renewed.

Recommendation
The Planning and Zoning Commision has recommended approval with the conditions listed.

Suggested Motion
Public Hearing-Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 12-08-02, which approves Gila County
Planning and Zoning Case No. CUP-12-01, an application submitted by David Stoghill, agent for owner, Donald
Garvin, requesting to operate a vehicle dismantling and metal recycling business on Gila County Assessor's tax
parcel number 304-32-003A.  
(Robert Gould)

Attachments
Public Hearing Notice
Staff Report
Resolution No. 12-08-02 and Exhibit

















 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO.  12-08-02  

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY, 

ARIZONA, APPROVING GILA COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING 

DEPARTMENT CASE NO. CUP-12-01, A REQUEST BY DAVID STODGHILL 

FOR A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ON GILA COUNTY ASSESSOR’S TAX 

PARCEL NO. 304-32-003A LOCATED AT 16317 N. HIGHWAY 87 IN RYE, 

ARIZONA.    
 

 
WHEREAS, the Gila County Planning and Zoning Commission, at a duly noticed public hearing held on 

June 21, 2012, has recommended to the Board of Supervisors of Gila County, Arizona, that a Conditional 

Use Permit request, set forth in the attached Exhibit “A”, be adopted as provided in Section 11-829, 

Arizona Revised Statutes; and 

 

WHEREAS, after holding a public hearing as provided by law, the Board of Supervisors of Gila County, 

Arizona, is of the opinion that the adoption of such recommendation would be in the best interest of Gila 

County; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors, at a regularly 

scheduled and duly noticed public hearing did pass and adopt Gila County Planning and Zoning 

Department Case No. CUP-12-01, as set forth in the attached Exhibit “A” and that said zoning request 

become effective September 6, 2012. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 7
th 

day of  August 2012, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 

 

Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

  

 

_______________________________ ________________________________________ 

Marian Sheppard    Tommie C. Martin, Chairman 

Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Bryan Chambers 

Chief Deputy County Attorney 

 



EXHIBIT “A” to Resolution No. 12-08-02 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

PLANNING AND ZONING CASE NO. CUP-12-01 FOR 

David Stodghill 

16317 N. Highway 87, Rye, AZ 

 Gila County Assessor’s Tax Parcel Numbers 304-32-003A  

 

 

The Gila County Board of Supervisors has approved a Conditional Use Permit to operate a vehicle 

dismantling and metal recycling business with the following conditions: 

 

1.  Addition of any electrical, mechanical, structures, signs, etc will require permits.  

Building permits shall be obtained and the applicable structures for the dismantling 

and storage business shall be inspected and approved by the Building Safety 

Department. 

 

2. All required county, state and/or federal licenses/permits shall be obtained and copies 

shall be provided to Gila County Community Development.  It is the business 

owner’s responsibility to research what licenses/permits are required. 

 

 

3. Outside lighting must comply with the Gila County Outdoor Lighting Ordinance, and 

must be hooded or shielded so as to deflect light away from the right-of-way. 

 

4. Opaque fencing approved by staff shall be installed to screen the business from 

Highway 87. 

 

 

5. Violations of any of the previous conditions shall be grounds for suspension or 

revocation of this Conditional Use Permit. 

 

6. This Conditional Use Permit will be reviewed for compliance every 5 years.  If there 

are no violations, it will be automatically renewed. 

 



   

ARF-1390     Regular Agenda Item      3- A             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Daisy Flores, County
Attorney

Submitted By: Liz Fetterman, Victim Witness
Advocate, County Attorney

Department: County Attorney

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Proclamation 12-06 Proclaiming August 1-31, 2012, As Child Support
Awareness Month in Gila County

Background Information
Since 1995, the United States has been honoring Child Support Awareness Month during
the month of August.  Former President Bill Clinton recognized this month on August 5,
1995, in his official proclamation stating that, "Providing for our children is one of
humanity's worthiest and most fundamental endeavors.  Children are the best part of
ourselves - the sum of our past and the promise of our future, the guarantee that our lives
and values and dreams will flourish long after we are gone." 

Evaluation
Child support services are available to any parent, guardian, or caretaker of a child for
whom child support is needed, regardless of income.  Upon applying for child support
services, Gila County Child Support Enforcement will assist them in locating noncustodial
parents; establishing legal paternity for children born to unmarried parents; obtaining a
support order for financial support and medical insurance coverage for the child; collecting
child support payments; and providing enforcement services when noncustodial parents
fail to pay their child support.

Child Support helps families stay self-sufficient so that they do not rely on public
assistance programs.  Studies have shown that children who received financial support
from both parents tend to get better grades in school and also tend to have fewer
behavioral problems throughout their childhood, teen years and adult lives.  Child Support
Awareness Month is a time to salute parents who work hard to ensure their children grow
up in stable homes and look forward to a bright future. 

Conclusion
The Gila County Attorney's Office, Child Support Division, recognizes the importance of
designating a time devoted to increase the general public's awareness and support of
agencies providing services to child support clients.  By adopting  Proclamation No.
12-06 , the Child Support Division of Gila County hopes to shed light on the local,
community ,and state support system that provides economic security to families and
children. The Department of Economic Security Division of Child Support Enforcement, the
Office of the Attorney General, county attorneys, state and local clerks of court, and child
support enforcement agencies are just some of the state support systems that are being
recognized through the proclamation.

Recommendation
It is recommended that Gila County Board of Supervisors issue and adopt



It is recommended that Gila County Board of Supervisors issue and adopt
Proclamation No. 12-06 proclaiming August 1-31, 2012, as Child Support Awareness
Month.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation No. 12-06 proclaiming August 1-31,
2012, as Child Support Awareness Month in Gila County.  
(Jeff Dalton)

Attachments
2012 Child Support Awareness Proclamation No. 12-06
Governor's Proclamation



 

 
 

PROCLAMATION NO. 12-06 

 

A PROCLAMATION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY, 

ARIZONA, PROCLAIMING AUGUST 1-31, 2012, AS CHILD SUPPORT AWARENESS 

MONTH IN GILA COUNTY. 

 

WHEREAS, Janice K. Brewer, Governor of the State of Arizona has proclaimed August 1-31, 2012 as CHILD 

SUPPORT AWARENESS MONTH; and 

 

WHEREAS, children need responsible parents who are engaged at every stage of their child’s development; and 

 

WHEREAS, to be engaged, both parents must be involved in providing for a child’s emotional and financial 

needs, and encourage their interests; and 

 

WHEREAS, Arizona’s Centennial reminds us that the State of Arizona was built on family values, including 

parent engagement; and 

 

WHEREAS, a parent can be actively and successfully engaged with their children regardless of marital status; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Arizona Department of Economic Security, Arizona Attorney General’s Office, Administrative 

Offices of the Court, County Attorneys, local law enforcement agencies, employers, workforce programs, 

parenting programs, and other stakeholders are dedicated to supporting the efforts of Arizona’s parents to 

encourage engagement with their children; and 

 

WHEREAS, both parent and child benefit when both parents are engaged at every stage. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that, we, the members of the Gila County Board of Supervisors do 

hereby proclaim August 1-31, 2012, as Child Support Awareness Month in Gila County, and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Gila County reaffirms its commitment to support the Gila County Child 

Support Program during the month of August 2012 and throughout the year. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 7
th 

day of August 2012. 

 

ATTEST:    GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 

_____________________  _________________________________________ 

Marian Sheppard   Tommie C. Martin, Chairman 

Chief Deputy Clerk 

     _________________________________________ 

     Shirley L. Dawson, Vice-Chairman 

 

     _________________________________________ 

     Michael A. Pastor, Member 





   

ARF-1398     Regular Agenda Item      3- B             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County
Manager/Librarian

Submitted By: Mary Stemm, Library Assistant Senior,
Asst County Manager/Library District

Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Library District
Fiscal Year: 2013 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2012-June 30, 2013 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Library Service Agreements with Hayden, Isabelle Hunt (Pine), Miami, Payson, Tonto Basin and Young Libraries.

Background Information
The Gila County Library District contracts yearly with the eight affiliate libraries to cooperate in the provision of
library services to the citizens of the District.  These Library Service Agreements serve as contracts for
facilitating funding and resource sharing.  At this time six of the eight agreements have been signed and
returned.

Evaluation
The funding amounts from the Library District to the public libraries have not changed from last year.  Funding
varies by type and size of entity.  The Library District matches up to an upper limit for city, town and tribal
libraries.  Funding without a match requirement is provided to the  community libraries that are not in
incorporated areas.  Library District funding for the libraries is as follows;  Hayden Public Library - match up to
$52,100; Isabelle Hunt Memorial Library - fund $104,750; Miami Memorial Library - match up to
$43,600; Payson Public Library - match up to $229,230; Tonto Basin Public Library - fund $60,950; and Young
Public Library - fund $57,670.  The Library District distributes these amounts in two installments, in November
2012 and May 2013.

Conclusion
Approval of the Library Service Agreements facilitates funding and resource sharing with the affiliate libraries.

Recommendation
The  Gila County District Librarian recommends the approval of the Library Service Agreements between the
Gila County Library District and Hayden Public Library, Isabelle Hunt Memorial Library (Pine), Miami Memorial
Library, Payson Public Library, Tonto Basin Public Library and Young Public Library for fiscal year 2012-2013.

Suggested Motion
(Motion to adjourn as the Board of Supervisors and convene as the Gila County Library District Board of
Directors.) Information/Discussion/Action to approve Library Service Agreements between the Gila County
Library District and  the following libraries to cooperate in the provision of library services to the citizens of the
District for the period July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013: Hayden Public Library - match up to $52,100;
Isabelle Hunt Memorial Library - fund $104,750; Miami Memorial Library - match up to $43,600; Payson Public
Library - match up to $229,230; Tonto Basin Public Library - fund $60,950; and Young Public Library - fund
$57,670. 
(John Nelson) 
(Motion to adjourn as the Library district Board of Directors and reconvene as the Board of Supervisors.)

Attachments
Hayden Library Service Agreement
Isabelle Hunt Memorial Library Service Agreement 
Miami Library Service Agreement
Payson Library Service Agreement
Tonto Basin Library Service Agreement
Young Public Library Service Agreement



IGA Legal Explanation
Non-IGA Legal Explanation



GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT
LIBRARY SERVICE AGREEMENT
JULY 1, 2012 TO JUNE 30, 2013

This agreement is entered into between the GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT,
hereinafter referred to as the "District," and the TOWN OF HAYDEN, hereinafter referred
to as the "Town," and shall be for a period commencing July 1,2012 to June 30, 2013.

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors has established a County Library
District, pursuant to A.R.S. 11-901 et seg. and 48-3901 et seg.; and

WHEREAS, the District and the Town recognize the need to cooperate in the provision
of library services to the citizens of the District; and

WHEREAS, the Town operates and maintains a library and it is the desire of the Town
to continue as a participating member of the District; and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to establish terms and conditions prior to distribution of
District tax levied funds to participating Towns.

NOW THEREFORE IT IS AGREED by and between the District and the Town as
follows:

1. All citizens of the District shall have full use of the library facilities and
services.

2. All library materials purchased with District funds by the Town, are the
property of the Town.

3. It is understood by both parties that officials, employees and agents of the
District remain the sole responsibility of the District. It is further understood
that the officials, employees and agents of the Town remain the sole
responsibility of the Town.

4. Each party (as "indemnitor") agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the
other party (as "indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, losses,
liability, costs or other expenses including reasonable attorney's fees
(hereinafter collectively referred to as "claims") arising out of bodily injury of
any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the extent that
such claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the indemnitee, are
caused by the act, omission, negligence, misconduct or other fault of the
indemnitor, its officers, official agents, employees or volunteers.



Library Service Agreement
2012/2013
Page 2 of5

5. The Town agrees to the following conditions:

A. The Town shall use the District funds to insure the payments of salaries,
routine maintenance and upkeep and other necessary expenses of the
Town's library, pursuant to ARS 48 - 3901 et seg. Funds will not be used
for capital improvement projects or major building repairs without prior
approval from the Board of Directors of the Gila County Library District.

B. The Town shall annually submit to the District the Arizona Public Library
Data Report as required by the State Library.

C. The Town shall support resource sharing among libraries by participating in
interlibrary loan services as a borrower and lender of library materials.

D. The Town shall comply with any reasonable conditions or restrictions
which the District or another participating library imposes with respect to
loans of books, materials, or equipment to the Town library.

E. The Town agrees to reimburse any other participating library for any losses
and/or damage to books, materials, or equipment belonging to another
participating library or the District, which occur while these items are in the
possession and control of the Town.

F. The Town's decision to participate in a countywide online system is
evidenced by the authorized signature (s) on this Agreement. The Town
agrees to utilize the online system for: cataloging, circulation, online shared
public access catalog, long-term loan of supplementary Library District
materials, if applicable, and other online functions as may be implemented.

G. The Town shall insure that the Library Manager (Librarian) and staff
understand and are proficient in all functions of the online system that they
are responsible for by providing reasonable time for staff to attend training
on the online system at the District's recommendation. Training will be
overseen by, and coordinated through the District.

H. Town library staff agrees to attend and participate in at least three of the
four quarterly countywide librarians meetings each year.

6. The District will provide the following benefits and support services to the
library:

A. Opportunity to participate in a countywide online system subject to
conditions specified in this agreement. Operation of the countywide
online system is a Library District function subject to oversight by the
Board of Directors of the Library District, who will make final decisions
regarding this system.

B. Operate the online system continuously, notifying the participating library
in advance of any scheduled shutdowns, should any be necessary for
maintenance and backup routines.



Library Service Agreement
2012/2013
Page 3 of5

C. Coordination of countywide library development.

D. Continuing education opportunities for staff and volunteers.

E. Offer regular orientation training on the online system for all new staff at
the affiliate libraries, as well as coordinate and oversee special update
training for veteran staff.

F. Professional assistance and consultation services.

7. The Town and the District acknowledge that the services performed have a
value to the District and the Town. In consideration of that value, the District
agrees:

A. To match the Town local funds for library services, up to the amount of
$52,100.00 such amount subject to annual review.

B. To distribute this amount in two installments, in November 2012 and May
2013.

8. This agreement may be renewed from year to year by mutual agreement of the
parties involved.

9. Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance
The City hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this

Contract comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to City's
employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214
(A) (together the "State and Federal Immigration Laws"). City shall further
ensure that each subcontractor who performs any work for City under this
contract likewise complies with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.

The District shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records
of City and any subcontractor in order to verify such party's compliance with
the State and Federal Immigration Laws.

Any breach of City's or any subcontractor's warranty of compliance with
the State and Federal Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this
section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Contract subjecting City
to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this Contract. If
the breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated
as a result, City shall be required to take such steps as may be necessary to
either self-perform the services that would have been provided under the
subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor as soon as possible so as not
to delay project completion.

The City shall advise each subcontractor of District's rights, and the
subcontractor's obligations, under this Article by including a provision in each
subcontract substantially in the following form: "Subcontractor hereby warrants
that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal
immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor's employees, and with the
requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees that District
may inspect the Subcontractor's books and records to insure that Subcontractor



Library Service Agreement
2012/2013
Page 4 of5

is in compliance with these requirements. Any breach of this paragraph by
Subcontractor will be deemed to be a material breach of this contract subjecting
Subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this
contract. "

Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action
under this Article shall be the responsibility of the City.

10. This agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof and, it may be amended, modified or waived only by an
instrument in writing signed by both parties.

11. This agreement may be canceled pursuant to A.R.S. 38-511, the pertinent
provisions of which are fully incorporated herein by reference.

12. Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving 30 days' notice to the
other. Upon termination of this Agreement by either party, the Town agrees to
return to the owner, by the date of termination, any books, materials and
equipment belonging to the Library District or other participating library, which
had been entrusted to the possession or control of the Town. Conversely, the
Library District agrees to deliver to the Town library, by the date of
termination, any books, materials, and equipment belonging to the Town library
which had been entrusted to the possession or control of the Library District
and to make reasonable, good faith efforts to return to the Town library any
books, materials and equipment belonging to the Town library which had been
entrusted to the possession or control of another participating library.

13. Any dispute, controversy, claim, or cause of action arising out of or related to
this agreement shall be governed by Arizona law and may, but in no event
need, be settled by submission with the consent of both parties to binding
arbitration in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association
and the Arizona Uniform Arbitration Act, ARS 12 - 1501, et seq., and judgment
upon any award rendered by the arbitrators may be entered in the Superior
Court of Gila County, or any such dispute, controversy, claim, or cause of
action may be litigated in a court. The venue for any such dispute shall be Gila
County, Arizona. Each party waives the right to object to venue in Gila County
for any reason. Neither party shall be entitled to recover any of its attorneys'
fees or other costs from the other party incurred in any such dispute,
controversy, claim or cause of action, but each party shall bear its own
attorneys' fees and costs, whether the same is resolved through arbitration,
litigation in a court, or otherwise.



Library Service Agreement
2012/2013
Page 5 of5

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have caused this agreement to be executed by their
duly authorized representatives.

TOWN OF HAYDEN GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT

'~ffddf
Mayor Chairman, Board of Directors

ATTEST: ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

DateDate

Pursuant to A.R.S. 11-952(D) the foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the
undersigned attorney for the Town, who has determined that the agreement is in proper
form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws of the State to the
Town.

Pursuant to A.R.S. 11-952(D) the foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the
undersigned attorney for the Gila County Library District, who has determined that the
agreement is in proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws
of the State to Gila County.

Chief Deputy County Attorney

•



GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT
LIBRARY SERVICE AGREEMENT
JULY 1, 2012 TO JUNE 30, 2013

This agreement is entered into between the GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT,
hereinafter referred to as the "District," and the Board of the ISABELLE HUNT
MEMORIAL LIBRARY, hereinafter referred to as the "Board" and shall be for a period
commencing July 1,2012 to June 30, 2013.

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors has established a County Library
District, pursuant to A.R.S. 11-901 et seq. and 48-3901 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, the District and the Board recognize the need to cooperate in the
provision of library services to the citizens of the District; and

WHEREAS, the Board operates and maintains a library and it is the desire of the
Board to join the District and to continue as an established station ofthe District; and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to establish terms and conditions prior to distribution of
District tax levied funds to participating boards.

NOW THEREFORE IT IS AGREED by and between the District and the Board as
follows:

1. All citizens of the District shall have full use of the library facilities and
services.

2. All library materials purchased with District funds by the Board, are the
property of the Board.

3. It is understood by both parties that officials, employees and agents of the
District remain the sole responsibility of the District. It is further understood
that the officials, employees and agents of the Board remain the sole
responsibility of the Board.

4. Each party (as "indemnitor") agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless
the other party (as "indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, losses,
liability, costs or other expenses including reasonable attorney's fees
(hereinafter collectively referred to as "claims") arising out of bodily injury of
any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the extent that
such claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the indemnitee, are



Library Service Agreement
2012/2013
Page 2 of5

caused by the act, omission, negligence, misconduct or other fault of the
indemnitor, its officers, official agents, employees or volunteers.

5. The Board agrees to the following conditions:

A. The Board shall use the District funds to insure the payments of salaries,
routine maintenance and upkeep and other necessary expenses of the
library, pursuant to ARS 48 - 3901 et seq. Funds will not be used for
capital improvement projects or major building repairs without prior
approval from the Board of Directors of the Gila County Library District.
District funds may not be accumulated from year to year for capital
projects. An annual written accounting shall be made to the District
describing the manner and use of funds as required by the District.

B. Because the Board receives public monies from the District, the Board
shall conduct all business meetings in accordance with Arizona Open
Meeting Laws, A.R.S. 38-431 et seq.

C. The Board shall require that the library maintain a minimum of 24 public
service hours each week. These hours may be inclusive of official
holidays observed by Gila County.

D. The Board shall annually submit to the District the Arizona Public Library
Data Report as required by the State Library.

E. The Board shall support resource sharing among libraries by participating
in interlibrary loan services as a borrower and lender of library materials.

F. The Board shall comply with any reasonable conditions or restrictions
which the District or another participating library imposes with respect to
loans of books, materials, or equipment to the station library.

G. The Board agrees to reimburse any other participating library for any
losses and/or damage to books, materials, or equipment belonging to
another participating library or the District, which occur while these items
are in the possession and control of the station library.

H. The Board's decision to participate in a countywide online system is
evidenced by the authorized signature( s) on this Agreement. The Board
agrees to utilize the online system for: cataloging, circulation, online
shared public access catalog, long-term loan of supplementary Library
District materials, if applicable, and other online functions as may be
implemented.

I. The Board shall insure that the Library Manager (Librarian) and staff
understand and are proficient in all functions of the online system that they
are responsible for by providing reasonable time for staff to attend training



Library Service Agreement
2012/2013
Page 3 of5

on the online system at the District's recommendation. Training will be
overseen by, and coordinated through the District.

J. The Board shall require library staff or a representative to attend and
participate in at least three of the four quarterly countywide librarians
meetings each year.

6. The District will provide the following benefits and support services to the
library:

A. Opportunity to participate in a countywide online system subject to
conditions specified in this agreement. Operation of the countywide
online system is a Library District function subject to oversight by the
Board of Directors of the Library District, who will make final decisions
regarding this system.

B. Operate the online system continuously, notifying the participating
library in advance of any scheduled shutdowns, should any be necessary
for maintenance and backup routines.

C. Coordination of countywide library development.

D. Continuing education opportunities for staff and volunteers.

E. Offer regular orientation training on the online system for all new staff at
the affiliate libraries, as well as coordinate and oversee special update
training for veteran staff.

F. Professional assistance and consultation services.

7. The Board and the District acknowledge that the services to be performed
have a value to the District and to the Board. In consideration of that value,
the District agrees:

A. To pay the Board an amount not to exceed $104,750.00 for library
services, such amount subject to annual review.

B. To distribute this amount in two installments, November 2012, and May
2013.

8. This agreement may be renewed from year to year by mutual agreement of the
parties involved.



Library Service Agreement
2012/2013
Page 4 of5

9. Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance
The Board hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this

Contract comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to Board's
employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214
(A) (together the "State and Federal Immigration Laws"). Board shall further
ensure that each subcontractor who performs any work for Board under this
contract likewise complies with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.

The District shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and
records of Board and any subcontractor in order to verify such party's
compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.

Any breach of Board's or any subcontractor's warranty of compliance with
the State and Federal Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this
section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Contract subjecting
Board to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this
Contract. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended
or terminated as a result, Board shall be required to take such steps as may be
necessary to either self-perform the services that would have been provided
under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor as soon as
possible so as not to delay project completion.

The Board shall advise each subcontractor of District's rights, and the
subcontractor's obligations, under this Article by including a provision in each
subcontract substantially in the following form: "Subcontractor hereby
warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with
all federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor's employees, and
with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees
that District may inspect the Subcontractor's books and records to insure that
Subcontractor is in compliance with these requirements. Any breach of this
paragraph by Subcontractor will be deemed to be a material breach of this
contract subjecting Subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension
or termination of this contract."

Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action
under this Article shall be the responsibility of the Board.

10. This agreement contains the entire agreement ofthe parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof and, it may be amended, modified or waived only by an
instrument in writing signed by both parties.

11. This agreement may be canceled pursuant to A.R.S. 38-511, the pertinent
provisions of which are fully incorporated herein by reference.

12. Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving 30 days' notice to the
other. Upon termination of this Agreement by either party, the Board agrees
to return to the owner, by the date of termination, any books, materials and
equipment belonging to the Library District or other participating library,
which had been entrusted to the possession or control of the Board.
Conversely, the Library District agrees to deliver to the station library, by the
date of termination, any books, materials, and equipment belonging to the
station library which had been entrusted to the possession or control of the



Library Service Agreement
2012/2013
Page 5 of5

Library District and to make reasonable, good faith efforts to return to the
Board any books, materials and equipment belonging to the library which had
been entrusted to the possession or control of another participating library.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have caused this agreement to be executed by their
duly authorized representatives.

BOARD OF ISABELLE HUNT
MEMORIAL LIBRARY

GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT

Chairman, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

~Ofilie~

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

Date

The foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the undersigned attorney for the Gila
County Library District, who has determined that the agreement is in proper form and is
within the powers and authority granted under the laws of the State to Gila County.

Chief Deputy County Attorney



GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT
LIBRARY SERVICE AGREEMENT
JULY 1, 2012 TO JUNE 30, 2013

This agreement is entered into between the GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT,
hereinafter referred to as the "District," and the TOWN OF MIAMI, hereinafter referred to
as the "Town," and shall be for a period commencing July 1,2012 to June 30, 2013.

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors has established a County Library
District, pursuant to A.R.S. 11-901 et seq. and 48-3901 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, the District and the Town recognize the need to cooperate in the provision
of library services to the citizens of the District; and

WHEREAS, the Town operates and maintains a library and it is the desire of the Town
to continue as a participating member of the District; and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to establish terms and conditions prior to distribution of
District tax levied funds to participating Towns.

NOW THEREFORE IT IS AGREED by and between the District and the Town as
follows:

1. All citizens of the District shall have full use of the library facilities and
services.

2. All library materials purchased with District funds by the Town, are the
property of the Town.

3. It is understood by both parties that officials, employees and agents of the
District remain the sole responsibility of the District. It is further understood
that the officials, employees and agents of the Town remain the sole
responsibility of the Town.

4. Each party (as "indemnitor") agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the
other party (as "indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, losses,
liability, costs or other expenses including reasonable attorney's fees
(hereinafter collectively referred to as "claims") arising out of bodily injury of
any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the extent that
such claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the indemnitee, are
caused by the act, omission, negligence, misconduct or other fault of the
indemnitor, its officers, official agents, employees or volunteers.



Library Service Agreement
2012/2013
Page 2 of5

5. The Town agrees to the following conditions:

A. The Town shall use the District funds to insure the payments of salaries,
routine maintenance and upkeep and other necessary expenses of the
Town's library, pursuant to ARS 48 - 3901 et seg. Funds will not be used
for capital improvement projects or major building repairs without prior
approval from the Board of Directors of the Gila County Library District.

B. The Town shall annually submit to the District the Arizona Public Library
Data Report as required by the State Library.

C. The Town shall support resource sharing among libraries by participating in
interlibrary loan services as a borrower and lender of library materials.

D. The Town shall comply with any reasonable conditions or restrictions
which the District or another participating library imposes with respect to
loans of books, materials, or equipment to the Town library.

E. The Town agrees to reimburse any other participating library for any losses
and/or damage to books, materials, or equipment belonging to another
participating library or the District, which occur while these items are in the
possession and control of the Town.

F. The Town's decision to participate in a countywide online system is
evidenced by the authorized signature(s) on this Agreement. The Town
agrees to utilize the online system for: cataloging, circulation, online shared
public access catalog, long-term loan of supplementary Library District
materials, if applicable, and other online functions as may be implemented.

G. The Town shall insure that the Library Manager (Librarian) and staff
understand and are proficient in all functions of the online system that they
are responsible for by providing reasonable time for staff to attend training
on the online system at the District's recommendation. Training will be
overseen by, and coordinated through the District.

H. Town library staff agrees to attend and participate in at least three of the
four quarterly countywide librarians meetings each year.

6. The District will provide the following benefits and support services to the
library:

A. Opportunity to participate in a countywide online system subject to
conditions specified in this agreement. Operation of the countywide
online system is a Library District function subject to oversight by the
Board of Directors of the Library District, who will make final decisions
regarding this system.



Library Service Agreement
2012/2013
Page 3 of5

B. Operate the online system continuously, notifying the participating library
in advance of any scheduled shutdowns, should any be necessary for
maintenance and backup routines.

C. Coordination of countywide library development.

D. Continuing education opportunities for staff and volunteers.

E. Offer regular orientation training on the online system for all new staff at
the affiliate libraries, as well as coordinate and oversee special update
training for veteran staff.

F. Professional assistance and consultation services.

7. The Town and the District acknowledge that the services performed have a
value to the District and the Town. In consideration ofthat value, the District
agrees:

A. To match the Town local funds for library services, up to the amount of
$43,600.00, such amount subject to annual review.

B. To distribute this amount in two installments, in November 2012 and May
2013.

8. This agreement may be renewed from year to year by mutual agreement of the
parties involved.

9. This agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof and, it may be amended, modified or waived only by an
instrument in writing signed by both parties.

10. This agreement may be canceled pursuant to A.R.S. 38-511, the pertinent
provisions of which are fully incorporated herein by reference.

11. Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving 30 days' notice to the
other. Upon termination ofthis Agreement by either party, the Town agrees to
return to the owner, by the date of termination, any books, materials and
equipment belonging to the Library District or other participating library, which
had been entrusted to the possession or control ofthe Town. Conversely, the
Library District agrees to deliver to the Town library, by the date of
termination, any books, materials, and equipment belonging to the Town library
which had been entrusted to the possession or control of the Library District
and to make reasonable, good faith efforts to return to the Town library any
books, materials and equipment belonging to the Town library which had been
entrusted to the possession or control of another participating library.



Library Service Agreement
2012/2013
Page 4 of5

12. Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance
The Town hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this

Contract comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to Town's
employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214
(A) (together the "State and Federal Immigration Laws"). Town shall further
ensure that each subcontractor who performs any work for Town under this
contract likewise complies with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.

The District shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records
of Town and any subcontractor in order to verify such party's compliance with
the State and Federal Immigration Laws.

Any breach of Town's or any subcontractor's warranty of compliance with
the State and Federal Immigration Laws, or of any other provision ofthis
section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Contract subjecting
Town to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this
Contract. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended
or terminated as a result, Town shall be required to take such steps as may be
necessary to either self-perform the services that would have been provided
under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor as soon as possible
so as not to delay project completion.

The Town shall advise each subcontractor of District's rights, and the
subcontractor's obligations, under this Article by including a provision in each
subcontract substantially in the following form: "Subcontractor hereby warrants
that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal
immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor's employees, and with the
requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees that District
may inspect the Subcontractor's books and records to insure that Subcontractor
is in compliance with these requirements. Any breach of this paragraph by
Subcontractor will be deemed to be a material breach of this contract subjecting
Subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this
contract. "

Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action
under this Article shall be the responsibility of the Town.

13. Any dispute, controversy, claim, or cause of action arising out of or related to
this agreement shall be governed by Arizona law and may, but in no event
need, be settled by submission with the consent of both parties to binding
arbitration in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association
and the Arizona Uniform Arbitration Act, ARS 12 - 1501, et seq., andjudgment
upon any award rendered by the arbitrators may be entered in the Superior
Court of Gila County, or any such dispute, controversy, claim, or cause of
action may be litigated in a court. The venue for any such dispute shall be Gila
County, Arizona. Each party waives the right to object to venue in Gila County
for any reason. Neither party shall be entitled to recover any of its attorneys'
fees or other costs from the other party incurred in any such dispute,
controversy, claim or cause of action, but each party shall bear its own
attorneys' fees and costs, whether the same is resolved through arbitration,
litigation in a court, or otherwise.



Library Service Agreement
2012/2013
Page 5 of5
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have caused this agreement to be executed by their
duly authorized representatives.

TOWN OF MIAMI GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT

Chairman, Board of Directors

ATTEST: ATTEST:

)i)()J\O 1{b\LmslW)
Town Clerk Clerk of the Board

Date Date

Pursuant to A.R.S. 11-952(D) the foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the
undersigned attorney for the Town, who has determined that the agreement is in proper
form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws of the State to the
Town.

Pursuant to A.R.S. 11-952(D) the foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the
undersigned attorney for the Gila County Library District, who has determined that the
agreement is in proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws
of the State to Gila County.

Chief Deputy County Attorney



GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT
LIBRARY SERVICE AGREEMENT
JULY 1, 2012 TO JUNE 30, 2013

This agreement is entered into between the GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT,
hereinafter referred to as the "District," and the TOWN OF PAYSON, hereinafter referred
to as the "Town," and shall be for a period commencing July 1,2012 to June 30, 2013.

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors has established a County Library
District, pursuant to A.R.S. 11-901 et seq. and 48-3901 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, the District and the Town recognize the need to cooperate in the provision
of library services to the citizens of the District; and

WHEREAS, the Town operates and maintains a library and it is the desire of the Town
to continue as a participating member of the District; and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to establish terms and conditions prior to distribution of
District tax levied funds to participating Towns.

NOW THEREFORE IT IS AGREED by and between the District and the Town as
follows:

1. All citizens of the District shall have full use of the library facilities and
services.

2. All library materials purchased with District funds by the Town, are the
property of the Town.

3. It is understood by both parties that officials, employees and agents of the
District remain the sole responsibility of the District. It is further understood
that the officials, employees and agents of the Town remain the sole
responsibility of the Town.

4. Each party (as "indemnitor") agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the
other party (as "indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, losses,
liability, costs or other expenses including reasonable attorney's fees
(hereinafter collectively referred to as "claims") arising out of bodily injury of
any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the extent that
such claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the indemnitee, are
caused by the act, omission, negligence, misconduct or other fault of the
indemnitor, its officers, official agents, employees or volunteers.



Library Service Agreement
2012/2013
Page 2 of5

5. The Town agrees to the following conditions:

A. The Town shall use the District funds to insure the payments of salaries,
routine maintenance and upkeep and other necessary expenses of the
Town's library, pursuant to ARS 48 - 3901 et seq. Funds will not be used
for capital improvement projects or major building repairs without prior
approval from the Board of Directors of the Gila County Library District.

B. The Town shall annually submit to the District the Arizona Public Library
Data Report as required by the State Library.

C. The Town shall support resource sharing among libraries by participating in
interlibrary loan services as a borrower and lender of library materials.

D. The Town shall comply with any reasonable conditions or restrictions
which the District or another participating library imposes with respect to
loans of books, materials, or equipment to the Town library.

E. The Town agrees to reimburse any other participating library for any losses
and/or damage to books, materials, or equipment belonging to another
participating library or the District, which occur while these items are in the
possession and control ofthe Town.

F. The Town's decision to participate in a countywide online system is
evidenced by the authorized signature( s) on this Agreement. The Town
agrees to utilize the online system for: cataloging, circulation, online shared
public access catalog, long-term loan of supplementary Library District
materials, if applicable, and other online functions as may be implemented.

G. The Town shall insure that the Library Manager (Librarian) and staff
understand and are proficient in all functions of the online system that they
are responsible for by providing reasonable time for staff to attend training
on the online system at the District's recommendation. Training will be
overseen by, and coordinated through the District.

H. Town library staff agrees to attend and participate in at least three ofthe
four quarterly countywide librarians meetings each year.

6. The District will provide the following benefits and support services to the
library:

A. Opportunity to participate in a countywide online system subject to
conditions specified in this agreement. Operation of the countywide
online system is a Library District function subject to oversight by the
Board of Directors of the Library District, who will make final decisions
regarding this system.

B. Operate the online system continuously, notifying the participating library
in advance of any scheduled shutdowns, should any be necessary for
maintenance and backup routines.



Library Service Agreement
201212013
Page 3 of5

C. Coordination of countywide library development.

D. Continuing education opportunities for staff and volunteers.

E. Offer regular orientation training on the online system for all new staff at
the affiliate libraries, as well as coordinate and oversee special update
training for veteran staff.

F. Professional assistance and consultation services.

7. The Town and the District acknowledge that the services performed have a
value to the District and the Town. In consideration of that value, the District
agrees:

A. To match the Town local funds for library services, up to the amount of
$229,230.00, such amount subject to annual review.

B. To distribute this amount in two installments, in November 2012 and May
2013.

8. This agreement may be renewed from year to year by mutual agreement of the
parties involved.

9. This agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof and, it may be amended, modified or waived only by an
instrument in writing signed by both parties.

10. This agreement may be canceled pursuant to A.R.S. 38-511, the pertinent
provisions of which are fully incorporated herein by reference.

11. Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving 30 days' notice to the
other. Upon termination of this Agreement by either party, the Town agrees to
return to the owner, by the date of termination, any books, materials and
equipment belonging to the Library District or other participating library, which
had been entrusted to the possession or control ofthe Town. Conversely, the
Library District agrees to deliver to the Town library, by the date of
termination, any books, materials, and equipment belonging to the Town library
which had been entrusted to the possession or control of the Library District
and to make reasonable, good faith efforts to return to the Town library any
books, materials and equipment belonging to the Town library which had been
entrusted to the possession or control of another participating library.

12. Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance
The Town hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this

Contract comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to Town's
employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214
(A) (together the "State and Federal Immigration Laws"). Town shall further
ensure that each subcontractor who performs any work for Town under this



Library Service Agreement
201212013
Page 4 of5

contract likewise complies with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.
The District shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records

of Town and any subcontractor in order to verify such party's compliance with
the State and Federal Immigration Laws.

Any breach of Town's or any subcontractor's warranty of compliance with
the State and Federal Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this
section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Contract subjecting
Town to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this
Contract. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended
or terminated as a result, Town shall be required to take such steps as may be
necessary to either self-perform the services that would have been provided
under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor as soon as possible
so as not to delay project completion.

The Town shall advise each subcontractor of District's rights, and the
subcontractor's obligations, under this Article by including a provision in each
subcontract substantially in the following form: "Subcontractor hereby warrants
that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal
immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor's employees, and with the
requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees that District
may inspect the Subcontractor's books and records to insure that Subcontractor
is in compliance with these requirements. Any breach of this paragraph by
Subcontractor will be deemed to be a material breach of this contract subjecting
Subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this
contract. "

Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action
under this Article shall be the responsibility of the Town.

13. Any dispute, controversy, claim, or cause of action arising out of or related to
this agreement shall be governed by Arizona law and may, but in no event
need, be settled by submission with the consent of both parties to binding
arbitration in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association
and the Arizona Uniform Arbitration Act, ARS 12 - 1501, et seq., and judgment
upon any award rendered by the arbitrators may be entered in the Superior
Court of Gila County, or any such dispute, controversy, claim, or cause of
action may be litigated in a court. The venue for any such dispute shall be Gila
County, Arizona. Each party waives the right to object to venue in Gila County
for any reason. Neither party shall be entitled to recover any of its attorneys'
fees or other costs from the other party incurred in any such dispute,
controversy, claim or cause of action, but each party shall bear its own
attorneys' fees and costs, whether the same is resolved through arbitration,
litigation in a court, or otherwise.



Library Service Agreement
2012/2013
Page 5 of5
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have caused this agreement to be executed by their
duly authorized representatives.

GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT

Chairman, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

~~.~
rown Clerk

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

Date

Pursuant to A.R.S. 11-952(D) the foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the
undersigned attorney for the Town, who has determined that the agreement is in proper
~~and is withinthepowersandauthoritygrante UlldS lawsof the Stateto the

Town Attorney

Pursuant to A.R.S. 11-952(D) the foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the
undersigned attorney for the Gila County Library District, who has determined that the
agreement is in proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws
of the State to Gila County.

Chief Deputy County Attorney, Gila County



GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT
LIBRARY SERVICE AGREEMENT
JULY 1, 2012 TO JUNE 30, 2013

This agreement is entered into between the GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT,
hereinafter referred to as the "District," and the Board of the TONTO BASIN PUBLIC
LIBRARY, hereinafter referred to as the "Board" and shall be for a period commencing
July 1,2012 to June 30, 2013.

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors has established a County Library
District, pursuant to A.R.S. 11-901 et seq. and 48-3901 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, the District and the Board recognize the need to cooperate in the
provision of library services to the citizens of the District; and

WHEREAS, the Board operates and maintains a library and it is the desire of the
Board to join the District and to continue as an established station of the District; and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to establish terms and conditions prior to distribution of
District tax levied funds to participating boards.

NOW THEREFORE IT IS AGREED by and between the District and the Board as
follows:

1. All citizens of the District shall have full use of the library facilities and
services.

2. All library materials purchased with District funds by the Board, are the
property of the Board.

3. It is understood by both parties that officials, employees and agents of the
District remain the sole responsibility of the District. It is further understood
that the officials, employees and agents of the Board remain the sole
responsibility of the Board.

4. Each party (as "indemnitor") agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless
the other party (as "indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, losses,
liability, costs or other expenses including reasonable attorney's fees
(hereinafter collectively referred to as "claims") arising out of bodily injury of
any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the extent that
such claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the indemnitee, are



Library Service Agreement
2012/2013
Page 2 of5

caused by the act, omission, negligence, misconduct or other fault of the
indemnitor, its officers, official agents, employees or volunteers.

5. The Board agrees to the following conditions:

A. The Board shall use the District funds to insure the payments of salaries,
routine maintenance and upkeep and other necessary expenses of the
library, pursuant to ARS 48 - 3901 et seq. Funds will not be used for
capital improvement projects or major building repairs without prior
approval from the Board of Directors of the Gila County Library District.
District funds may not be accumulated from year to year for capital
projects. An annual written accounting shall be made to the District
describing the manner and use of funds as required by the District.

B. Because the Board receives public monies from the District, the Board
shall conduct all business meetings in accordance with Arizona Open
Meeting Laws, A.R.S. 38-431 et seq.

C. The Board shall require that the library maintain a minimum of24 public
service hours each week. These hours may be inclusive of official
holidays observed by Gila County.

D. The Board shall annually submit to the District the Arizona Public Library
Data Report as required by the State Library.

E. The Board shall support resource sharing among libraries by participating
in interlibrary loan services as a borrower and lender of library materials.

F. The Board shall comply with any reasonable conditions or restrictions
which the District or another participating library imposes with respect to
loans of books, materials, or equipment to the station library.

G. The Board agrees to reimburse any other participating library for any
losses and/or damage to books, materials, or equipment belonging to
another participating library or the District, which occur while these items
are in the possession and control ofthe station library.

H. The Board's decision to participate in a countywide online system is
evidenced by the authorized signature( s) on this Agreement. The Board
agrees to utilize the online system for: cataloging, circulation, online
shared public access catalog, long-term loan of supplementary Library
District materials, if applicable, and other online functions as may be
implemented.

1. The Board shall insure that the Library Manager (Librarian) and staff
understand and are proficient in all functions of the online system that they
are responsible for by providing reasonable time for staff to attend training



Library Service Agreement
2012/2013
Page 3 of5

on the online system at the District's recommendation. Training will be
overseen by, and coordinated through the District

J. The Board shall require library staff or a representative to attend and
participate in at least three of the four quarterly countywide librarians
meetings each year.

6. The District will provide the following benefits and support services to the
library:

A. Opportunity to participate in a countywide online system subject to
conditions specified in this agreement. Operation of the countywide
online system is a Library District function subject to oversight by the
Board of Directors of the Library District, who will make final decisions
regarding this system.

B. Operate the online system continuously, notifying the participating
library in advance of any scheduled shutdowns, should any be necessary
for maintenance and backup routines.

C. Coordination of countywide library development.

D. Continuing education opportunities for staff and volunteers.

E. Offer regular orientation training on the online system for all new staff at
the affiliate libraries, as well as coordinate and oversee special update
training for veteran staff.

F. Professional assistance and consultation services.

7. The Board and the District acknowledge that the services to be performed
have a value to the District and to the Board. In consideration of that value,
the District agrees:

A. To pay the Board an amount not to exceed $60,950.00 for library
services, such amount subject to annual review.

B. To distribute this amount in two installments, November 2012, and May
2013.

8. This agreement may be renewed from year to year by mutual agreement of the
parties involved.

9. Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance
The Board hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this

Contract comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to Board's
employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A)



Library Service Agreement
2012/2013
Page 4 of5

(together the "State and Federal Immigration Laws"). Board shall further ensure
that each subcontractor who performs any work for Board under this contract
likewise complies with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.

The District shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of
Board and any subcontractor in order to verify such party's compliance with the
State and Federal Immigration Laws.

Any breach of Board's or any subcontractor's warranty of compliance with the
State and Federal Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this section,
shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Contract subjecting Board to
penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this Contract. If the
breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a
result, Board shall be required to take such steps as may be necessary to either
self-perform the services that would have been provided under the subcontract or
retain a replacement subcontractor as soon as possible so as not to delay project
completion.

The Board shall advise each subcontractor of District's rights, and the
subcontractor's obligations, under this Article by including a provision in each
subcontract substantially in the following form: "Subcontractor hereby warrants
that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal
immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor's employees, and with the
requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees that District
may inspect the Subcontractor's books and records to insure that Subcontractor is
in compliance with these requirements. Any breach of this paragraph by
Subcontractor will be deemed to be a material breach of this contract subjecting
Subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this
contract. "

Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under
this Article shall be the responsibility of the Board.

10. This agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof and, it may be amended, modified or waived only by an
instrument in writing signed by both parties.

11. This agreement may be canceled pursuant to A.R.S. 38-511, the pertinent
provisions of which are fully incorporated herein by reference.

12. Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving 30 days' notice to the
other. Upon termination of this Agreement by either party, the Board agrees
to return to the owner, by the date of termination, any books, materials and
equipment belonging to the Library District or other participating library,
which had been entrusted to the possession or control of the Board.
Conversely, the Library District agrees to deliver to the station library, by the
date of termination, any books, materials, and equipment belonging to the
station library which had been entrusted to the possession or control of the
Library District and to make reasonable, good faith efforts to return to the
Board any books, materials and equipment belonging to the library which had
been entrusted to the possession or control of another participating library.



Library Service Agreement
2012/2013
Page 5 of5
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have caused this agreement to be executed by their
duly authorized representatives.

BOARD OF TONTO BASIN
PUBLIC LIBRARY

4JWMf.t1J,j1J~fp
Chairman of the Board

GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT

Chairman, Board of Directors

ATTEST: ATTEST:

Secretary of the Board Clerk of the Board

7-~-hU
Date Date

The foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the undersigned attorney for the Gila
County Library District, who has determined that the agreement is in proper form and is
within the powers and authority granted under the laws of the State to Gila County.

Chief Deputy County Attorney, Gila County



GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT
LIBRARY SERVICE AGREEMENT
JULY 1, 2012 TO JUNE 30, 2013

This agreement is entered into between the GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT,
hereinafter referred to as the "District," and the Board ofthe YOUNG PUBLIC
LIBRARY, hereinafter referred to as the "Board" and shall be for a period commencing
July 1,2012 to June 30, 2013.

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors has established a County Library
District, pursuant to A.R.S. 11-901 et seq. and 48-3901 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, the District and the Board recognize the need to cooperate in the
provision of library services to the citizens of the District; and

WHEREAS, the Board operates and maintains a library and it is the desire of the
Board to join the District and to continue as an established station ofthe District; and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to establish terms and conditions prior to distribution of
District tax levied funds to participating boards.

NOW THEREFORE IT IS AGREED by and between the District and the Board as
follows:

1. All citizens of the District shall have full use of the library facilities and
services.

2. All library materials purchased with District funds by the Board, are the
property of the Board.

3. It is understood by both parties that officials, employees and agents of the
District remain the sole responsibility of the District. It is further understood
that the officials, employees and agents of the Board remain the sole
responsibility of the Board.

4. Each party (as "indemnitor") agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless
the other party (as "indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, losses,
liability, costs or other expenses including reasonable attorney's fees
(hereinafter collectively referred to as "claims") arising out of bodily injury of
any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the extent that
such claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the indemnitee, are



Library Service Agreement
2012/2013
Page 2 of4

caused by the act, omission, negligence, misconduct or other fault of the
indemnitor, its officers, official agents, employees or volunteers.

5. The Board agrees to the following conditions:

A. The Board shall use the District funds to insure the payments of salaries,
routine maintenance and upkeep and other necessary expenses of the
library, pursuant to ARS 48 - 3901 et seq. Funds will not be used for
capital improvement projects or major building repairs without prior
approval from the Board of Directors of the Gila County Library District.
District funds may not be accumulated from year to year for capital
projects. An annual written accounting shall be made to the District
describing the manner and use of funds as required by the District.

B. Because the Board receives public monies from the District, the Board
shall conduct all business meetings in accordance with Arizona Open
Meeting Laws, A.R.S. 38-431 et seq.

C. The Board shall require that the library maintain a minimum of 24 public
service hours each week. These hours may be inclusive of official
holidays observed by Gila County.

D. The Board shall annually submit to the District the Arizona Public Library
Data Report as required by the State Library.

E. The Board shall support resource sharing among libraries by participating
in interlibrary loan services as a borrower and lender of library materials.

F. The Board shall comply with any reasonable conditions or restrictions
which the District or another participating library imposes with respect to
loans of books, materials, or equipment to the station library.

G. The Board agrees to reimburse any other participating library for any
losses and/or damage to books, materials, or equipment belonging to
another participating library or the District, which occur while these items
are in the possession and control of the station library.

H. The Board's decision to participate in a countywide online system is
evidenced by the authorized signature( s) on this Agreement. The Board
agrees to utilize the online system for: cataloging, circulation, online
shared public access catalog, long-term loan of supplementary Library
District materials, if applicable, and other online functions as may be
implemented.

1. The Board shall insure that the Library Manager (Librarian) and staff
understand and are proficient in all functions of the online system that they
are responsible for by providing reasonable time for staff to attend training



Library Service Agreement
2012/2013
Page 3 of4

on the online system at the District's recommendation. Training will be
overseen by, and coordinated through the District.

J. The Board shall require library staff or a representative to attend and
participate in at least three of the four quarterly countywide librarians
meetings each year.

6. The District will provide the following benefits and support services to the
library:

A. Opportunity to participate in a countywide online system subject to
conditions specified in this agreement. Operation of the countywide
online system is a Library District function subject to oversight by the
Board of Directors of the Library District, who will make final decisions
regarding this system.

B. Operate the online system continuously, notifying the participating
library in advance of any scheduled shutdowns, should any be necessary
for maintenance and backup routines.

C. Coordination of countywide library development.

D. Continuing education opportunities for staff and volunteers.

E. Offer regular orientation training on the online system for all new staff at
the affiliate libraries, as well as coordinate and oversee special update
training for veteran staff.

F. Professional assistance and consultation services.

7. The Board and the District acknowledge that the services to be performed
have a value to the District and to the Board. In consideration of that value,
the District agrees:

A. To pay the Board an amount not to exceed $57,670.00 for library
services, such amount subject to annual review.

B. To distribute this amount in two installments, November 2012, and May
2013.

8. This agreement may be renewed from year to year by mutual agreement of the
parties involved.

9. Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance
The Board hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this

Contract comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to Board's
employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214



Library Service Agreement
2012/2013
Page 4 of4

(A) (together the "State and Federal Immigration Laws"). Board shall further
ensure that each subcontractor who performs any work for Board under this
contract likewise complies with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.

The District shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and
records of Board and any subcontractor in order to verify such party's
compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.

Any breach of Board's or any subcontractor's warranty of compliance with
the State and Federal Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this
section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Contract subjecting
Board to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this
Contract. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended
or terminated as a result, Board shall be required to take such steps as may be
necessary to either self-perform the services that would have been provided
under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor as soon as
possible so as not to delay project completion.

The Board shall advise each subcontractor of District's rights, and the
subcontractor's obligations, under this Article by including a provision in each
subcontract substantially in the following form: "Subcontractor hereby
warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with
all federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor's employees, and
with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees
that District may inspect the Subcontractor's books and records to insure that
Subcontractor is in compliance with these requirements. Any breach of this
paragraph by Subcontractor will be deemed to be a material breach of this
contract subjecting Subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension
or termination of this contract."

Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action
under this Article shall be the responsibility of the Board.

10. This agreement contains the entire agreement ofthe parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof and, it may be amended, modified or waived only by an
instrument in writing signed by both parties.

11. This agreement may be canceled pursuant to A.R.S. 38-511, the pertinent
provisions of which are fully incorporated herein by reference.

12. Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving 30 days' notice to the
other. Upon termination of this Agreement by either party, the Board agrees
to return to the owner, by the date of termination, any books, materials and
equipment belonging to the Library District or other participating library,
which had been entrusted to the possession or control of the Board.
Conversely, the Library District agrees to deliver to the station library, by the
date of termination, any books, materials, and equipment belonging to the
station library which had been entrusted to the possession or control of the
Library District and to make reasonable, good faith efforts to return to the
Board any books, materials and equipment belonging to the library which had
been entrusted to the possession or control of another participating library.



Library Service Agreement
2012/2013
Page 5 of4

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have caused this agreement to be executed by their
duly authorized representatives.

BOARD OF YOUNG PUBLIC
LIBRARY

GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT

Chairman, Board of Directors

ATTEST: ATTEST:

Secretary of the Board Clerk of the Board

Date Date

The foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the undersigned attorney for the Gila
County Library District, who has determined that the agreement is in proper form and is
within the powers and authority granted under the laws of the State to Gila County.

Chief Deputy County Attorney, Gila County



GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.  



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.  



GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement.

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office
“Approval as to Form” Review

The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private venders, contractors, and individuals.  

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.   

The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance.

Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.  



   

ARF-1322     Regular Agenda Item      3- C             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Nancy Neumann,
Administrative Clerk

Submitted By: Nancy Neumann, Administrative Clerk,
Sheriff's Office

Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: FY2013 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1,
2012-December 30,
2012

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
FY2013 Intergovernmental Agreement (A.G.Contract No. P001-2012-001854) with the
Department of Public Safety.

Background Information
In the past, the $25,000 funding for the overtime of the Domestic Cannabis
Eradication/Supression Program came out of the Gila County Drug Enforcement
Administration (DEA) fund. The DEA, pursuant to the authority of 21 U.S.C. 873, has
provided funds to the Department of Public Safety (DPS) to be administered to the Gila
County Sheriff's Office in the amount of $25,000. (DPS) is authorized and enpowered to
enter into this Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) pursuant to A.R.S. 41-1713(B)(3). Both
parties are authorized and empowered to enter into this IGA pursuant to A.R.S. 11-952.

The Gila County Sheriff's Office agrees to use funds provided primarily for payment of
deputies'/officers' overtime no ERE while those deputies and officers are directly engaged in
the cannabis eradication process, and for per diem and other direct costs related to the
actual conduct of cannabis eradication. These federal funds are not intended primarily for
the purchase of equipment or supplies. All purchases of the equipment and supplies must
have prior written approval from DPS and must be received by DPS by October 1, 2012. 

The DPS agrees to reimburse the Gila County Sheriff's Office for officers' overtime accrued
while participating in marijuana eradication efforts. The annual maximum overtime
reimbursement rate is basedf on the current year General Pay Scale/rest of the US and
cannot exceed 25% of a GS-12, Step1; the funds shall only be used to pay the normal
overtime rate, i.e. time and a half. The overtime reimbursement rate shall not include any
cost for benefits, such as retirement, FICA, or other expenses.

Evaluation
FY2013 Department of Public Safety has committed to $25,000 for overtime.

Conclusion
The Gila County Sheriff's Office will utilize the funds in the amount of $25,000 to provide



The Gila County Sheriff's Office will utilize the funds in the amount of $25,000 to provide
primarily for payment of deputies'/officers' overtime no ERE while those deputies and
officers are directly engaged in the cannabis eradication procerss, and for per diem and
other direct costs related to the actual conduct of cannabis eradication.

Recommendation
The Gila County Sheriff's Office requests the Gila County Board of Supervisors' approval
for this Intergovernmental Agreement with the Department of Public Safety. (A.G. Contract
No. P001-2012-001854/DPS Contract NO. 2012-116)

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
A.G. P001-2012-001854) between the Arizona Department of Public Safety and the Gila
County Sheriff's Office in the amount of $25,000 for the period of July 1, 2012, to
December 31, 2012, in order to provide overtime pay for Sheriff's Office deputies/officers
under the Domestic Cannabis Eradication/Suppression Program.  (Johnny Sanchez)

Attachments
IGA DCESP
Legal Explanation















































GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.  



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.  



   

ARF-1379     Regular Agenda Item      3- D             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Joseph Heatherly,
Finance Director

Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Department

Department: Finance Department
Fiscal Year: FY 2012-2013 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

10-9-12 to 2-15-13 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Request to Advertise Invitation for Bids No. 032712-1 for the Russell Road Reconstruction
Project

Background Information
Besich Boulevard was built in 2009 to help reduce traffic on Russell Road and provide an
additional access to the Cobre Valley Regional Medical Center.  Creation of Besich Blvd.
resulted in a 4-way intersection with Russell Road and Hope Lane.

Evaluation
The creation of the new intersection requires improvements to Russell Road.  These
improvements consist of widening Russell Road and providing turn lanes onto
Besich  Blvd. and Hope Lane.  In addition to the roadway improvements a privacy wall will
be built along the west side of Russell Rd.  The wall will tie into the existing wall on Russell
Rd. and terminate at the County's property line on the south side of the new Shop/Roads
buildings.

Conclusion
These implementations to Russell Road will provide a safer road for the traveling public.

The Bid will be advertised in the Arizona Silverbelt on August 8 and 15, 2012, with a bid
due date of August 28, 2012.

Recommendation
The Finance Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the
advertisement of Invitation for Bids No. 032712-1 for the Russell Road Reconstruction
Project to be published for 2 consecutive weeks in the Arizona Silverbelt.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Invitation for
Bids No. 032712-1 for the Russell Road Reconstruction Project.  
(Joseph Heatherly)

Attachments



Attachments
Request to Advertise Bid 032712-1 Russell Road Reconstruction
Invitation for Bids No. 032712-1 Russel Road Reconstruction









































































































































































































































   

ARF-1375     Regular Agenda Item      3- E             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Joseph Heatherly,
Finance Director

Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Department

Department: Finance Department

Information
Request/Subject
Request to Post Public Notice of On-line Auction of Surplus Material Quarterly for 1 Year

Background Information
Throughout the year the Procurement Group receives miscellaneous surplus material from
County departments.  The surplus materials may be offered through a competitive public
on-line surplus auction or through a public attendance auction.  Some of the items include
but are not limited to County vehicles, seized vehicles and items, old laptop
computers, televisions, printers, miscellaneous equipment, etc.

Evaluation
Public Notice of the on-line auctions must be posted per the requirements of A.R.S.
§11-251[9], Powers of the Board; Sell at public auction, after thirty days' previous notice
given by publication in a newspaper of the county, stating the time and place of the
auction, and convey to the highest bidder, for cash or contract of purchase extending not
more than ten years from the date of sale and on such terms and for such consideration as
the board shall prescribe, any property belonging to the county that the board deems
advantageous for the county to sell, or that the board deems unnecessary for use by the
county, and shall pay the proceeds thereof into the county treasury for use of the county,
except that personal property need not be sold but may be used as a trade-in on the
purchase of personal property when the board deems this disposition of the personal
property to be in the best interests of the county.

On-line surplus auctions will be held quarterly by the Procurement Group unless an
excess of surplus materials dictates that the auction will be held sooner. The
determination to move forward with the auction date will be made by the Procurement
Group depending on what is in the County's best interest.

 

Conclusion
One month prior to each quarterly auction a public notice will be posted in the Arizona
Silverbelt newspaper.  The notice will include the date the auction will begin, website
address for Public Surplus On-Line Auction, and items being auctioned off.

The quarterly auctions are tentatively scheduled to be held September 3, 2012, December
3, 2012, March 4, 2013, and June 3, 2013. These dates may change as needed and
determined by the Procurement Group.

Recommendation
The Finance Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the request to



The Finance Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the request to
post quarterly in the Arizona Silverbelt newspaper the public notice of on-line auction of
surplus materials.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the quarterly posting of a public notice of
on-line auction of surplus materials in the Arizona Silver Belt newspaper per A.R.S.
§11-251[9].  (Joseph Heatherly)

Attachments
Public Notice of On-line Surplus Auction 



GILA COUNTY 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC ON-LINE AUCTION 

 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §11-251[9], the Gila County Board of Supervisors gives 

notice of the on-line auction of surplus items beginning September 3, 2012.  

Interested parties may bid on the items via the Public Surplus Auction 

website at www.publicsurplus.com. 

Items up for Auction: 

 Lap Top Computer Minus Hard-drive 

 Old Singer Sewing Machine 

 Nikon Lite Touch 110AF 

 Omega Rapid Medium Format Film Camera 

 Vivitar Electronic Flash Meter 

 Vivitar Series 70-201mm 

 Soligor Spot Sensor 

 Nikon F3 Micro Nikkor 55mm 

 Nikon 35mm 

 Nikon 105mm 

 Sunpack Auto 522 Thyristor 

 

 

 

 

 
Post: 

August 8, 15, 22, and 29, 2012 

 

 

http://www.publicsurplus.com/


   

ARF-1314     Consent Agenda Item      4- A             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Nancy Neumann,
Administrative Clerk

Submitted By: Nancy Neumann, Administrative Clerk,
Sheriff's Office

Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: FY 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2011 - June
30, 2012

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Annual Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification Report for the Sheriff's Office.

Background Information
In the nearly 25 years since the Comprehensive Crime Control Act of 1984 authorized
federal officials to implement a national asset forfeiture program, asset forfeiture has
become one of the most powerful tools for targeting criminals - including drug dealers and
white collar criminals - who prey on the vulnerable for financial gain. The state or local
participating law enforcement agency must establish a separate revenue account for the
proceeds from the Department of Justice Equitable Sharing Program. No other funds may
be included in this account.  

Evaluation
This Federal Equitable Sharing Agreement, entered into among the Federal Government,
the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the governing body, sets forth the requirements for
participation in the federal equitable sharing program and the restrictions upon the use of
federally forfeited cash, property, proceeds and any interest earned thereon, which are
equitably shared with particpating law enforcement agencies. By its signatures, the Gila
County Sheriff's Office agrees that it will be bound by the statutes and guidelines that
regulate shared assets. Receipt of the signed Equitable Sharing Agreement and
Certification is a prerequisite to receiving any equitably shared cash, property, or proceeds.

As a prerequisite to participating in the Department of Justicve Equitable Sharing
Program, a state or local law enforcement agency must annually submit to AFMLS a signed
Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification form. 
 

Conclusion
The Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification Report is a report to account for
separately federal equitable sharing funds received from the Department of Justice and the
Department of the Treasury. The Gila County Sheriff's Office established a separate
revenue account for state, local, Department of Justice, and Department of the Treasury
forfeiture funds. Interest income generated must be accounted for in the appropriate
federal forfeiture fund account.



Recommendation
The Gila County Sheriff's Office requests the Gila County Board of Supervisors' approval on
the Annual Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification Report.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Annual Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification Report between the
Gila County Sheriff's Office, U.S. Department of Justice, and U.S. Department of Treasury
to participate in the federal equitable sharing program for fiscal year 2011-2012, all of
which pertains to the use of federally forfeited cash, property, proceeds and any interest
earned thereon.

Attachments
Equitable Sharing Agreement Report
Legal Explanation













GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.  



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.  



   

ARF-1330     Consent Agenda Item      4- B             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Nancy Neumann,
Administrative Clerk

Submitted By: Nancy Neumann, Administrative Clerk,
Sheriff's Office

Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: 2013 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

7/1/2012 to
6/30/2013

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Drug, Gang and Violent Crime Control Grant
Agreement for FY 2013 Cycle 26 Award (ACJC# DC-13-036)

Background Information
The Gila County Sheriff's Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Task Force has been in operation
since its inception in 1988. Since 1988, the Gila County Sheriff's Office each year has
applied for and received a grant award from the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission
through its Drug, Gang and Violent Crime Control Program.

The mission of the Gila County Drug, Gang and Violent Crime Task Force is to protect life,
property and the rights of individuals by using multi agency efforts with participating
agencies to reduce drug, gang and violent crime related investigations. The primary
objective is to disrupt drug sales, interdict and dismantle drug trafficking and drug
organizations as well as to promote education and awareness to the citizens of Gila County
and to secure the welfare of the public. It will also assist in identifying local gang affiliated
members in conjunction with the Gang and Immigration Intelligence Team Enforcement
Mission and the U.S. Marshall's Office and assist Gila County detectives with violent
crimes such as homicides, abductions, and jail crime investigations.

Evaluation
The Gila County Drug, Gang and Violent Crime Task Force's ultimate initiative is to protect
life, property and the rights of individuals. A letter dated June 20, 2012, was sent to Sheriff
John Armer from the Program Manager of the AJCJ Drug, Gang and Violent Crime Control
Program advising that a FY 2013 Cycle 26 Grant Award in the amount of $344,288 is
being awarded to the Gila County Sheriff's Office providing that the Grant Agreement is
approved by the Board of Supervisors, signed and returned to the ACJC within 90 days of
the grant award letter dated June 20, 2012.

Conclusion
In order to receive continued funding for the Gila County Drug, Gang and Violent Crime



In order to receive continued funding for the Gila County Drug, Gang and Violent Crime
Task Force, the Board of Supervisors needs to officially accept the grant award by
executing the Grant Agreement, and the Sheriff's Office needs to return the signed Grant
Agreement to ACJC within 90 days of June 20, 2012.

Recommendation
The Gila County Sheriff's Office recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve a
Grant Agreement between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the ACJC through its Drug,
Gang and Violent Crime Control Program, which is in the amount of $344,288 for fiscal
year 2013.

The total to be paid by the Commission under this Agreement shall not exceed $181,784 in
federal funds awarded to the Commission by the U.S. Department of Justice (USDOJ),
Office of Justice Programs (OJP) and $93,646 in state funds. The matching amount for this
award is $68,858 which will be funded through the Sheriff's Office Specialized Funds
under the Sheriff's Office annual 2012-2013 fiscal year budget.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Drug, Gang and Violent Crime
Control Grant Agreement (FY 2013 Grant Cycle 26 Award - ACJC Grant No. DC-13-036)
awarded to the Gila County Sheriff's Office to provide continued funding for the Gila
County Drug, Gang and Violent Crime Task Force in the amount of $344,288  ($181,784 in
federal funds, $93,646 in state funds and $68,858 in matching funds from the Sheriff's
Office Specialized Funds) for the period July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2013.

Attachments
DGVCC Grant Agreement for FY2013
Legal Explanation













































GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.  



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.  



   

ARF-1346     Consent Agenda Item      4- C             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Barbara Valencia, WIA Department
Program Manager

Submitted By: Barbara Valencia, WIA Department
Program Manager, Community Services
Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: WIA Department
Fiscal Year: Program Year 2012 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2009 - June 30, 2014 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. DE101056001) with Arizona Department of
Economic Security.

Background Information
The purpose of this Intergovernmental Agreement is to provide the required One-Stop services outlined in the
Workforce Investment Act of 1998.  As a mandated partner in the One-Stop Delivery System, the Arizona
Department of Economic Security shall provide REPAC (Re-Employment and Placement Assistance Center) the
necessary office space to perform work duties. 

May 4, 2010 - The Board of Supervisors approved the original contract DE101056001.

May 7, 2011 - The Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 1, which revised Indirect Charges to 19.54%.

September 20, 2011 - The Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 2 which removed work spaces in Lake
Havasu.

Evaluation
Gila County REPAC (Re-Employment and Placement Assistance Center) is no longer based in Safford; therfore
Contract No. DE101056001 has been terminated.

Conclusion
Amendment No. 3 to the Intergovernmental Agreement between the Arizona Department of Economic Security
and Gila County has been revised as follows:

Pursuant to Paragraph 33.3 Termination, Section 3.3.1 at the Contractor's request and mutually agreed upon
by both parties, the contract is terminated effective July 1, 2012.

Recommendation
Recommendation to approve Amendment No. 3 to the Intergovernmental Agreement No. DE101056001 between
Arizona Department of Economic Security and Gila County pursuant to Paragraph 33.3
Termination, Section 3.3.1 at the Contractor's request and mutually agreed upon by both parties, the contract
is terminated effective July 1, 2012.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. DE101056001) between the
Arizona Department of Economic Security and Gila County pursuant to Paragraph 33.3 Termination, Section
3.3.1 at the Contractor's request and mutually agreed upon by both parties, the contract is terminated effective
July 1, 2012.

Attachments
Amendment No. 3 Contract DE101056001
Amendment No. 2 DE101056001
Amendment No. 1 DE101056001
Original Contract DE101056001





























































   

ARF-1356     Consent Agenda Item      4- D             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Kendall Rhyne,
Chief Probation
Officer

Submitted By: Lisa King, Administrative Clerk Sr.,
Superior Court

Department: Superior Court Division: Probation Department
Fiscal Year: 2013 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

April 1, 2012 to
March 31, 2013

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. A11PC00100 between the Bureau of Indian Affairs and
Gila County, on behalf of the Gila County Juvenile Detention Center.

Background Information
The Gila County Juvenile Detention Center has contracted with the Bureau of Indian
Affairs for several years.  The detention center provides services to the Bureau of Indian
Affairs by contracting bed space for tribal juveniles at a rate of $131.40 per day per juvenile
from the jurisdiction of the Bureau of Indian Affairs - Office of Justice Services, Tribes,
Truxton Canon Agency, Fort Apache Agency, Colorado River Agency, Salt River Agency,
including within the exterior boundaries of the Indian Reservation(s) and Indian Allotments.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. A11PC00100 decreases the total contract amount by
$17,000 changing the previous total contract amount from $100,400 to a grand total
contract amount of $83.400.  Each year at the approach of the fiscal year ending
(September 30th), the federal government agencies review their budgets and try to spend
the funds before the end of the fiscal year or risk having the budget reduced for the
following year. The $17,000 reduction in this contract is a reflection of the fact that Gila
County has not been requested to house any youth for the Bureau of Indian Affairs for
several months so the Bureau is reallocating those funds for other purposes and thereby
reducing the amount of the contract with Gila County. 

Conclusion
Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. A11PC00100 allows the Gila County Juvenile Detention
Center to continue providing services to the Bureau of Indian Affairs at a decreased total
contract amount of $83,400.

Recommendation
The Gila County Probation Department recommends approval of Amendment No. 4 to
Contract No. A11PC00100 with the Bureau of Indian Affairs.

Suggested Motion



Approval of Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. A11PC00100 between the Bureau of Indian
Affairs and Gila County, on behalf of the Gila County Juvenile Detention Center,
decreasing the total contract amount by $17,000 for a grand total contract amount of
$83,400 for payment coverage of continuing detention services.

Attachments
Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. A11PC00100
Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. A11PC00100
Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. A11PC00100
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. A11PC00100
BIA Contract No. A11PC00100
Legal Explanation











































































































GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.  



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.  



   

ARF-1368     Consent Agenda Item      4- E             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Christine Rocha, Health Programs
Manager

Submitted By: Christine Rocha
Health Programs Manager
Health & Emergency Services Division

Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Health Services
Fiscal Year: 2012-2013 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2012 through June 30,2013 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. HG060003) with the Arizona Department of
Health Services.

Background Information
The Gila County Department of Health (Prevention) has been providing tobacco education and prevention for the
past fifteen years. The vision statement is for Gila County youth to be tobacco-free while protecting non-smokers
(including children and adults) from environmental tobacco access to state-of-the-art cessation services.

Evaluation
This funding will allow the Gila County Department of Health (Prevention) the ability to continue to provide the
tobacco free environments program. The program uses the following strategies: prevent initiation of tobacco use
among youth, eliminate exposure to secondhand smoke and promote cessation services to help smokers quit,
reduce one of the four leading causes of chronic disease death in Arizona through advancement of school health
policies.

Conclusion
Without this funding Gila County would be unable to provide tobacco free education and support to Gila County
residents.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Director of Health & Emergency Services that the Board of Supervisors approve
Amendment No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. HG060003) with the Arizona Department of
Health Services in the amount of $135,000 to extend tobacco free services from July 1, 2012, through June 30,
2013.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. HG060003) between the Arizona
Department of Health Services and the Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services in the amount of
$135,000 to extend tobacco free services from July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2013.

Attachments
Amendment No. 3 to IGA No. HG060003
Original IGA No. HG060003
Revised Price Sheet
Revised Attachment A to Contract # HG060003
Legal Explanation

































































GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.  



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.  



   

ARF-1361     Consent Agenda Item      4- F             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, CAP/Housing Services
Manager

Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Executive
Administrative Assistant, Community
Services Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.

Information
Request/Subject
OEP Contract No. EW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2 Weatherization Low Income Assistance Agreement

Background Information
For the past 10 years, the Gila County Division of Community Services, Weatherization Program, has applied
for and received low income weatherization dollars to serve the low income population of Gila County.  The
Weatherization Program is the designated agency that provides weatherization services through the State of
Arizona, Governor's Office of Energy Policy.

The purpose of the Weatherization Assistance Program is to install energy-efficient measures in the homes of
income eligible persons, especially homes occupied by the elderly, persons with disabilities, and children.  The
recipients of this program also benefit by using less utilities, therefore saving money on their utility bills.

Evaluation
Funding from this contract will provide weatherization services to eligible citizens residing in Gila County that
meet program income eligibility.  Besides providing services to County residents, funding from this contract will
also help many local contractors that are struggling to keep their business operating and keep staff employed
during these uncertain economic times.  All contractors utilized to provide services are required to become
Building Pressure Institute certified.

Conclusion
By approving this Agreement, the Gila County Weatherization program will use unspent Department of Energy
funds from Fiscal Year 2012 to continue to provide weatherization services to eligible citizens residing in Gila
County.

Recommendation
The Community Action Program Housing Services Manager recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve
this Contract.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a Weatherization Low Income Assistance Agreement (OEP Contract No. EW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2)
between the State of Arizona, Governor's Office of Energy Policy, and the Gila County Division of Community
Services, Housing Services, to continue to provide weatherization services to eligible citizens residing in Gila
County, using the remaining unspent Department of Energy funds assigned to the Gila County Weatherization
Program from Fiscal Year 2012; amount to be determined and contract is effective upon signature by both
parties through June 30, 2013.

Attachments
OEP Contract No. EW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2
Legal Explanation





















































































































GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.  



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.  



   

ARF-1365     Consent Agenda Item      4- G             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, CAP/Housing Services
Manager

Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Executive
Administrative Assistant, Community
Services Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 5 to Contract No. DE111073001 with Arizona Department of Economic Security

Background Information
The Community Action Network is made up of public and private agencies that work to alleviate poverty and
empower low-income families in communities throughout Arizona.  Most of the agencies are Community Action
Agencies (CAAs), created through the Economic Opportunity Act of 1964.  CAAs provide services to more than
150,000 people annually.

They coordinate emergency assistance, provide weatherization services, sponsor youth programs, operate senior
centers and provide transportation in rural areas.  CAAs provide linkage to job training opportunities, GED
preparation courses and vocational education programs.  They provide a range of services addressing
poverty-related problems from income management and credit counseling to entrepreneurial development and
small business incubators; from domestic violence crisis assistance to family development programs and
parenting classes, food pantries and emergency shelters to low income housing development and community
revitalization projects.

Evaluation
Allowable activities are designed to assist low-income families and individuals to remove obstacles and solve
problems that block the achievement of self sufficiency to secure and retain meaningful employment, attain
adequate education, make better use of available income, obtain and maintain adequate housing, and obtain
emergency assistance.  Community Services:  the primary objectives of this service are to strengthen
community capabilities for planning and coordinating the use of a broad range of resources related to the
elimination of poverty.  Case Management:  components of this emergency service include short-term crisis
services and utility assistance services, case management services, emergency shelter, homeless services,
move-in assistance, senior services, eviction prevention, and utility assistance.

Conclusion
Amendment No. 5 to Contract No. DE111073001 changes the requirements for Contractors and subcontractor
staff who provide direct services to juveniles or vulnerable adults. 

Recommendation
The Community Action Program Housing Services Manager recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve
this amendment.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 5 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. DE111073001) between the
Arizona Department of Economic Security and Gila County Division of Community Services, Housing Services,
requiring Contractors and subcontractor staff who are required or allowed to provide services directly to
juveniles or vulnerable adults to possess a fingerprint clearance card that meets Level One requirements
effective on the date of last signature through June 30, 2013.

Attachments
Amendment No. 5 to Contract DE111073001 AZ Dept. of Eonomic Security
Amendment No. 4 to Contract DE111073001 AZ Dept. of Economic Security
Amendment No. 3 to Contract DE111073001 AZ Dept. of Economic Security
Amendment No. 2 to Contract De111073001 AZ Dept. of Economic Security
Amendment No. 1 to Contract DE111073001 AZ Dept. of Economic Security
Original Contract DE111073001 AZ Dept. of Economic Security
Legal Explanation





























































































































































GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.  



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.  



   

ARF-1360     Consent Agenda Item      4- H             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Linda Eastlick,
Elections Director

Submitted By: David Rogers, Elections Specialist,
Elections Department

Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreements for Election Services between Gila County and Pine Creek
Canyon Domestic Water Improvement District and Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement
District.

Background Information
The Gila County Recorder's Office and Elections Department perform election services for
various governmental agencies and special districts within Gila County. 

Changes to County policy with regard to the conduct of jurisdictional elections were
adopted by the Board of Supervisors on February 7, 2012.  These changes provide for a
master intergovernmental agreement to be signed for each participating jurisdiction.  Each
master agreement will remain in effect unless one of the parties cancels the agreement.  

A Menu of Services will be completed for each election.  The Menu includes a fee schedule
for each type of service requested of the Recorder's Office or Elections Department.  

Evaluation
The Pine Creek Canyon Domestic Water Improvement District and the Rim Trail Domestic
Water Improvement District have requested that Gila County conduct their governing
board member elections.

Conclusion
At this time, the Pine Creek Canyon Domestic Water Improvement District and the Rim
Trail Domestic Water Improvement District wish to enter into Master Agreements with Gila
County for election services.

Recommendation
The Elections Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the
Intergovernmental Agreements for Election Services between Gila County and the Pine
Creek Canyon Domestic Water Improvement District and between Gila County and the Rim
Trail Domestic Water Improvement District.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Intergovernmental Agreements for Election Services between Gila County and
the Pine Creek Canyon Domestic Water Improvement District and between Gila County
and the Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement District to provide election services.

Attachments
IGA with Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement District



IGA with Pine Creek Canyon Domestic Water Improvement District
Menu of Services
Legal Explanation























GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA

JURISDICTION MENU OF SERVICES

Page 1

Yes No
Offices to be Elected:

6

Yes No

Yes No

Jurisdiction Name

Candidates?  (If Yes, complete section below)

Ballot Question? (If Yes, complete section below by identifying type and number of measures)

1
2
3
4
5

Number to Elect

Cell Phone Fax
Home Phone Alternate No.

Election Date

No. Registered Voters

Home Phone Alternate No.

Primary Contact
Work Phone
Cell Phone
Home Phone

Email
Fax
Alternate No.

The Jurisdiction is responsible for meeting with BOTH the Gila County Recorder AND the Gila 
County Department of Elections Director to complete this Menu of Services for each election

Last Day for Candidate Filing

Attorney Contact
Work Phone Email

Secondary Contact
Work Phone Email
Cell Phone Fax

Last Day to Register

Election Title

Copy of action calling election attached?

Due Date
Meeting minutes, resolution, notice of election, etc.  If not 
attached, enter date when information will be sent.



GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA

JURISDICTION MENU OF SERVICES

Page 2

YES NO Resp Cost

Recorder $2.50
Recorder $0.50
Recorder $3.00
Recorder $3.00
Recorder
Recorder $0.05
Recorder $0.01
Recorder $3.00
Recorder $0.10
Recorder $0.05
Recorder $0.20
Recorder $6.00
Elections $25.00/hour
Elections $1.50
Elections $0.50
Elections $100.00
Elections Actual Cost
Elections Actual Cost
Elections Actual Cost
Elections $17.00/hour
Elections $25.00

Touchscreen Unit Price per Unit Elections $25.00
Elections $25.00

  CD per CD-Rom

Registers/Rosters per Name
Roster Paper 
Registers/Rosters per Set

Accu-Vote Ballot Scanner Price per Unit

  Printed per Name
  Electronic per Name Plus Cost of Media

Memory Card Price per Card

Voter Registration or other Voter Lists:

Mailing Labels per Name

Gila County Department of Elections shall email "Unofficial 
Early Results" to the Jurisdiction on election night shortly after 
8:00 pm.  Ballot Tabulation shall be reported to Jurisdiction by 
(Enter Date)

Recruit and Train Election Workers

Provisional and Conditional Ballot Verification per ballot

Basic Fee for Service per Registered Voter (Special or Not Consolidated)

Ballot Question per Question

Due Date

Early Ballot/120-Day Notice Processing per Ballot Mailed Out 
(includes outgoing postage)

Early Ballot Signature Verification per Signature

Mail       Pick-up       Delivery

Storage and Retention.  All materials related to the election 
including signature rosters, voted ballots, official envelopes, 
early ballots, etc. are the property of the Jurisdiction.  County 
shall return materials via (Select Which Method is Preferred) 

Sample Ballot Mailing

US Dept of Justice Pre-Clearance (if Jurisdiction desires the County to create)

Ballot Layout and Printing

Petition Signature Verification per Signature

Indicate with an "X" Services to be Performed by the County

Due Date

Basic Fee for Service per Registered Voter (Consolidated Election)

Sample Ballot Creation

Ballot layout information including candidate names and ballot 
question text must be provided to the Gila County Department 
of Elections by the Jurisdiction no later than 5:00 pm 90 days 
prior to the election (Enter Date)

Logic and Accuracy Tests will be performed by the Gila 
County Department of Elections at 5515 S Apache Ave, 
Globe, AZ on  (Enter Date) Date



GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA

JURISDICTION MENU OF SERVICES

Page 3

Recorder 
and 

Elections $17.00/hour
Recorder 

and 
Elections $25.50/hour
Recorder 

and 
Elections

Min. Wage  
(Currently 

$7.65/hour)

Recorder 
and 

Elections

County   
Rate 

(Currently 
$0.51/mile)

Recorder 
and 

Elections Actual Cost
Recorder 

and 
Elections Actual Cost
Recorder 

and 
Elections $25.00
Recorder 

and 
Elections Actual Cost

Ballot Box (Price per Box)

Date

  Gila County Recorder
  Gila County Department of Elections

Gila County Recorder Authorized Signature

Additional Services (as requested by the Jurisdiction) will be 
billed at actual cost. Such services may include consulting 
fees, special reports, computer programming, etc.

County Personnel Labor Rate 

County Personnel Overtime Labor Rate

Estimated Cost of Elections

Gila County Department of Elections Authorized Signature

Date

Date

Jurisdiction Authorized Signature

Mileage Reimbursement

Temporary Early Board or Other Worker Rate

Additional Services Requested (Specify)

Written Spanish Translation

Postage



GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.  



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.  



   

ARF-1359     Consent Agenda Item      4- I             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Linda Eastlick,
Elections Director

Submitted By: Linda Eastlick, Elections Director,
Elections Department

Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Order to Cancel Precinct Committeeman elections.

Background Information
ARS 16-410 provides that if the total number of persons who file a nomination petition for
a candidate and the number of persons who file a nomination paper for a write-in
candidate is less than or equal to the number of positions to be filled, the county board of
supervisors may cancel the election no earlier than seventy-five days before the election
and appoint the person or persons who filed the nomination petition or nomination paper. 
A person who is appointed pursuant to this subsection is fully vested with the powers and
duties of the office as if elected to that office. 

Evaluation
Precinct committeeman elections are covered by this statute.

Conclusion
In those precincts where the number of candidates filing nomination petitions or write-in
nomination papers is less than or equal to the number of positions available, it is
permissible to cancel these elections

Recommendation
The Elections Director recommends the Board of Supervisors approve the Order to cancel
precinct elections and appoint the precinct committeeman shown on Attachment A.

Suggested Motion
Adoption of an Order canceling precinct elections and appointing the precinct
committeemen shown on Attachment A attached to Order who have filed nomination
petitions or nominating papers for precinct committeeman of their party in the precinct
shown.

Attachments
ARS 16-410
Order to Cancel PC Elections
Attachment A - PC Listing





ORDER

ORDER OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS TO CANCEL PRECINCT 
ELECTIONS AND APPOINT PRECINCT COMMITTEEMEN WHO HAVE FILED 
NOMINATING PETITIONS.

WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. §16-410(A) if the total number of persons who file a nomination
petition for a candidate and the number of persons who file a nomination paper for a write-in candidate is 
less than or equal to the number of positions to be filled, the county board of supervisors may cancel the 
election no sooner than seventy-five days before the election and appoint the person or persons who 
filed the nomination petition or nomination paper A precinct committeeman who is appointed 
pursuant to this subsection is fully vested with the powers and duties of the office as if elected to that
office.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED, that the Board of Supervisors does hereby 
cancel precinct elections and appoint the precinct committeemen shown on Attachment A who 
have filed nomination petitions or nomination papers for precinct committeeman of their party in 
the precinct shown.

DATED this 7th day of August, 2012, in Globe, Gila County, Arizona.

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

_____________________________________
Tommie C. Martin, Chairman

Attest:

_________________________________
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk



ATTACHMENT A
GILA COUNTY

2012 Precinct Committeemen Appointments

Page 1Page 1

DEMOCRATIC PC'S

Precinct Name

Central Heights Hays, Patsy

Claypool 1 Johnson, Cedric, Sr.
Mancha, Rose

Claypool 3 Johnson, Curtis L.

Globe 1 Nye, Mickie

Globe 2 Casillas, Carmen

Globe 6 Bishop, Matthew
Globe 6 Rodriguez, Shaya

Globe 7 Lenox, Gail

Globe 8 Gardea, Peter  B.
Globe 8 Overgaard, Gayl W.

Miami 3 Hurtado, Marivel,
Hurtado, Susana

Payson 3 Foster, Gerald W.
Payson 3 Herbster, Myra J.
Payson 3 Spears, Fern T.
Payson 3 Tilley, Christine

Payson 5 Schriner, George
Payson 5 Schriner, Shirley A.

Payson 8 Blair, Ed
Payson 8 Whitely, Maxine
Payson 8 Whitely, Sydney

Pine-Strawberry East Lawler, Nan
Pine-Strawberry East Semrad, Sherry



ATTACHMENT A
GILA COUNTY

2012 Precinct Committeemen Appointments

Page 2Page 2

REPUBLICAN PC'S

Precinct Name

Central Heights Cook, Shawna
Central Heights Mitchell, Tammy

Claypool 2 Stubbs, Darrell

Copper Basin Clark, Charles
Copper Basin Clark, Pat

Gisela Haught, Frieda
Gisela O'Connell, Judith

Globe 4 McDonald, Donald

Globe 11 Klinger, Fred
Globe 11 Neldon, Ron
Globe 11 Werrell, Bradley

Payson 1 Begay, Paige
Payson 1 Spurlock, Nancy
Payson 1y Spurlock, Patp

Payson 2 Castleman, Don
Payson 2 Dye, Shirley Jean
Payson 2 Langham, Jeanie
Payson 2 Langham, Stan
Payson 2 Levenson, Lewis M.
Payson 2 Loyd, Jeffrey M.
Payson 2 Shepherd, Barbara
Payson 2 Wales, Bruce

Payson 3 Bailey, Cheryl M.
Payson 3 Bailey, John Douglas
Payson 3 Baran, Diane
Payson 3 Baran, Ronald
Payson 3 Dorgan, Penny
Payson 3 Grennon, Vincent Xavier
Payson 3 Hathhorn, Lolly



ATTACHMENT A
GILA COUNTY

2012 Precinct Committeemen Appointments

Page 3Page 3

REPUBLICAN PC'S

Payson 3 Jackson, Patricia
Payson 3 Justice, Elouise
Payson 3 Lucas, Ted
Payson 3 Schuler, Suecarol

Payson 4 Brown, Colleen
Payson 4 Brown, Howard

Payson 5 Campbell, Sharon J.
Payson 5 Flider, David
Payson 5 Joyner, Monica
Payson 5 Kirch, Mark
Payson 5 Low, Kathleen
Payson 5 Low, Richard
Payson 5 Powers, William Dollar "Bill"

Payson 6 Barton, Brenda
Payson 6 Chase, Carol
Payson 6 Chase, Ronald
Payson 6 Coffman, William
Payson 6 Silcock, Elizabeth

Payson 7 Cool, Vickie
Payson 7 Dudley, June
Payson 7 Friestad, Gregory D. 
Payson 7 Friestad, Sharyn C.

Payson 8 Cox, Nancy A.
Payson 8 Randall, Wanda Peterson
Payson 8 Salwitz, Georgia
Payson 8 Steely, Patricia
Payson 8 Williams, Janet

Pine-Strawberry East Grau, Linda
Pine-Strawberry East O'Dell, Ken
Pine-Strawberry East O'Dell, Linda



ATTACHMENT A
GILA COUNTY

2012 Precinct Committeemen Appointments

Page 4Page 4

REPUBLICAN PC'S

Pine-Strawberry West Fuller, Jeanne
Pine-Strawberry West Mickley, Kathie
Pine-Strawberry West Mickley, Michael W.
Pine-Strawberry West Morris, Gary Preston
Pine-Strawberry West Mortensen, Charlotte
Pine-Strawberry West Mortensen, Marvin
Pine-Strawberry West Prechtel, David

Roosevelt Burruel, Harold
Roosevelt Burruel, Pamela

Star Valley Durst, Lynn E.
Star Valley Hibbert, Robert W.
Star Valley Ihle, Patricia
Star Valley Knoner, Don
Star Valley Knoner, Marylyn
Star Valley McKinney, Paul A.
Star Valley Rowe, Joanne G.
Star Valley Sanders, Randi
Star Valley Seeman, Kenneth

Tonto Basin Bernard, Madra
Tonto Basin Davis, Florence Marie
Tonto Basin Mitchell-Givler, Rosanne
Tonto Basin Roberson, Patricia

Whispering Pines Ascoli, Anne
Whispering Pines Ascoli, Don M.

Young LeFevre, M. Dee
Young Wilson, Irv



   

ARF-1391     Consent Agenda Item      4- J             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Linda Eastlick,
Elections Director

Submitted By: David Rogers, Elections Specialist,
Elections Department

Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement for Election Services between Gila County and Whispering
Pines Domestic Water Improvement District.

Background Information
The Gila County Recorder's Office and Department of Elections perform election services
for various governmental agencies and special districts within Gila County.

Changes to County policy with regard to the conduct of jurisdictional elections were
adopted by the Board of Supervisors on February 7, 2012.  These changes provide for a
master intergovernmental agreement to be signed for each participating jurisdiction.  Each
master agreement will remain in effect unless one of the parties cancels the agreement.

A Menu of Services will be completed for each election.  The Menu includes a fee schedule
for each type of service requested of the Recorder's Office or Department of Elections.

Evaluation
The Whispering Pines Domestic Water Improvement District has requested that Gila
County conduct its governing board member elections.

Conclusion
At this time, the Whispering Pines Domestic Water Improvement District wishes to enter
into an Intergovernmental Agreement with Gila County whereby Gila County will
provide election services.

Recommendation
The Elections Director recommends the Board of Supervisors approve the
Intergovernmental Agreement for Election Services between Gila County and the
Whispering Pines Domestic Water Improvement District.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement for Election Services between Gila County
and the Whispering Pines Domestic Water Improvement District.

Attachments
IGA with Whispering Pines Domestic Water Improvement District
Menu of Services
Legal Explanation













GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA

JURISDICTION MENU OF SERVICES

Page 1

Yes No
Offices to be Elected:

6

Yes No

Yes No

Jurisdiction Name

Candidates?  (If Yes, complete section below)

Ballot Question? (If Yes, complete section below by identifying type and number of measures)

1
2
3
4
5

Number to Elect

Cell Phone Fax
Home Phone Alternate No.

Election Date

No. Registered Voters

Home Phone Alternate No.

Primary Contact
Work Phone
Cell Phone
Home Phone

Email
Fax
Alternate No.

The Jurisdiction is responsible for meeting with BOTH the Gila County Recorder AND the Gila 
County Department of Elections Director to complete this Menu of Services for each election

Last Day for Candidate Filing

Attorney Contact
Work Phone Email

Secondary Contact
Work Phone Email
Cell Phone Fax

Last Day to Register

Election Title

Copy of action calling election attached?

Due Date
Meeting minutes, resolution, notice of election, etc.  If not 
attached, enter date when information will be sent.



GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA

JURISDICTION MENU OF SERVICES

Page 2

YES NO Resp Cost

Recorder $2.50
Recorder $0.50
Recorder $3.00
Recorder $3.00
Recorder
Recorder $0.05
Recorder $0.01
Recorder $3.00
Recorder $0.10
Recorder $0.05
Recorder $0.20
Recorder $6.00
Elections $25.00/hour
Elections $1.50
Elections $0.50
Elections $100.00
Elections Actual Cost
Elections Actual Cost
Elections Actual Cost
Elections $17.00/hour
Elections $25.00

Touchscreen Unit Price per Unit Elections $25.00
Elections $25.00

  CD per CD-Rom

Registers/Rosters per Name
Roster Paper 
Registers/Rosters per Set

Accu-Vote Ballot Scanner Price per Unit

  Printed per Name
  Electronic per Name Plus Cost of Media

Memory Card Price per Card

Voter Registration or other Voter Lists:

Mailing Labels per Name

Gila County Department of Elections shall email "Unofficial 
Early Results" to the Jurisdiction on election night shortly after 
8:00 pm.  Ballot Tabulation shall be reported to Jurisdiction by 
(Enter Date)

Recruit and Train Election Workers

Provisional and Conditional Ballot Verification per ballot

Basic Fee for Service per Registered Voter (Special or Not Consolidated)

Ballot Question per Question

Due Date

Early Ballot/120-Day Notice Processing per Ballot Mailed Out 
(includes outgoing postage)

Early Ballot Signature Verification per Signature

Mail       Pick-up       Delivery

Storage and Retention.  All materials related to the election 
including signature rosters, voted ballots, official envelopes, 
early ballots, etc. are the property of the Jurisdiction.  County 
shall return materials via (Select Which Method is Preferred) 

Sample Ballot Mailing

US Dept of Justice Pre-Clearance (if Jurisdiction desires the County to create)

Ballot Layout and Printing

Petition Signature Verification per Signature

Indicate with an "X" Services to be Performed by the County

Due Date

Basic Fee for Service per Registered Voter (Consolidated Election)

Sample Ballot Creation

Ballot layout information including candidate names and ballot 
question text must be provided to the Gila County Department 
of Elections by the Jurisdiction no later than 5:00 pm 90 days 
prior to the election (Enter Date)

Logic and Accuracy Tests will be performed by the Gila 
County Department of Elections at 5515 S Apache Ave, 
Globe, AZ on  (Enter Date) Date



GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA

JURISDICTION MENU OF SERVICES

Page 3

Recorder 
and 

Elections $17.00/hour
Recorder 

and 
Elections $25.50/hour
Recorder 

and 
Elections

Min. Wage  
(Currently 

$7.65/hour)

Recorder 
and 

Elections

County   
Rate 

(Currently 
$0.51/mile)

Recorder 
and 

Elections Actual Cost
Recorder 

and 
Elections Actual Cost
Recorder 

and 
Elections $25.00
Recorder 

and 
Elections Actual Cost

Ballot Box (Price per Box)

Date

  Gila County Recorder
  Gila County Department of Elections

Gila County Recorder Authorized Signature

Additional Services (as requested by the Jurisdiction) will be 
billed at actual cost. Such services may include consulting 
fees, special reports, computer programming, etc.

County Personnel Labor Rate 

County Personnel Overtime Labor Rate

Estimated Cost of Elections

Gila County Department of Elections Authorized Signature

Date

Date

Jurisdiction Authorized Signature

Mileage Reimbursement

Temporary Early Board or Other Worker Rate

Additional Services Requested (Specify)

Written Spanish Translation

Postage



GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.  



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.  



   

ARF-1392     Consent Agenda Item      4- K             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Linda Eastlick,
Elections Director

Submitted By: David Rogers, Elections Specialist,
Elections Department

Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement for Election Services between Gila County and the Gila
County School Superintendent.

Background Information
The Gila County Recorder's Office and Department of Elections perform election services
for various governmental agencies and special districts within Gila County.

Changes to County policy with regard to the conduct of jurisdictional elections were
adopted by the Board of Supervisors on February 7, 2012.  These changes provide for a
master intergovernmental agreement to be signed for each participating jurisdiction.  Each
master agreement will remain in effect unless one of the parties cancels the agreement.

A Menu of Services will be completed for each election.  The Menu includes a fee schedule
for each type of service requested of the Recorder's Office or Department of Elections.

Evaluation
The Gila County School Superintendent has requested Gila County conduct their governing
board member elections.

Conclusion
At this time, the Gila County School Superintendent wishes to enter into a  Master
Agreement with Gila County for election services.

Recommendation
The Elections Director recommends the Board of Supervisors approve the
Intergovernmental Agreement for Election Services between Gila County and the Gila
County School Superintendent.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement for Election Services between Gila County
and the Gila County School Superintendent.

Attachments
IGA with Gila County School Superintendent
Menu of Services
Legal Explanation















GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA

JURISDICTION MENU OF SERVICES

Page 1

Yes No
Offices to be Elected:

6

Yes No

Yes No

Jurisdiction Name

Candidates?  (If Yes, complete section below)

Ballot Question? (If Yes, complete section below by identifying type and number of measures)

1
2
3
4
5

Number to Elect

Cell Phone Fax
Home Phone Alternate No.

Election Date

No. Registered Voters

Home Phone Alternate No.

Primary Contact
Work Phone
Cell Phone
Home Phone

Email
Fax
Alternate No.

The Jurisdiction is responsible for meeting with BOTH the Gila County Recorder AND the Gila 
County Department of Elections Director to complete this Menu of Services for each election

Last Day for Candidate Filing

Attorney Contact
Work Phone Email

Secondary Contact
Work Phone Email
Cell Phone Fax

Last Day to Register

Election Title

Copy of action calling election attached?

Due Date
Meeting minutes, resolution, notice of election, etc.  If not 
attached, enter date when information will be sent.



GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA

JURISDICTION MENU OF SERVICES

Page 2

YES NO Resp Cost

Recorder $2.50
Recorder $0.50
Recorder $3.00
Recorder $3.00
Recorder
Recorder $0.05
Recorder $0.01
Recorder $3.00
Recorder $0.10
Recorder $0.05
Recorder $0.20
Recorder $6.00
Elections $25.00/hour
Elections $1.50
Elections $0.50
Elections $100.00
Elections Actual Cost
Elections Actual Cost
Elections Actual Cost
Elections $17.00/hour
Elections $25.00

Touchscreen Unit Price per Unit Elections $25.00
Elections $25.00

  CD per CD-Rom

Registers/Rosters per Name
Roster Paper 
Registers/Rosters per Set

Accu-Vote Ballot Scanner Price per Unit

  Printed per Name
  Electronic per Name Plus Cost of Media

Memory Card Price per Card

Voter Registration or other Voter Lists:

Mailing Labels per Name

Gila County Department of Elections shall email "Unofficial 
Early Results" to the Jurisdiction on election night shortly after 
8:00 pm.  Ballot Tabulation shall be reported to Jurisdiction by 
(Enter Date)

Recruit and Train Election Workers

Provisional and Conditional Ballot Verification per ballot

Basic Fee for Service per Registered Voter (Special or Not Consolidated)

Ballot Question per Question

Due Date

Early Ballot/120-Day Notice Processing per Ballot Mailed Out 
(includes outgoing postage)

Early Ballot Signature Verification per Signature

Mail       Pick-up       Delivery

Storage and Retention.  All materials related to the election 
including signature rosters, voted ballots, official envelopes, 
early ballots, etc. are the property of the Jurisdiction.  County 
shall return materials via (Select Which Method is Preferred) 

Sample Ballot Mailing

US Dept of Justice Pre-Clearance (if Jurisdiction desires the County to create)

Ballot Layout and Printing

Petition Signature Verification per Signature

Indicate with an "X" Services to be Performed by the County

Due Date

Basic Fee for Service per Registered Voter (Consolidated Election)

Sample Ballot Creation

Ballot layout information including candidate names and ballot 
question text must be provided to the Gila County Department 
of Elections by the Jurisdiction no later than 5:00 pm 90 days 
prior to the election (Enter Date)

Logic and Accuracy Tests will be performed by the Gila 
County Department of Elections at 5515 S Apache Ave, 
Globe, AZ on  (Enter Date) Date



GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA

JURISDICTION MENU OF SERVICES

Page 3

Recorder 
and 

Elections $17.00/hour
Recorder 

and 
Elections $25.50/hour
Recorder 

and 
Elections

Min. Wage  
(Currently 

$7.65/hour)

Recorder 
and 

Elections

County   
Rate 

(Currently 
$0.51/mile)

Recorder 
and 

Elections Actual Cost
Recorder 

and 
Elections Actual Cost
Recorder 

and 
Elections $25.00
Recorder 

and 
Elections Actual Cost

Ballot Box (Price per Box)

Date

  Gila County Recorder
  Gila County Department of Elections

Gila County Recorder Authorized Signature

Additional Services (as requested by the Jurisdiction) will be 
billed at actual cost. Such services may include consulting 
fees, special reports, computer programming, etc.

County Personnel Labor Rate 

County Personnel Overtime Labor Rate

Estimated Cost of Elections

Gila County Department of Elections Authorized Signature

Date

Date

Jurisdiction Authorized Signature

Mileage Reimbursement

Temporary Early Board or Other Worker Rate

Additional Services Requested (Specify)

Written Spanish Translation

Postage



GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.  



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.  



   

ARF-1389     Consent Agenda Item      4- L             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Linda Eastlick,
Elections Director

Submitted By: David Rogers, Elections Specialist,
Elections Department

Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement for Election Services between Gila
County and Pine-Strawberry Water Improvement District.

Background Information
The Gila County Recorder's Office and Elections Department perform election services for
various governmental agencies and special districts within Gila County. 

Changes to County policy with regard to the conduct of jurisdictional elections were
adopted by the Board of Supervisors on February 7, 2012.  These changes provide for a
master intergovernmental agreement to be signed for each participating jurisdiction.  Each
master agreement will remain in effect unless one of the parties cancels the agreement.  

A Menu of Services will be completed for each election.  The Menu includes a fee schedule
for each type of service requested of the Recorder's Office or Elections Department.  

Evaluation
The Pine-Strawberry Water Improvement District has requested that Gila County conduct
its governing board member elections.

Conclusion
At this time, the Pine-Strawberry Water Improvement District wishes to enter into
an Intergovernmental Agreement with Gila County whereby Gila County will
provide election services.

Recommendation
It is recommended the Board approve the Intergovernmental Agreement for Election
Services between Gila County and the Pine-Strawberry Water Improvement District.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement for Election Services between Gila
County and the Pine-Strawberry Water Improvement District.

Attachments
IGA with Pine-Strawberry Water Improvement District
Menu of Services
Legal Explanation













GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA

JURISDICTION MENU OF SERVICES

Page 1

Yes No
Offices to be Elected:

6

Yes No

Yes No

Jurisdiction Name

Candidates?  (If Yes, complete section below)

Ballot Question? (If Yes, complete section below by identifying type and number of measures)

1
2
3
4
5

Number to Elect

Cell Phone Fax
Home Phone Alternate No.

Election Date

No. Registered Voters

Home Phone Alternate No.

Primary Contact
Work Phone
Cell Phone
Home Phone

Email
Fax
Alternate No.

The Jurisdiction is responsible for meeting with BOTH the Gila County Recorder AND the Gila 
County Department of Elections Director to complete this Menu of Services for each election

Last Day for Candidate Filing

Attorney Contact
Work Phone Email

Secondary Contact
Work Phone Email
Cell Phone Fax

Last Day to Register

Election Title

Copy of action calling election attached?

Due Date
Meeting minutes, resolution, notice of election, etc.  If not 
attached, enter date when information will be sent.



GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA

JURISDICTION MENU OF SERVICES

Page 2

YES NO Resp Cost

Recorder $2.50
Recorder $0.50
Recorder $3.00
Recorder $3.00
Recorder
Recorder $0.05
Recorder $0.01
Recorder $3.00
Recorder $0.10
Recorder $0.05
Recorder $0.20
Recorder $6.00
Elections $25.00/hour
Elections $1.50
Elections $0.50
Elections $100.00
Elections Actual Cost
Elections Actual Cost
Elections Actual Cost
Elections $17.00/hour
Elections $25.00

Touchscreen Unit Price per Unit Elections $25.00
Elections $25.00

  CD per CD-Rom

Registers/Rosters per Name
Roster Paper 
Registers/Rosters per Set

Accu-Vote Ballot Scanner Price per Unit

  Printed per Name
  Electronic per Name Plus Cost of Media

Memory Card Price per Card

Voter Registration or other Voter Lists:

Mailing Labels per Name

Gila County Department of Elections shall email "Unofficial 
Early Results" to the Jurisdiction on election night shortly after 
8:00 pm.  Ballot Tabulation shall be reported to Jurisdiction by 
(Enter Date)

Recruit and Train Election Workers

Provisional and Conditional Ballot Verification per ballot

Basic Fee for Service per Registered Voter (Special or Not Consolidated)

Ballot Question per Question

Due Date

Early Ballot/120-Day Notice Processing per Ballot Mailed Out 
(includes outgoing postage)

Early Ballot Signature Verification per Signature

Mail       Pick-up       Delivery

Storage and Retention.  All materials related to the election 
including signature rosters, voted ballots, official envelopes, 
early ballots, etc. are the property of the Jurisdiction.  County 
shall return materials via (Select Which Method is Preferred) 

Sample Ballot Mailing

US Dept of Justice Pre-Clearance (if Jurisdiction desires the County to create)

Ballot Layout and Printing

Petition Signature Verification per Signature

Indicate with an "X" Services to be Performed by the County

Due Date

Basic Fee for Service per Registered Voter (Consolidated Election)

Sample Ballot Creation

Ballot layout information including candidate names and ballot 
question text must be provided to the Gila County Department 
of Elections by the Jurisdiction no later than 5:00 pm 90 days 
prior to the election (Enter Date)

Logic and Accuracy Tests will be performed by the Gila 
County Department of Elections at 5515 S Apache Ave, 
Globe, AZ on  (Enter Date) Date



GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA

JURISDICTION MENU OF SERVICES

Page 3

Recorder 
and 

Elections $17.00/hour
Recorder 

and 
Elections $25.50/hour
Recorder 

and 
Elections

Min. Wage  
(Currently 

$7.65/hour)

Recorder 
and 

Elections

County   
Rate 

(Currently 
$0.51/mile)

Recorder 
and 

Elections Actual Cost
Recorder 

and 
Elections Actual Cost
Recorder 

and 
Elections $25.00
Recorder 

and 
Elections Actual Cost

Ballot Box (Price per Box)

Date

  Gila County Recorder
  Gila County Department of Elections

Gila County Recorder Authorized Signature

Additional Services (as requested by the Jurisdiction) will be 
billed at actual cost. Such services may include consulting 
fees, special reports, computer programming, etc.

County Personnel Labor Rate 

County Personnel Overtime Labor Rate

Estimated Cost of Elections

Gila County Department of Elections Authorized Signature

Date

Date

Jurisdiction Authorized Signature

Mileage Reimbursement

Temporary Early Board or Other Worker Rate

Additional Services Requested (Specify)

Written Spanish Translation

Postage



GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Daisy Flores

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.  



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.  



   

ARF-1378     Consent Agenda Item      4- M             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Linda Eastlick,
Elections Director

Submitted By: Liz Mata, Administrative Clerk,
Elections Department

Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Beaver Valley Fire District Governing Board appointment.

Background Information
ARS 48-803 (B)  provides that if a vacancy occurs on the district board other than from
expiration of a term, the remaining board members shall fill the vacancy by appoinment of
an interim member.

Evaluation
At the Beaver Valley Fire District Governing Board meeting of April 14. 2012, the
Governing Board moved to appoint Ms. Pat Walker to fill the vacancy created by the
passing of member Joyce Lynch.  Appointed member Ms. Pat Walker will complete the
term which expires November 30, 2014.

Conclusion
Ms. Pat Walker has agreed to serve out the term of deceased member Joyce Lynch.

Recommendation
The Elections Director recommends the Board of Supervisors acknowledge the
appointment of Ms. Pat Walker to the Beaver Valley Fire District Governing Board due to
the passing of member Joyce Lunch.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the Beaver Valley Fire District Governing Board's appointment of Ms.
Pat Walker to fill the board vacancy created by the passing of member Joyce Lynch.  Ms.
Pat Walker will complete the term that expires November 30, 2014.

Attachments
ARS 48-803
Beaver Valley FD mtg minutes-Oath













   

ARF-1384     Consent Agenda Item      4- N             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Linda Eastlick,
Elections Director

Submitted By: Liz Mata, Administrative Clerk,
Elections Department

Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Northern Gila County Sanitary District Governing Board resignation and appointment.

Background Information
ARS 48-803 (B)  provides that if a vacancy occurs on the district board other than from
expiration of a term, the remaining board members shall fill the vacancy by appointment of
an interim member.

Evaluation
At the Northern Gila County Sanitary District Governing Board meeting of January 12,
2012,  the resignation of Robert O' Brien was accepted.  During the Northern Gila County
Sanitary District Governing Board meeting of May 10, 2012, Bill Easton was appointed to
fill the vacant term which ends November 30, 2014.

Conclusion
Mr. Easton agreed to serve out the term of Mr. O'Brien.

Recommendation
The Elections Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors acknowledge the
resignation of Northern Gila County Sanitary District Board member Robert O'Brien and
the appointment of Bill Easton to complete the term of Robert O'Brien which ends
November 30, 2014.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the resignation of Mr. Robert O'Brien from the Northern Gila County
Sanitary District Governing Board and the appointment of Mr. Bill Easton to complete the
term of Mr. O'Brien, which expires November 30, 2014.

Attachments
ARS 48-803
Northern Gila County SD Mtg Minutes-Oath

















   

ARF-1386     Consent Agenda Item      4- O             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Linda Eastlick,
Elections Director

Submitted By: Liz Mata, Administrative Clerk,
Elections Department

Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Beaver Valley Domestic Water Improvement District resignation and appointment.

Background Information
ARS 48-803(B) provides that if a vacancy occurs on the district board other than from
expiration of a term, the remaining board members shall fill the vacancy by appointment of
an interim member.

Evaluation
The Beaver Valley Domestic Water Improvement District Governing Board accepted the
resignation of member Jerry Nicholas on September 19, 2011.  During the Beaver Valley
DWID Governing Board meeting of February 11, 2012, Scott Smith was appointed to
complete the term which expires November 30, 2012.

Conclusion
Mr. Scott Smith has agreed to serve out the term of Mr. Nicholas.

Recommendation
The Elections Director recommends the Board of Supervisors acknowledge the resignation
of Mr. Jerry Nicholas and the appointment of Mr. Scott Smith to the Beaver Valley
Domestic Water Improvement District Governing Board.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the resignation of Mr. Jerry Nicholas from the Beaver Valley Domestic
Water Improvement District and the appointment of Mr. Scott Smith to complete the term
of Mr. Nicholas which expires November 30, 2012.

Attachments
ARS 48-803 (B)
Beaver Valley DWID Mtg Minutes-Oath













   

ARF-1362     Consent Agenda Item      4- P             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Jacque Durbin,
Deputy Court
Administrator

Submitted By: Coleen Stevens, Administrative
Assistant, Superior Court

Department: Superior Court Division: Justice Court-Payson

Information
Request/Subject
2012 Appointment of Charles Adornetto as Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore for Payson
and Globe Regional Justice Courts in Gila County.

Background Information
An additional Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore is needed to serve in the Globe and Payson
Regional Justice Courts.  Judge Dorothy Little has requested appointment of Charles
Adornetto to meet this need based on Mr. Adornetto's previous experience.

Evaluation
Judge Dorothy Little requests the appointment of Judge Charles Adornetto as Justice of
the Peace Pro Tempore for the Globe and Payson Regional Justice Courts.

Due to exigent circumstances requiring qualified judicial officers for those occasions when
conflicts arise or Justices of the Peace are absent, or otherwise unavailable, it is necessary
to appoint additional Justices of the Peace Pro Tempore to serve from time to time as
required. Funds are already included in the Justice Court budgets.

Conclusion
There are times when Justices of the Peace Pro Tempore are necessary for Gila County to
ensure there are qualified judicial officers available to serve on those occasions when
Justices of the Peace are absent, have a conflict with a case, or are otherwise unavailable. 

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors approve the appointments of Judge
Charles Adornetto as Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore for the Globe and Payson Regional
Justice Courts.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the appointment of Judge Charles Adornetto as Justice of the Peace Pro
Tempore of the Globe and Payson Regional Justice Courts for a period of five months from
August 1, 2012, through December 31, 2012.

Attachments
BOS APPROVAL - Charles Adornetto 
Admin. Order - Adornetto
BOS Memo - Adornetto



APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENT OF 
JUSTICE OF THE PEACE PRO TEMPORE

The Presiding Judge of the Superior Court in Gila County has requested the 

reappointment of Charles Adornetto as a Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore of the 

Payson and Globe Regional Justice Courts in Gila County for the term of five (5) months

(August 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012), unless terminated earlier by Order of the 

Presiding Judge, pursuant to A.R.S. §22-121 for the purpose of enhancing the court’s 

ability to process cases.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it known that the Gila County Board of Supervisors 

approves such appointment.

Dated  ________________________________________________ 2012.

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

By: _____________________________

Tommie C. Martin, Chairperson









   

ARF-1366     Consent Agenda Item      4- Q             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan,
CAP/Housing
Services Manager

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk,
BOS, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Department: Community Services Division

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board Updated and Corrected
Membership List

Background Information
The Gila County Board of Supervisors established the Gila County Community Action
Program (CAP) Advisory Board on January 20, 1998, and thereafter bylaws for this Board
were developed and implemented.  The members of the CAP Advisory Board shall consist of
a minimum of nine (9) members not to exceed a maximum of twelve (12) members.  At
present there are 9 members serving on this Board.  Three (3) members are appointed by
the Board of Supervisors as representatives of the Board of Supervisors; three (3) members
are low-income representatives who must reside in a low-income community, who are
elected by the CAP Advisory Board; and three (3) members (or the balance of the Board if
there are more than 3 members) are private sector officials or members of business,
industrial, labor, religious, welfare, education or other major groups and interests in the
community, who are elected by the CAP Advisory Board.  

Evaluation
Throughout the past year, the Gila County Board of Supervisors (BOS) has been receiving
updated information on boards, commissions and committees appointed by the BOS.  A
review has recently been conducted of the Gila County CAP Advisory Board.

Conclusion
The membership of the Gila County CAP Advisory Board has been reviewed and changes
have been made to ensure that each member is represented according to the Gila County
CAP Advisory Board Bylaws.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors accept the udpated and corrected
membership list for the Gila County CAP Advisory Board.

Suggested Motion
Approval to accept the updated and corrected membership list for the Gila County
Community Action Program Advisory Board.

Attachments
GC Community Action Program Advisory Board Membership List
GC Community Action Program Advisory Board Bylaws



 GILA COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM ADVISORY BOARD 
(Proposed to BOS on 08/07/12 and, if approved, the list will be as follows) 

 
NAME OF MEMBER  TYPE OF 

APPOINTMENT 
 

Mark with  A,  B,  C, 
D or E – see below 

NEW APPOINTMENT OR REAPPOINTMENT 
(Include BOS approval date next to letter) 

New Appointment:  Choose “A” or “B” 
A ‐for existing vacancy or 
B ‐to fill a vacancy created by (provide name) 
or 
Reappointment:  Mark with a “C” and include 
number of years served prior to most recent 
appointment 

DATES OF TERM 
(Put the month, day and 
year both beginning & 

ending dates) 

LENGTH OF TERM FOR 
CURRENT 

APPOINTMENT 
(# of years) 

Margaret Celix (Public Sector‐
appointed by BOS) 

B  C  12   01/01/09‐12/31/12   4 

Lynn Canning (Public Sector‐
appointed by BOS) 

B   C  4  01/01/12‐12/31/15  4 

Audry Opitz (Public Sector‐
appointed by BOS) 

B  A  ‐  01/01/10‐12/31/13  4 

John Zilisch (Low‐Income 
Sector‐elected by CAP Board) 

C  A  ‐  02/15/12‐12/31/15  3 years, 11 months 

Annie Hinojos  (Low‐Income 
Sector‐elected by CAP Board) 

C  C  22  01/01/10‐12/31/13  4 

Nolberto Waddell (Low‐
Income Sector‐elected by 
CAP Board) 

C  C  4   01/01/10‐12/31/13   4 

Vickie Quesada (Private 
Sector‐elected by CAP Board) 

C  C  11   01/01/10‐12/13/13  4 

Barbara Leetham (Private 
Sector‐ elected by CAP Board) 

C  C   4  01/01/12‐12/31/15  4 

Ramona Ortiz (Private Sector‐
elected by CAP Board) 

C   A  ‐  01/01/10‐12/31/13  4 

 
Appointment Designation Definitions: 
A) Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 
B) Supervisor Appointment: Member unrestricted by district. 
C) Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the 
Board of Supervisors.   
D) County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E) Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 



GILA COUNTY ARIZONA
 

By‐Laws
of the 

 
GILA COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM 

ADVISORY BOARD 
 

 

SFY 2012 
 

 

 

Helping People, Changing Lives 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



By Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2012 

Page 1 
 

Table of Contents 
ARTICLE I   INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................................... 1 

Section I   Name ............................................................................................................................... 1 

Section II   Description ..................................................................................................................... 1 

ARTICLE II   Statement Of Purpose ........................................................................................................... 1 

ARTICLE III   Advisory Board ....................................................................................................................... 2 

Section I   Membership & Tripartite Sectors ................................................................................ 2 

Section II   Composition ................................................................................................................... 2 

Section III   Petition Procedure: ....................................................................................................... 3 

Section IV   Residence ...................................................................................................................... 4 

Section V   Terms of Office .............................................................................................................. 4 

Section VI   Vacancies ....................................................................................................................... 4 

Section VII   Removal of Officers ...................................................................................................... 5 

Section VIII   Meetings ......................................................................................................................... 5 

Section IX   Powers and Duties ........................................................................................................ 7 

Section X   Conflict of Interest ......................................................................................................... 8 

ARTICLE IV   OFFICERS .............................................................................................................................. 8 

Section I   Officers of the Board ..................................................................................................... 8 

Section II   Election of Officers ........................................................................................................ 8 

Section III   Duties of Officers ........................................................................................................... 8 

ARTICLE V   COMMITTEES ........................................................................................................................ 9 

Section I   General Provisions ........................................................................................................ 9 

Section II   Appointment ................................................................................................................... 9 

Section III   Membership and Officers ............................................................................................. 9 

Section IV   Standing Committee ..................................................................................................... 9 

Section V   Term of Office ................................................................................................................ 9 

Section VI   Committee Quorum .................................................................................................... 10 



By Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2012 

Page 2 
 

Section VII   Committee Voting ........................................................................................................ 10 

ARTICLE VI   AMENDMENT ....................................................................................................................... 10 

ARTICLE VII  DISSOLUTION ..................................................................................................................... 10 

ARTICLE VIII  PUBLIC ACCESS TO GRANTEE INFORMATION .................................................. 10 

ARTICLE IX   FISCAL YEAR AND ANNUAL BUDGET .......................................................................... 10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



By Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2012 

Page 1 
 

ARTICLE I  INTRODUCTION 

Section I  Name 
The name of the organization shall be the Gila County Community Action Program 
Advisory Board. 

Section II  Description 
The Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board as established pursuant to 
action adopted by the Gila County Board of Supervisors on January 20, 1998.  The 
location of the Gila County Community Action Program (The Agency) and the Gila 
County Community Action Program Advisory Board is 5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 
200, Globe, Arizona 85501.I 

ARTICLE II  Statement Of Purpose 
The purpose of said organization is to focus on the low income population as follows: 

A. To provide a range of services and activities with a measurable and potentially 
major impact on the causes of poverty in the County, its local communities, or 
areas within the local communities where poverty is a particularly acute problem. 

 
B. To provide activities designed to assist low income participants including the 

elderly, to promote self-sufficiency by assisting program participants to secure and 
maintain employment, emergency housing and utility assistance, health, nutrition 
and related assistance. 

 
C. To provide referrals to clients to those agencies which may provide, on an 

emergency basis, for the provision of such supplies and services, nutritious foods, 
and related services, to alleviate conditions of starvation and malnutrition among 
the low-income population. 

D. To coordinate and establish linkages between governmental and other social 
services programs to assure the effective delivery of such services to low-income 
individuals.  

 
E. To encourage the use of entities in the Private Sector of the community in efforts 

to ameliorate poverty in the community. 
 

F. To communicate and network with all federal, state, county, city, and non-
governmental organizations in achieving these objectives. 

 
G. To pursue and obtain grants and or loans to provide funding to provide the above 

mentioned services. 



By Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2012 

Page 2 
 

ARTICLE III  Advisory Board 

Section I  Membership & Tripartite Sectors 
A. The membership of the organization shall be a board consisting of a minimum of 

nine (9) members not to exceed a maximum of twelve (12) members.  One-third 
(1/3) of which are elected officials or their representatives, at least one-third (1/3 
low-income, and one-third (1/3) Private Sector. 

B. All members of the Board must be 18 years of age or older and residents of Gila 
County.  

Section II  Composition 
 The Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board shall be appointed 
by the Gila County Board of Supervisors following recommendation of the Economic 
Opportunity Act of 1974 as amended by the Community Services Act of 1974 and 
regulations promulgated there under. 

A. Public Sector 

1. County Board of Supervisors: One-third (1/3) of the members are 
representatives of the Gila County Board of Supervisors.  
Selection Procedures: Appointed by Gila County Board of Supervisors. 

 
2. Alternates: Should a representative of the Board of Supervisors be 

unwilling or unable to serve on the Board, that member may select a 
representative to serve as an alternate on the Board on the Member’s 
behalf either full time or when he/she is unable to attend a specific meeting.   

 
These alternates need not be public officials themselves, but they shall 
have full authority to act for the public officials whom they represent at 
meetings of the Board.  

 
B. Low Income:  

1. At least one-third (1/3) of the members are low-income representatives 
who must reside in a low-income community.  

 
 Selection Procedures:  Low-Income members are, selected in accordance with 
democratic selection procedures (Low-income representatives will be sought out by 
advertising in local newspaper and posted notices(with all instructions and information to 
being on the Community Action Program in said community- ballot boxes  to be located 
within all local Community Action Agency offices that will be used for delivering ballots to 
assure that the candidates are representative of the low-income residents of the 



By Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2012 

Page 3 
 

designated geographic area for which elections were held. Then the advisory board will 
vote on the low-income representative for that area.     

2. Alternates: Each representative of the low-income sector may have an alternate who will have 
full voting rights in the absence of the member.  

3.  
Such alternate shall be elected at the same meeting using the same 
procedures as that used to elect the representative.  There shall be no 
more than one alternate for each representative; an alternate may not hold 
office on the Advisory board concurrent to his/her term as an alternate.    

 
C. Balance of Board: The remainder of the Advisory Board membership consists of 

Private Sector officials or members of business, industrial, labor, religious, 
welfare, education, or other major groups and interests in the community.  

 
Selection Procedures: Selection procedures for Private Sector:  Private sector 
representatives shall be voted for, and elected by, the elected officials and low-
income representatives on the Community Action Program Advisory Board and 
officially approved thereafter by the Board of Supervisors.  
 
 The representative groups of the Private sector shall be reviewed annually 
by the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board members 
representing the public and low-income sectors, acting without the Private Sector 
members, to deliberate, vote upon and make recommendations to the Board of 
Supervisors if changes(s) are deemed appropriate.  Specific consideration shall 
be given to maintain a balance between social service organizations, business, 
and labor.  
 

Section III  Petition Procedure:  
 Any individual group or agency that feels it is not adequately represented 
on the Advisory Board may petition the Advisory Board for such representation.  
A petition must contain valid signatures of fifty-one percent (51%) of the Board of 
Directors (or equivalent body) of the group seeking representation.  The Advisory 
Board meeting at which the petition is considered and voted upon shall be a 
regular public meeting of the Board, after ten (10) days written notice, at which 
time the petitioning group and the Board of Supervisors with a written statement 
of the Advisory Board’s recommendations, including the reasons for the decision.   
 
 The Board of Supervisors shall act on the Community Action Program 
Advisory Board’s recommendations within one (1) month at a regularly 
announced public meeting and render a final decision on the petition.  In the 



By Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2012 

Page 4 
 

event the petition is approved by the Board of Supervisors, and there is an 
available opening on the Advisory Board, a representative of the organization will 
be seated.  If no opening currently exists, the representative of the organization 
will be considered when a vacancy occurs. 
 
 In the event the petition is denied, the organization may resubmit its 
petition to the Community Action Program Advisory Board and Board of 
Supervisors.  Community Services Block Grant Administration shall be notified 
after a decision has been reached. 

Section IV  Residence 
 All members of the Board shall be residents of Gila County, Arizona, excluding 
reservation areas.  Low-income representatives must reside in low-income communities. 

Section V  Terms of Office 
Term of Appointment:  The term of appointment of each member of the Advisory 
Board shall be for a period of four years.  Advisory Board members shall be re-
elected or their successors elected at the date of the annual meeting and the 
appointment shall become effective on the date of the annual meeting, conditional on 
appointment of the Board of Supervisors.  The term or appointment shall be the same 
as that established for the Board of Supervisors. 
 

Section VI  Vacancies 
Vacancies:  There is a vacancy on the Advisory Board when:  a member has 
been notified of his/her official removal by action of the Advisory Board for cause; a 
member notifies the Advisory Board of his/her resignation; when the designation 
officials Gila County Board of Supervisors remove a public official; or when a public 
official leaves office. 

A. When a vacancy occurs in the low-income (Article III, Sec. 2  A, B, C) or 
Private Sector (Article 3 A, B, C), the “alternate” shall assume the title and 
responsibilities of “representative” for the balance of the unexpired term.  If a 
vacancy occurs and there is no alternate, this vacancy will be filled within 90 days 
in addition the vacancy shall be filled according to the selection procedures set 
forth in Section II hereof to fill the unexpired term. 

B. In the event a vacancy occurs in the public sector, the Advisory Board shall 
ask the Board of Supervisors to select another public official within 90 days. 

C. In the event a vacancy occurs in the Private Sector, the Advisory Board 
shall select another Private Sector Board Member within 90 days. 



By Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2012 

Page 5 
 

D.  

Section VII  Removal of Officers 
Upon the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds (2/3) of the members present and 
voting at a duly constituted meeting, the Board Members may remove a Board 
Member for cause as defined in the Gila County Community Action Program By-
Laws. 

Section VIII  Meetings 
Written minutes shall be completed for each and all meetings to include a record of 
votes on all motions.  Previous minutes of meetings will be distributed to all Advisory 
Board and Committee members within seven (7) days prior to the next called 
meeting. Following approval of the approved minutes of the previous meeting by the 
Board,  
 
A copy of the minutes of each meeting shall be available at the Gila County 
Community Action Program office for inspection by the general public within seven 
(7) days following the Board meeting in which the minutes were approved. 
 
A. Types of Meetings: 

1. Annual Meeting:   There shall be an annual meeting held in August of 
each year.  The time for holding the annual meeting of the members of the 
Advisory Board may be altered by a majority vote of the members at any 
meeting thereof. At the annual meeting the Advisory Board will go over and 
update all Advisory Board By-laws and any and all revisions shall be 
completed and ratified by the Advisory Board at the next regular Meeting.  

 
2. Regular Board Meeting: Regular meetings of the Advisory Board shall 

be scheduled once quarterly to conduct the Advisory Board affairs at a time 
and location designated by the Chairperson. 

 
3. Special Board Meeting: Special meetings may be called by the Board 

Chairperson or by the Vice-Chairperson upon the written request of twenty 
percent (20%) of the members.  The purpose or purposes of such meeting 
shall be set forth in the notice thereof. 

 

B. Meeting Requirements 

1. Quorum Requirements: The quorum for a meeting of the Advisory Board shall 
be at least fifty percent (50%) of the non-vacant seats on the Board. 

 
2.  Attendance:   An Advisory Board member who is absent from three (3) 

consecutive meetings without being represented by his/her alternate at any one 



By Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2012 

Page 6 
 

of these meetings, shall forfeit his/her seat on the Advisory Board except where 
a leave of absence has been applied for and granted by vote of the Advisory 
Board.  The Chairperson shall notify the individual and the appropriate 
organization in writing at least fourteen (14) days in advance of the next 
Advisory Board meeting and recommend appropriate action be taken to assure 
substantial attendance or replacement.  

 
3. Time and Place: All Advisory Board meetings must be reasonably convenient 

in time and place. 
 
4. Notice:  There shall be at least ten (10) days’ notice of all regular meetings 

and three (3) days’ notice for all special meetings.  A public notice stating time 
and place shall be posted at the Gila County Courthouse and Community Action 
Program office. 

 
5. Voting:  A majority of those Advisory Board members present and 

voting shall decide any matter, except where these By-Laws or Robert’s Rules 
of Order require greater majority (e.g. two-thirds 2/3 or three-fourths (3/4) or 
unanimous.) 

 

6. Proxies: Proxy voting is prohibited.  However, each organization or agency 
empowered to select a representative, pursuance to Article III of the By-Laws; 
may designate an alternate representative, who shall also be appointed by the 
Board of Supervisors to represent said organization or agency in the absence of 
the regular member, with full voting privileges; however, an alternate may not 
hold office.  

 
7. Compensation of Commission Members:  Regular compensation may 

not be paid to Advisory Board members.  Mileage compensation shall be paid to 
Advisory Board members traveling twenty-five (25) miles or more to Board 
meetings.  A review and allocation of budgeted funds for this purpose shall be 
conducted annually by the Board. 

 
8. Operating Procedures:   The order of business at meetings shall be determined 

by a written agenda.  Unless specific procedure is provided for these by-laws, 
the rules of parliamentary conduct in Robert’s Rules of Order shall be the 
procedural authority for all meetings. Also all meetings shall be conducted in 
accordance with the Arizona Open Meeting Law. A.R.S. 38-431 with the 
exception of Executive Sessions, as authorized by the Arizona Revised 
Statutes. 

 
If an instance arises where Roberts Rules of Order is in conflict with the Arizona 

Open Meeting Law, A.R.S. 38-431 shall prevail. 



By Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2012 

Page 7 
 

Section IX  Powers and Duties  
of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board 

1. To exercise all powers which the Board of Supervisors chooses to delegate to 
the Advisory Board, and those powers that are able to be delegated. 

 
2. To oversee the extent and quality of the participation of the low-income 

population in the programs of the Community Action Program and Agency. 
 
3. To determine, subject to Community Services Block Grant approval, rules and 

procedures for the Board. 
 
4. To elect the officers, Executive Committee, and assign members of all other 

committees of the Board. 
 
5. The Advisory Board shall deliberate and vote upon the following matters and 

submit its written recommendations to the Board of Supervisors for the fiscal 
year. 

 
6. Determination of overall CSBG program plans and priorities in conjunction with 

CAHS needs assessment to be completed every three years. 
 

7. Approval of all program proposals and budgets ongoing and based on the 
Community Action Plan in order to submit to the State CSBG office. This will be 
done on a yearly basis in conjunction with the May Quarterly Meeting so the 
yearly CAP Plan may be submitted for the start of the Fiscal year. 

 
8. Approval of all evaluation and assessment studies and reports that pertains to 

the locations of Community Action Program Offices that best serves Gila 
County. 

 
9. Approval of all arrangements for delegating the planning, conduct, or evaluation 

of a component of the work program.   
 

10. To provide direction and oversight to all programs carried out under Federal 
anti-poverty grants in accordance with the terms of the grants, providing such 
programs are not contrary to said laws. 

 
11. To participate and approve on an ongoing basis on all plans and assessments 

including trainings for the Community Action Program. 



By Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2012 

Page 8 
 

Section X  Conflict of Interest  
No person, who is an officer or employee of an organization subcontracted by the 

Community Action Agency to perform a component of the CSBG work program, may sit 
on the Advisory Board.  No employee or relative, or spouse of any agent of the 
Community Services Block Grant or the Community Action Agency may serve on the 
Advisory Board in any capacity which will require him/her to act as an agent of or as 
attorney for the Community Services Block Grant in its dealings with the Community 
Action Program or with any other Federal agency. A relative is defined as: 

Husband  Wife  Father  Mother 

Grandparents Stepparents  Father-in-law  Mother-in-law 

Brother Sister  Brother-in-law Sister-in-law 

Son  Daughter  Son-in-law  Daughter-in-law 

 

ARTICLE IV  OFFICERS 

Section I  Officers of the Board 
Officers of the Board shall consist of a Chairperson, a Vice-Chairperson, and a 

Secretary. 

Section II  Election of Officers 
The Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and Secretary shall be selected at the 

Annual Meeting by the Board and shall serve for a term of two (2) years. 

Section III  Duties of Officers 
1. Chairperson.  Shall preside at all meetings, appoint committees with the 

concurrence of the Board and serve as ex-officio member of all committees, 
appoint committee chairperson, represent the Board at official functions, work 
closely with the Manager of the Community Services Program, and function in 
such capacities as the Board may designate.  The Chairperson shall serve as 
chairperson of the Executive Committee. 

 
2. Vice-Chairperson.  The Vice-Chairman shall serve in the absence of the 

Chairman. 
 
3. Secretary.  The Secretary shall be responsible for the reading and recording of 

the minutes at each meeting.  The Secretary shall preside over the meeting in 
the absence of the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson.   



By Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2012 

Page 9 
 

ARTICLE V  COMMITTEES 

Section I  General Provisions 
The Advisory Board shall establish ad hoc committees as needed. 

Section II  Appointment 
Members of the committee shall be appointed by the Chairperson, with the 

concurrence of the Advisory Board.  The term of appointment shall expire at the annual 
meeting.  At the beginning of each program year, it may be necessary for the 
Chairperson to appoint temporary committees to carry on the business of the Advisory 
Board until formal and “permanent” appointments are made.  In such event, the 
temporary committee shall serve until formal appointment procedures are completed. 

Section III  Membership and Officers 
 All committees with important policy-making or advisory function shall fairly reflect 
the composition of the Advisory Board.  Each standing committee shall consist of at least 
three (3) Advisory Board members; the membership of other committees may vary in 
size.  Additional committee members from outside the Advisory Board may be appointed 
to the committee by the Advisory Board Chairperson for specific purposes on an ad hoc 
basis.  Any such ad hoc members duly appointed by the Chairperson shall have a full 
and equal vote as regular members of that standing committee.  To assure that the 
several standing committee chairmen fairly represent the composition of the Board, 
committee chairpersons shall be appointed by the Chairperson of the Board. 

Section IV  Standing Committee 
The Advisory Board may establish an Executive standing committee consisting of the 

officers. 

1. Executive Committee.  The Advisory Board Chairperson, with the concurrence 
of the Advisory Board, shall appoint an executive committee comprised of the 
elected officers.  This Committee shall have the authority to transact routine 
business and emergency matters between meetings of the full Advisory Board.  
All decisions made by the Executive Committee shall be ratified by the full 
Advisory Board at the next regular meeting. 

Section V  Term of Office 
Committee members shall hold office from the date of their appointment until the 

annual meeting.  Vacancies shall be filled by the Advisory Board Chairperson with the 
concurrence of the Advisory Board to fill the unexpired terms. 



By Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2012 

Page 10 
 

Section VI  Committee Quorum 
The quorum of any committee meeting shall be fifty percent (50%) of the non-

vacant seats on the committee. 

Section VII  Committee Voting 
All matters shall be decided by a majority vote of the committee members present. 

ARTICLE VI  AMENDMENT 
These By-Laws may be altered, amended, or repealed by affirmative vote of two-

thirds (2/3) of the Advisory Board, subject to final approval of the Board of Supervisors.  
Any proposed alteration, amendment or repeal shall be contained in a written notice to 
each member of the Advisory Board mailed at least ten (10) days prior to any meeting at 
which an amendment of these By-Laws is to be considered. 

ARTICLE VII  DISSOLUTION 
In the event dissolution of the Advisory Board should become necessary, it shall 

be affected in accordance with pertinent directives of State and Federal Law. 

ARTICLE VIII PUBLIC ACCESS TO GRANTEE INFORMATION 
The Gila County Community Action Program shall make available for inspection 

and examination of those documents and records which pertain to activities assisted by 
the Community Services Block Grant.  An exception to this rule is the inspection of 
confidential individual client records. 

ARTICLE IX  FISCAL YEAR AND ANNUAL BUDGET 
The Fiscal Year of the agency shall be from July to the following June. The Gila 

County Community Action Program Annual Budget shall be presented to the Advisory 
Board for their review 10 days prior to the May Meeting each year with approval at the 
May meeting. In the event a meeting is not held in May, the presentation and approval 
will be scheduled for the next regular meeting. 



   

ARF-1399     Consent Agenda Item      4- R             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Submitted For: Tommie Martin,
Member, Board of
Supervisors

Submitted By: Pamela Fisher, Supervisor's Staff
Specialist, Board of Supervisors-District
1

Department: Board of Supervisors-District 1

Information
Request/Subject
Payson Rodeo Committee's request to use the Payson Court Complex grounds for a Chili
Cook Off on September 15, 2012

Background Information
The Payson Rodeo Committee is requesting the use of the grounds/parking lot at 714 S.
Beeline for their annual Chili Cook Off. They will provide liability insurance coverage, trash
bins, port-a-potties and clean up will be provided. 

Evaluation
This event will be beneficial to the community.

Conclusion
N/A

Recommendation
Chairman Tommie Martin recommends that the request of the Payson Rodeo Committee
for a Chili Cook Off on the Payson Court Complex be approved.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a request by the Payson Rodeo Committee, a non-profit organization, for the
use of the Payson Court Complex grounds for a Chili Cook Off on September 15, 2012,
from 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

Attachments
Payson Rodeo Committee Building Use Application Form





   

ARF-1371       4- S             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Reporting
Period:

Payson Regional Constable's Monthly Report for June 2012

Submitted For: Colt White Submitted By: Michelle
Keegan,
Administrative
Clerk Senior,
Constable -
Payson

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Monthly Report for June 2012

Suggested Motion
Approval of the June 2012 monthly activity report submitted by the Payson Regional
Constable.

Attachments
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report June 2012







































   

ARF-1373       4- T             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Reporting
Period:

Payson Regional Constable's Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2011-2012

Submitted For: Colt White Submitted By: Michelle
Keegan,
Administrative
Clerk Senior,
Constable -
Payson

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2011-2012

Suggested Motion
Approval of the fiscal year 2011-2012 annual activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Constable.

Attachments
Payson Regional Constable's Office Annual Report Fiscal Year 2011-2012





















   

ARF-1374       4- U             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Reporting
Period:

Globe Regional Justice Court Monthly Report for June 2012

Submitted For: Mary Navarro Submitted By: Mary Navarro,
Justice Court
Operations
Mgr, Superior
Court

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice Court Monthly Report for June 2012

Suggested Motion
Approval of the June 2012 monthly activity report submitted by the Globe Regional Justice
Court.

Attachments
Globe Regional Justice Court Montly Report for 06/12









   

ARF-1381       4- V             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Reporting
Period:

Payson Regional Justice of the Peace Monthly Report for June 2012

Submitted For: Dorothy Little Submitted By: Dorothy Little,
Justice of the
Peace-Payson
Region,
Superior Court

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Justice of the Peace Monthly Report for June 2012

Suggested Motion
Approval of the June 2012 monthly activity report submitted by the Payson Regional
Justice of the Peace. 

Attachments
Payson Justice of the Peace Monthly Report for June 2012



PAYSON JUSTICE COURT TREASURER'S RECAP FY2012

JUNE, 2012 AZTEC ACCOUNT ACCOUNT TOTAL AMOUNT 5% FILL THE GAP ADJUSTED

FUND NAME CODE CODE CODE ALLOCATED SET ASIDE BALANCE

Alternative Dispute Resolution ZADR 0848000-000-000-2061-00 T848-2061 55.55$                   2.78$                    52.77$             

Arson Detection Reward Fund 41-2167D ZADRF 0901000-000-000-2061-00 T901-2061 -$                       -$                      -$                 

Attorney Fee Reimbursement ZATT 1005000-314-000-3350-00 X10501314004383 107.16$                 107.16$           

Confidential Address Assessment - State Treasurer ZCAA1 -$                       -$                      -$                 

Confidential Address Assessment - Local ZCAA2 -$                       -$                      -$                 

Citizens Clean Elections ZCEF 0888000-000-000-2061-00 T888-2061 1,552.02$              1,552.02$        

Criminal Justice Enhancement 67% ZCJEF 0812000-000-000-2061-00 T812-2061 7,293.33$              364.67$                6,928.66$        

Defensive Driving Diversion Fee ZDDS 1005000-314-000-3400-90 X105-4609 4,410.00$              220.50$                4,189.50$        

DNA State Surcharge 3% 12-116.01C ZDNAS 0872000-000-000-2061-00 T872-2061 919.47$                 45.97$                  873.50$           

Elected Officials Retirement Fund 15.30% ZEORF 0801000-000-000-2061-00 T801-2061 415.15$                 20.76$                  394.39$           

Base Fees (General Fund) ZFEE 1005000-314-000-3400-15 X105-4615 1,222.11$              61.11$                  1,161.00$        

Base Fines (General Fund) ZFINE 1005000-314-000-3510-10 X105-4831 14,078.04$            703.90$                13,374.14$      

Fill the Gap Surcharge 7% ZFTGS 0870000-000-000-2061-00 T870-2061 1,086.00$              54.30$                  1,031.70$        

Failure To Pay Warrant Surcharge 10%                   ZFTPS 1005000-314-000-3400-17 X10501314004861 167.01$                 8.35$                    158.66$           

Extra DUI Assessment $500 ZGFDU 0912000-000-000-2061-00 T912-2061 4,784.82$              239.24$                4,545.58$        

Judicial Collection Enhancement $7 ZJCL 4741000-314-000-3400-15 X36001314004615 463.99$                 463.99$           

Judicial Collection Enhancement Local % ZJCLF 4741000-314-000-3400-15 X36001314004615 184.65$                 9.23$                    175.42$           

Judicial Collection Enhancement $13 ZJCS 0818000-000-000-2061-00 T818-2061 861.68$                 861.68$           

Judicial Collection Enhancement %PC ZJCSF 0840000-000-000-2061-00 T840-2061 422.63$                 21.13$                  401.50$           

Jail (Incarceration) Fees ZJF 1005000-300-340-3405-40 X10502340004651 690.22$                 690.22$           

Local Costs ZLCL 1005000-314-000-3510-10 X105-4831 -$                       -$                      -$                 

Administrative Costs ZMISC 1005000-314-000-3400-99 X105-4886 1,483.68$              74.18$                  1,409.50$        

Medical Services Enhancement 13% ZMSEF 0813000-000-000-2061-00 T813-2061 2,017.29$              100.86$                1,916.43$        

2011 Additional Assessment - State Treasurer ZOS1 0930000-000-000-2061-00 1,869.67$              93.48$                  1,776.19$        

2011 Additional Assessment - County Treasurer ZOS2 0931000-000-000-2061-00 233.72$                 11.69$                  222.03$           

Officer Safety Equipment - City Police (CP) ZOS3 0932000-000-000-2061-00 0.26$                     0.01$                    0.25$               

Officer Safety Equipment - Sheriff (SHF) ZOS4 0933000-000-000-2061-00 195.14$                 9.76$                    185.38$           

Officer Safety Equipment - DPS (DPS) ZOS5 0934000-000-000-2061-00 709.16$                 35.46$                  673.70$           

Officer Safety Equipment - MVD/ADOT (MVD) ZOS6 0935000-000-000-2061-00 -$                       -$                      -$                 

Officer Safety Equipment - Game and Fish (GF) ZOS7 0936000-000-000-2061-00 28.00$                   1.40$                    26.60$             

Officer Safety - Registrar of Contractors (ROC) ZOS8 -$                       -$                      -$                 

Officer Safety Equipment - Animal Control (AC) ZOS10 -$                       -$                      -$                 

Officer Safety -  Tonto Apache Police (TAR) ZOS15 0950000-000-000-2061-00 2.28$                     0.11$                    2.17$               

Overpayment Forfeited ZOVF 1005000-314-000-3510-10 X105-4831 2.67$                     0.13$                    2.54$               

Adult Probation Fee ZPBA 4042000-335-000-3405-30 X25001335-4835 -$                       -$                      -$                 

Probation Surcharge 2006 ($10.00) ZPRS6 0871000-000-000-2061-00 T871-2061 66.95$                   3.35$                    63.60$             

Probation Surcharge 2009 ($20.00) ZPRS9 0871000-000-000-2061-00 T871-2061 4,974.59$              248.73$                4,725.86$        

Probation Surcharge $5.00 ZPRSU 0871000-000-000-2061-00 T871-2061 22.50$                   1.13$                    21.37$             

Reimbursement to County Attorney 60% ZREIM 3544000-301-000-3400-11 X18201301004777 1,277.80$              1,277.80$        

Reimbursement to Superior Court 40% ZREIM 4574000-333-000-3400-16 X226333004864 851.86$                 851.86$           

Security Enhancement Fee (Local) ZSECE -$                       -$                      -$                 

Warrant Fee (Local) ZWAR 1005000-314-000-3510-10 X105-4831 40.00$                   2.00$                    38.00$             

AZ Native Plant Fund ZANP STATE -$                       -$                      -$                 

Child Passenger Restraint ZCPRF STATE -$                       -$                      -$                 

Drug and Gang Enforcement Fines ZDECJ STATE 1,186.43$              59.32$                  1,127.11$        

DUI Abatement ZDUIA STATE -$                       -$                      -$                 

Domestic Violence Shelter Fund ZDVSF STATE -$                       -$                      -$                 

FARE Special Collection Fee 19% ZFAR1 STATE 1,813.88$              1,813.88$        

FARE Delinquency Fee $35.00 ZFAR2 STATE 1,080.24$              1,080.24$        

Game and Fish - Wildlife ZGF STATE 116.15$                 5.81$                    110.34$           

HURF 1 28-5438, 2533C ZHRF1 STATE -$                       -$                      -$                 

HURF 3 28-5433C, 4139 ZHRF3 STATE -$                       -$                      -$                 

HURF - to DPS ZHRFD STATE -$                       -$                      -$                 

Prison Construction Fund ZPCOF STATE 3,132.02$              156.60$                2,975.42$        

Registrar of Contractors ZRCA STATE -$                       -$                      -$                 

State Highway Fund ZSHWY STATE -$                       -$                      -$                 

State Highway Work Zone Fund ZSHWZ STATE -$                       -$                      -$                 

Display Suspended Plates (DPS) ZSLPD STATE 116.61$                 5.83$                    110.78$           

State Photo Enforcement Base Fine ZSPBF STATE -$                       -$                      -$                 

State Photo Enforcement Clean Election Surcharge ZSPCE STATE -$                       -$                      -$                 

Bad Check Program - County Attorney ZBAD COUNTY ATTY 50.00$                   50.00$             

HURF - to Sheriff's Office 28-5533G ZHRFS SHERIFF -$                       -$                      -$                 

Display Suspended Plates (Sheriff's Office) ZSLPS SHERIFF 13.44$                   0.67$                    12.77$             

HURF - to City Police ZHRFC CITY POLICE -$                       -$                      -$                 

Display Suspended Plates (City Police) ZSLPC CITY POLICE -$                       -$                      -$                 

TOTALS 59,998.17$            2,562.46$             57,435.71$      

57,435.71$      

DATE CHECK NO. AMOUNT MONTHLY REMITTANCE TO:

4658 52,717.63$             GILA COUNTY TREASURER

4659 7,217.77$                ARIZONA STATE TREASURER

4660 50.00$                     GILA COUNTY BAD CHECK PROGRAM

4661 12.77$                     SHERIFF SUSPENDED PLATES AND HURF

-$                         CITY POLICE SUSPENDED PLATES AND HURF

59,998.17$                 TOTAL DISTRIBUTIONS THIS MONTH

I, DOROTHY A. LITTLE, Gila County Justice of the Peace, do hereby certify this is a true and correct copy of the funds collected by Payson Justice Court for JUNE, 2012.

___________________________________

DOROTHY A. LITTLE

Gila County Justice of the Peace

TOTAL ADJUSTED BALANCE VERIFICATION

7/9/12











   

ARF-1387       4- W             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Reporting
Period:

Recorder's June 2011 Monthly Report

Submitted For: Sadie Dalton Submitted By: Sadie Dalton,
Recorder,
Recorder's
Office

Information
Subject
Recorder's June 2011 Monthly Report

Suggested Motion
Approval of the June 2012 monthly activity report submitted by the Recorder's Office.

Attachments
Recorder's June 2011 Monthly Report



















   

ARF-1405       4- X             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Reporting
Period:

June 26, 2012, BOS Meeting Minutes

Submitted For: Marilyn Brewer, Deputy Clerk, BOS Submitted By: Marilyn
Brewer,
Deputy Clerk,
BOS, Clerk of
the Board of
Supervisors

Information
Subject
June 26, 2012, BOS Meeting Minutes

Suggested Motion
Approval of the June 26, 2012, BOS meeting minutes.

Attachments
BOS 06-26-2012 Meeting Minutes



1 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  June 26, 2012 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN                                               JOHN F. NELSON 
Chairman Clerk of the Board 
 
SHIRLEY L. DAWSON By: Marilyn Brewer 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                                  Gila County Courthouse 
Member Globe, Arizona                                       
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Tommie C. Martin, Chairman (via ITV conferencing); Shirley L. 
Dawson, Vice-Chairman; Michael A. Pastor, Supervisor; Don McDaniel, Jr., 
County Manager; John Nelson, Deputy County Manager/Clerk; Marian 
Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk; and June Ava Florescue, Deputy County 
Attorney.   
 
Item 1 – Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors hearing room.  Michael Pastor led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Reverend Kelly Woolridge of the Payson First Assembly 
of God Church in Payson delivered the invocation.   
 
Supervisor Pastor introduced Julian Guerrero, who is a junior at Arizona State 
University and is getting a degree in political science.  Mr. Guerrero came to 
volunteer to learn about county government so he’s been going to the various 
divisions and departments to get a feel for government.   
 
Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS: 
 

 2A.  Presentation of information from U.S. Forest Service Incident 
Commander, Matt Reidy, and U.S. Forest Service Incident Management 
Team Liaison, Gordon Wigman, regarding the status of the Poco Fire 
located 6 miles northeast of Young, Arizona, with a report on Gila 
County's bladder/tank system and its role in the Poco Fire. 

 
 Matt Reidy, U.S. Forest Service Incident Commander, and Gordon Wigman, 

U.S. Forest Service Incident Management Team Liaison, presented an update 
on the status of the Poco Fire located 6 miles northeast of Young.  Mr. Reidy 
stated that they had just spent 2 weeks on the Poco Fire suppression and it 
was turned over to the local fire-fighting team yesterday.  Mr. Reidy stated that 
on behalf of the Northern Arizona Team, he wanted to express their thanks 



2 
 

because they were so impressed with Gila County due to the fact that the 
County had prepared and invested in key elements to suppress the fire such as 
the water bladders and tank systems that were critical in containing this fire 
due to the lack of water across the Mogollon Rim.  On behalf of the Northern 
Arizona Team they presented a plaque to Chairman Martin on behalf of the 
Board and to Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, as a token of their 
appreciation.  Mr. Reidy also had a number of certificates that he asked Mr. 
Stratton to present to his staff because without their help he wasn’t sure they 
could have been successful.  Mr. Wigman stated he was born and raised in 
Globe and anything they needed while fighting this fire was immediately 
provided by the County.  Mr. Wigman said, “Gila County is top notch and I love 
to call Gila County home.”  Buck Wickham, a resident of Payson, stated that he 
was raised on top of the Rim and had been on a lot of fires in Gila County.  He 
stated that the Wildfire Protection Plan adopted by the Board of Supervisors 
has made Gila County a safer place for those communities on top of the Rim 
and he commended Chairman Martin for the work she has done.  Each Board 
member thanked the U.S. Forest Service staff as well as the Public Works 
Division staff, Emergency Services Division staff and the Sheriff’s Office staff for 
the effort they put into protecting Gila County.  Mr. Stratton also recognized 
several members of his staff.   

 
 2B.  Public recognition of 2 employees for May's "Spotlight on Employees" 

Program, as follows: Merle Ray and Samson Arney.  
 

Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant, presented gift cards as 
recognition awards to 2 employees for May’s "Spotlight on Employees" Program 
as follows:  Merle Ray and Samson Arney.  Each Board member thanked the 
employees for their dedicated work. 
 

 ITEM 3 – PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
 3A.  Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution 

No. 12-06-02 naming a previously unnamed road as N. Byrne Road.   
 

 Michael O'Driscoll, Health & Emergency Services Division Director, stated that 
a notice was posted for the naming of this road and no comments or objections 
were received.   Chairman Martin opened the public hearing and called for 
comments from the public; none were received.  She closed the public hearing 
and entertained a motion.  Upon motion by Supervisor Pastor, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Dawson, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 12-
06-02 naming a previously unnamed road as N. Byrne Road.  (A copy of the 
Resolution is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 

 3B.  Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution 
No. 12-06-04 renaming E. Horseshoe Lane as E. Spadafore Way.   

   



3 
 

 Mr. O’Driscoll stated that no comments or objections were received for 
renaming this street.  Chairman Martin opened the public hearing and called 
for comments from the public; none were received.  She closed the public 
hearing and entertained a motion.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Dawson, 
seconded by Supervisor Pastor, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 
12-06-04 renaming E. Horseshoe Lane as E. Spadafore Way.  (A copy of the 
Resolution is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 

 
 3C.  Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution 

No. 12-06-05 renaming a portion of N. McLellan Drive to E. Pecos Drive.  
(A copy of the Resolution is permanently on file in the Board of 
Supervisors’ Office.) 

 
 Mr. O’Driscoll stated that no comments or objections were received for 

renaming this street.  Chairman Martin opened the public hearing and called 
for comments from the public; none were received.  She closed the public 
hearing and entertained a motion.  Upon motion by Supervisor Pastor, 
seconded by Vice-Chairman Dawson, the Board unanimously adopted 
Resolution No. 12-06-05 renaming a portion of N. McLellan Drive to E. Pecos 
Drive.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently on file in the Board of 
Supervisors’ Office.) 
 

 3D.  Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution 
No. 12-06-06 renaming a section of N. McLellan Drive as S. Camino Way.   
 

 Mr. O’Driscoll stated that no comments or objections were received for 
renaming this street.  Chairman Martin opened the public hearing and called 
for comments from the public; none were received.  She closed the public 
hearing and entertained a motion.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Dawson, 
seconded by Supervisor Pastor, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 
12-06-06 renaming a section of N. McLellan Drive as S. Camino Way.  (A copy 
of the Resolution is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ 
Office.) 
 
ITEM 4 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 

 4A.  (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors, and 
convene as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors.)  
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Grantee Agreement No. GRA-
RC029-13-0533-01 that is between the San Carlos Apache Regional 
Partnership Council, Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health 
Board (First Things First) and the Gila County Library District, which is a 
"Community-Based Literacy Grant" in the amount of $36,663 for the 
period August 1, 2012, through June 30, 2013.   

 



4 
 

 Upon motion by Supervisor Pastor, seconded by Vice-Chairman Dawson, the 
Board adjourned as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convened as the 
Gila County Library District Board of Directors. 

 
 Jacque Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian, advised that the Gila 

County Library District (District) has a First Things First literacy grant in place 
with the Gila Regional Council that allows the District to provide family-based 
early-literacy training and a book a month to children from birth to age 5 
through the Imagination Library and the Dolly Parton Foundation.  This 
Agreement will allow the District to provide the same program for the San 
Carlos Region because First Things First divides up the State of Arizona 
differently than counties.  This Agreement will provide a similar program to 
those successful programs that have been held the past 2 years in the Globe, 
Payson, Pine, Strawberry and Hayden areas.  Chairman Martin inquired if 
services provided under this Agreement would extend to the Tonto Apache 
Reservation.  Ms. Griffin replied that the Tonto Reservation is included in the 
Gila Region, which provides these services for all of Gila County except San 
Carlos and a small portion of the White Mountain Apache Tribe.  Chairman 
Martin stated this is one of the finest programs for children and thanked Ms. 
Griffin for her efforts on behalf of children.  Upon motion by Supervisor Pastor, 
seconded by Vice-Chairman Dawson, the Board unanimously 
approved Grantee Agreement No. GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 that is between 
the San Carlos Apache Regional Partnership Council, Arizona Early Childhood 
Development and Health Board (First Things First) and the Gila County Library 
District, which is a "Community-Based Literacy Grant" in the amount of 
$36,663 for the period August 1, 2012, through June 30, 2013.  

 
 4B.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the tentative 2012-2013 

fiscal year budget for the Gila County Library District.  (Motion to adjourn 
as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors and reconvene as 
the Gila County Board of Supervisors.) 

 
 Ms. Griffin advised that the proposed Gila County Library District budget is 

located on page 18 of the Gila County Tentative Budget for 2012-2013.  The 
highlights for the Library District are that the tax rate has been budgeted to 
remain the same at 20 cents, which represents a 6.3% decrease in property tax 
revenue because of the decline in assessed valuation. The funding provided to 
the 8 community libraries within Gila County is for maintenance and 
operations and will remain the same.  The County’s support to the Library 
District for the non-library functions, which comes from the General Fund, has 
been decreased 5% and the total budget has increased, which reflects an 
increase in the Library District’s Contingency Reserve.  In 2008, at which time 
there was a downturn in the economy, the Board of Supervisors approved the 
Library District creating a contingency savings to help carry the Library District 
and the community libraries throughout the continued economic downturn.  
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Dawson, seconded by Supervisor Pastor, the 



5 
 

Board unanimously adopted the tentative 2012-2013 fiscal year budget for the 
Gila County Library District in the amount of $1,869,559.00. 
 

 Upon motion by Supervisor Pastor, seconded by Vice-Chairman Dawson, the 
Board adjourned as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors and 
reconvened as the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 

 
 4C.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the tentative 2012-2013 

fiscal year budget for Gila County.  
 
 Don McDaniel, County Manager, stated that this was the time to consider 

adoption of the 2012-2013 fiscal year tentative budget.  He also wanted to 
recognize the fact that this year there was fantastic cooperation from all of 
County leadership.  All of the elected officials and appointed department heads 
were very helpful in putting together this tentative budget.  He then began a 
PowerPoint presentation advising that the tentative budget is simply to set the 
upper expenditure limit for County spending for the coming year and approval 
of same will also authorize the publication of the budget and a public hearing 
will be set for July 17th to adopt the final budget.  Mr. McDaniel stated that 
before actually starting the budget process, the Board gave fairly specific 
directions with regard to what its expectations were for this year’s budget.   
First, there was to be no increase in the County property tax rate to property 
owners and taxpayers.  In addition to keeping the rate the same, the plan was 
to operate County functions within the resultant reduction in property tax 
revenue, which occurs when the rate stays the same, but property valuations 
go down.  The County, at the same time, would maintain public service levels, 
emphasizing law enforcement, criminal prosecution, judicial, roads, landfill 
and health and community services.  Finally, as required by law, the County 
would provide for a balanced budget.  Those were the assumptions when the 
administrative team discussed the budget with each division/department head 
and elected officials including working toward achieving a Countywide average 
5% reduction in General Fund expenditures.  It was noted that there would be 
no mandatory employee reductions; however, it was expected that each 
department would come forward with reduction plans of their own, which could 
include reorganization or doing things differently, delaying hiring or not hiring 
certain positions at all.  This allowed the County to eliminate the across-the-
board 120-day hiring freeze that was implemented about 3-4 years ago.  There 
would also be no new programs included in the budget unless there was 
corresponding, offsetting revenues.  In summarizing the tentative budget, Mr. 
McDaniel stated there would be no change in the General Fund tax rate; 
County property tax revenue has decreased about 6.5%; the General Fund 
budget has decreased by 5.1% and the overall budget increased by 0.4%, which 
is primarily attributed to capital improvement projects and special projects that 
had a very small increase.  He also advised that a significant part of the budget 
shows that the authorized position list has decreased by 24 FTE (full time 
employees) whereas last year it was decreased by 6 or 8 FTE.  Mr. McDaniel 
advised that what was not funded in the budget are no reclassifications of 



6 
 

positions and no permanent salary increases, either individually or across the 
board, because there were several requests for both.  He then reviewed the 
items that are included in the budget.  $275,000 is included to continue 
supporting the Gila County Community College for items such as utilities and 
minor maintenance.  Also budgeted is a one-time lump sum pay increase for 
County employees.  He clarified that there will not be an adjustment to pay 
grades or to percentages of pay rate, but there will be a one-time check 
payment that will be split into 2 parts—one part will be considered in 
December 2012 based upon a consumer price index increase and the other 
part would be considered in June 2013 that would be based upon employee 
performance appraisals that are a part of the County’s management process.  
Mr. McDaniel further explained that $500,000 has been budgeted to conduct a 
classification and compensation study to be started as soon as possible after 
the budget is adopted.   This study would commence around August or 
September 1st and it should be completed by March 31, 2013.  The 
classification and compensation study would be conducted by an outside 
consultant for the purpose of establishing internal equity and external parity 
and would be done on the basis of positions--not on the basis of people.   Mr. 
McDaniel emphasized that the study would be conducted with a tremendous 
amount of cooperation and coordination with the stakeholders that are 
involved, meaning all County elected officials and appointed department heads, 
who would have to get involved early in the process and for the duration of the 
study.  He added that there would have to be agreement and consensus along 
the way that the comparators used by the consultant were agreeable by all 
players and that all of the assumptions and guidelines that they would 
establish as a part of the study would be agreed to by all people.  Upon motion 
by Supervisor Pastor, seconded by Vice-Chairman Dawson, the Board 
unanimously approved the tentative FY 2012-2013 budget for Gila County in 
the amount of $96,468,130, authorized the publication of the summary 
budget, and set the public hearing for July 17, 2012, to adopt the final FY 
2012-2013 Gila County budget. 

 
 4D.  Information/Discussion/Action to ratify the Board of Supervisors' 

approval for the electronic submission of a Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime 
Task Force Grant Application by the Gila County Sheriff's Office to the 
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission in the amount of $376,410 and, if 
awarded, to be used during the period of July 1, 2012, through June 30, 
2012.   

 
 Sheriff John Armer stated that this is a request to apply for a grant renewal 

application to the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission for a grant that has 
been in existence since 1988 for the Gila County Narcotics Gang and Violent 
Crime Task Force in the amount of $376,410.  There is a required 25% cash 
match from the County in the amount of $94,102.  He noted that this 
application had to be submitted back in March and was done electronically.  
Vice-Chairman Dawson inquired if any of these funds are used for the San 
Carlos Apache Reservation.  Sheriff Armer replied that very little of these funds 



7 
 

are used for the San Carlos Apache Reservation.  He stated that the Sheriff’s 
Office has responded to requests from the San Carlos Police Department for 
assistance at various times and the Sheriff’s Office has provided for Task Force 
personnel to assist them in those very specific requests.  However, because of 
the opinion the Tribe has that it doesn’t want any proactive enforcement from 
outside of the Reservation, the Sheriff’s Office only responds to their specific 
requests.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Dawson, seconded by Supervisor 
Pastor, the Board unanimously ratified the Board of Supervisors' approval for 
the electronic submission of a Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Task Force Grant 
Application by the Gila County Sheriff's Office to the Arizona Criminal Justice 
Commission in the amount of $376,410 and, if awarded, to be used during the 
period of July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2012.   

 
 4E.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Third Amended 

Intergovernmental Agreement between Gila County and the Arizona 
Counties Insurance Pool which shall become effective upon the later of 
July 1, 2012, or the approval of all parties as provided in paragraph 22 of 
the IGA, and shall continue in force and effect for a period of ten years or 
until terminated in accordance with the terms and provisions of the 
Agreement and, further, may be renewed for an additional ten-year term 
by mutual agreement by part or all of the parties prior to the expiration of 
the original or any renewal term of the Agreement.   

 
 Mr. McDaniel called on John Nelson, Deputy County Manager/Clerk, to 

present this item.  Mr. Nelson stated this is the County’s third amendment to 
this Contract with the Arizona Counties Insurance Pool (ACIP).  This 
Amendment does several things.  Currently the County has 2 individual pools 
with ACIP—a Property Liability Casualty Insurance Pool and a Workmen’s 
Compensation Pool.  In this Amendment, it combines both pools and gives the 
County greater flexibility.  This Amendment will allow different entities to 
participate differently within the pool, which means that another governmental 
entity or another county could come in, take advantage of the pool’s 
administration, loss retentions and claims, but not be part of the risk pool; it 
would have its own separate risk pool.  It would take a majority of the ACIP 
Board to approve this, but it will now be allowed.  The Amendment also cleans 
up some of the language.   It will also give ACIP staff the authority to settle 
claims up to $50,000; the previous authority was $15,000.  Also included is 
the authorization allowing ACIP to expel a member based on a 2/3 vote of the 
members, which Mr. Nelson believes is a critical point when reviewing the 
County’s health insurance.  Mr. Nelson further explained that some counties 
participate on different levels than others and if there is a county that refuses 
to participate and continues to have heavy claims, it can be expelled by a 2/3 
vote of the members.  Supervisor Pastor inquired about the increased 
settlement of claims from $15,000 up to $50,000, and whether those claims 
will be reported to the ACIP members on a regular basis.  Mr. Nelson replied 
that these claims would come before the executive committee before being 
approved and then the entire board would be notified.  Chairman Martin 



8 
 

inquired if there will ever be additions of groups to the ACIP pool.  Mr. Nelson 
stated that one of the provisions that was put in the Amendment was that 
other groups could add to this pool differently--probably not accept a county 
into this pool as it is operating and also accept their risk, but there may be in 
the future a county that wants to take advantage of ACIP’s loss control 
mechanisms, administration, policies, and procedures, but maintain its own 
risk pool. That would require a majority vote of the pool members in order for 
that to happen.  Upon motion by Supervisor Pastor, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Dawson, the Board unanimously approved the Third Amended 
Intergovernmental Agreement between Gila County and the Arizona Counties 
Insurance Pool, which shall become effective upon the later of July 1, 2012, or 
the approval of all parties as provided in paragraph 22 of the IGA, and shall 
continue in force and effect for a period of ten years or until terminated in 
accordance with the terms and provisions of the Agreement and, further, may 
be renewed for an additional ten-year term by mutual agreement by part or all 
of the parties prior to the expiration of the original or any renewal term of the 
Agreement.    

  
 4F.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Gila County 

Population Health Policy Initiative Intergovernmental Agreement 
(Contract No. ADHS12-021335) between the Arizona Department of Health 
Services and Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services in 
the amount of $43,748 for the period April 1, 2012, through March 31, 
2015.   

 
 Mr. O’Driscoll stated that if the Board approves this Intergovernmental 

Agreement, the Gila County Health Department will use the funding in the 
amount of $43,748 to target strategies to address worksite wellness by 
partnering with local businesses as well as working with internal programs 
within Gila County worksites to implement programs to address chronic 
diseases such as obesity and heart disease.  Supervisor Pastor inquired if when 
referring to worksite wellness, will that be done in partnership with the Gila 
County Community College wellness center in setting up programs where 
employees could use the wellness center?  Mr. O’Driscoll stated that this 
particular funding will not allow partnering with wellness centers; however, 
there are additional grants available that are being reviewed that might offer 
that partnership.  This program would be more of a community outreach and 
going to the local businesses and strategizing with them to identify if there’s a 
need for some wellness programs in their sites as well as Gila County 
worksites.  The Department will also be working with Jacque Griffin and the 
County’s Wellness Program for internal Gila County worksites.  Upon motion 
by Vice-Chairman Dawson, seconded by Supervisor Pastor, the Board 
unanimously approved the Gila County Population Health Policy Initiative 
Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS12-021335) between the 
Arizona Department of Health Services and Gila County Division of Health and 
Emergency Services in the amount of $43,748 for the period April 1, 2012, 
through March 31, 2015.  



9 
 

 
 4G.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the revised Attachment A 

to Agreement No. JPA 12-056 between Arizona Department of 
Transportation and Gila County d/b/a Gila Employment and Special 
Training and authorize the match money total amount for the 
5310 Programs of $10,166.98, for the purchase of one lift-equipped 
cutaway van and one minivan without lift to allow the GEST Program to 
continue providing the authorized transportation needs to the individuals 
in Gila County.   

 
 David Fletcher, Community Services Division Director, stated that 

approximately a year ago, the Gila Employment and Special Training (GEST) 
Program Manager applied for a grant to the Arizona Department of 
Transportation (ADOT) for 3 vehicles.  Approximately 3 months ago the County 
was notified of the award of a pickup truck, which was approved by the Board, 
and now ADOT has notified the County that 2 more vehicles that were on their 
B list have also been approved.  Mr. Fletcher requested that the Board 
authorize this award and the matching GEST funds in the amount of 
$10,166.98.  Vice-Chairman Dawson inquired about the total cost of the 
vehicles, which Mr. Fletcher explained that the match was approximately 10% 
of the total cost.  Upon motion by Supervisor Pastor, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Dawson, the Board unanimously approved the revised Attachment A 
to Agreement No. JPA 12-056 between the Arizona Department of 
Transportation and Gila County d/b/a Gila Employment and Special Training 
and authorized the match money total amount for the 5310 Programs of 
$10,166.98, for the purchase of one lift-equipped cutaway van and one 
minivan without lift to allow the GEST Program to continue providing the 
authorized transportation needs to the individuals in Gila County.   

 
 4H.  Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for 

Invitation for Bids No. 033012-1 for MC-800 liquid asphalt; award to the 
lowest, responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's 
signature on the award contract for the winning bidder.  

 
 Joseph Heatherly, Finance Director, requested that the Board table this item so 

staff could review this proposal in more detail.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman 
Dawson, seconded by Supervisor Pastor, the Board unanimously tabled this 
item.   

 
 4I.  Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for 

Invitation for Bids No. 040112-1 for the purchase and delivery of bulk fuel 
and lubricants; award to the most responsive, responsible and qualified 
bidder; and authorize the Chairman’s signature on the award contract for 
the winning bidder.   

 
 Mr. Heatherly stated that the current contract for the supplier of bulk fuel and 

lubricants is expiring.  He advised that the County went out for bids in May 



10 
 

2012 and after extensive review as well as a review by the County Attorney’s 
Office, it was determined that one of the suppliers had not met all of the 
required material bid specifications in accordance with the Invitation for Bids 
in that they did not supply the Oil Price Information Services (OPIS) in their bid 
response.   He stated that based on that information, it is the opinion of the 
staff and the County Attorney’s Office that supplier be excluded from this bid 
process and that the contract be awarded to Western States Petroleum, Inc.  
Vice-Chairman Dawson stated, “In years gone by, I’ve tried to look at and figure 
out the fuel costs.  I wasn’t looking at just oil costs, but because we were 
issued County credit cards, I often wondered is it cheaper to go and buy 
gasoline at a gas station then it is to fill up at the (County’s) bulk stand?...If I’m 
just looking at the dollars that I’m spending as a taxpayer, how do we protect 
the best--and I understand that there is fluctuation in the market and that 
people are in business?  In studying this I also inquired as to whether the local 
business that would be the usual bidder on this has been visited with and 
given an opportunity to amend or improve their bid and that was not done (by 
MV Enterprises.)  So I think we did our diligence in trying to keep the business 
here and provide for that.”  Vice-Chairman Dawson advised that a written 
comment from the public was submitted to the Board.  Supervisor Pastor 
stated that he would prefer to hear any comments from the public before the 
Board continued its discussion.  Vice-Chairman Dawson then proceeded to 
read aloud the written comment received from David L. Cook, a resident of 
Globe, which was as follows:  “Please keep in mind that we should keep local 
jobs local.  When the County has an emergency, MV Enterprises is always 
there and willing and able to help.  Another outside-Gila-County business will 
not be and costs would be more.  MV (Enterprises) also serves local 
contractors.  Not awarding them the bid may increase those costs as well 
locally.”  Chairman Martin called for any other public comments; none were 
received.  She then inquired if the County has ever requested the OPIS before 
in its bids and when did the County start requesting same?  Mr. Heatherly 
advised that the existing contract with MV Enterprises, which was finalized in 
February 2009, has the same exact wording and includes the price for OPIS.  
Chairman Martin then inquired if the OPIS was used and it’s not something 
new?  Mr. Heatherly replied that the contract terms say OPIS pricing.  
Chairman Martin explained that she was not able to review the Board agenda 
until Saturday as she was out of the office due to issues pertaining to the forest 
fire, so she did not have a chance to ask some questions she has and would 
like some time to get answers before taking action on this item.  Chairman 
Martin stated, “It looks to me like the one that is being recommended is 
$54,000-$55,000 more and that we’re not taking the lowest bid.  And then if I 
add to that what I think are going to be delivery fees because it will allow them 
to deliver in 4,500-gallon increments and I think the only place that we can 
take that delivery is there at the new facility.  I think we’re going to be paying a 
delivery charge for every other delivery, which it looks like would be $16,000 to 
add to that $55,000 to start with.  I would like to know and it looks to me like 
by not buying local we’re going to wind up not getting another $54,000 or 
$55,000 in HURF (Highway User Revenue Funds) fees.  So when I look at this it 



11 
 

looks to me like we’re not picking a supplier that is $55,000 more than the next 
one and that it’s really going to cost us in the $125,000 range and I don’t even 
know if those figures are real.  I want some time.  I feel like I need another little 
bit of time before I’m willing to vote one way or the other on this issue because 
I’m not sure I’m looking at apples to apples.  I think I’m looking at apples and 
oranges in this and I haven’t done my homework; I’ll readily admit that and I’m 
just not ready.  I’m not ready today to take a position, but if you 2 are, down 
there, that’s different.  I’ll take your motion and I’ll take your second..., but I’ll 
be abstaining because it just looks to me like we’re not making the best 
decision for the taxpayer of Gila County.  I’m just not convinced of that.  I need 
some more time for you, Public Works or somebody to show me where this is 
the best decision.”  Supervisor Pastor stated, “When this item showed up on 
the agenda, I made it a point to get with the Finance Manager because I know 
the local vendor very well.  I’ve known him for several years in my associations 
with the mines and his business that he would do with us at the mines.  I was 
a little bit concerned and in talking with Finance, I’ve come to understand that 
the bid process hasn’t changed at all other than the fact that we have started a 
new process where we have the departments provide the technical information 
and the Finance Department looks at the financial information on the RFPs 
(Request for Proposals).  One of my concerns was I believe the spreadsheet that 
you might be referring to about the $55,000 difference in the final figures was 
explained to me that we’re not really comparing apples to apples.  We’re 
probably looking at apples and oranges on the spreadsheet because if you’ll 
notice one vendor does use the rack price per the RFP and the other vendor 
does not use the rack (price) and that’s where the problem is.  One has followed 
the letter of the RFP, which hasn’t changed from 2008, and I believe the other 
awards that the local vendor received, I believe were based on that proposal 
which he (MV Enterprises) did have a rack number that was listed in the last 
contract.  And I would assume they were in the other 2 amendments to the 
original RFP; is that correct?”  Mr. Heatherly stated that he was correct.  
Supervisor Pastor continued, “So it’s not a request for information that is 
something new and I’ve been assured that the County has tried to work with 
the supplier.  I was at the Chamber of Commerce dinner where this supplier 
(MV Enterprises) was honored as the ‘Businessman of the Year’ and I can 
understand the concern that they have because it is a very big contract.  We’ve 
talked to the County Attorney and I believe Bryan (Chambers-Chief Deputy 
County Attorney) has indicated to us that we run the risk either way of running 
into some legal concerns whether we award it to the company who followed the 
proposal versus the company who didn’t follow the proposal.  So it’s kind of a 
no win situation.  I really am concerned that the local vendor didn’t this time 
want to follow the process.  It’s not something that’s out of the ordinary when it 
comes to the fuel and lubes from what I can understand reading on the OPIS 
website.  It’s a pretty standard process that is used, so at this time I’m between 
you (Chairman Martin) and Vice-Chairman Dawson.  So whatever the choice of 
the Board is I will go for.  I believe we’ve made every effort to provide the 
opportunity for both vendors to follow the RFP and I think we’re at that point 
where we need to make a decision.  Vice-Chairman Dawson stated, “I would 



12 
 

add and I understand that you were busy with the fire and things, but we’ve 
gone out to bid.  I’ve been assured that every effort was made to make certain 
that there was opportunity for this to be corrected or improved upon and I just 
feel that the bid is here and if we make a habit of saying ‘Well gee, my friend,’ 
and I think we all appreciate this family business and what they’ve done, but 
requirements are requirements and I don’t understand them not meeting those 
requirements.”  Chairman Martin stated, “No, me either and I would like to 
visit with them and see if they understood.  I mean I haven’t talked to anybody 
about did we go the extra mile to make sure that they understood and could 
resubmit?  The thing that I appreciate, is that extra $55,000 that we’re not 
going to get in HURF money if we go out of County.  It’s not just giving local 
business, although it is that too.  As you know I was all for us having where 
they (the state legislature) passed the bill (inaudible) and the governor in her 
infinite wisdom vetoed being able to give the locals business, you know to have 
an advantage.  I think that’s really important because I think the service that 
we get from locals exceeds in every way.  I can’t image in the middle of the 
winter when we need fuel in Young--I know from the Young end that they’ll call 
and say we’re out of fuel and this outfit will have to chain up to take us fuel up 
there.  I don’t know what’s going to happen otherwise and I don’t know what 
they are going to do when that doesn’t happen.  As I said I’ve come into this 
conversation late.  I’m just not happy making a--I’m going to abstain at this 
stage of the game.  The 2 of you I think have had more time to visit with our 
folks with the management and I haven’t.  And if I could wave a magic wand we 
would wait another week or 2 and see if, in fact, there was some kind of 
miscommunication with the local vendor that I don’t know about.  I just don’t 
feel comfortable right now making that decision.”  Vice-Chairman Dawson 
stated, “I appreciate your comments and with that I will make a motion that we 
accept the bid for the purchase and delivery of bulk fuel and lubricants 
awarding that to Western States Petroleum, Inc. as the qualified bidder and 
authorize the Chairman’s signature on the award contract for their bid.”  
Supervisor Pastor stated, “I would second that motion, but before we take a 
vote I would like a little bit more discussion on the issue.”  He then asked June 
Ava Florescue, Deputy County Attorney, if she wished to speak.  Ms. Florescue 
stated, “I have to say that I have not reviewed the contract.  Mr. Chambers did 
and he is not available.  I’ve been told that in reviewing the bid proposals that 
there was in fact, not complete compliance by the local vendor.”  She stated 
that if the Chairman felt she needed more time to review this item, it wouldn’t 
be inappropriate to table this for a week or 2 weeks as opposed to her 
(Chairman Martin) abstaining from the vote.  Supervisor Pastor inquired, “What 
kind of risk do we run into with the bidder who followed the contract?  Do we 
run into any risk?”  Ms. Florescue replied, “I don’t think you’ll run into risk if 
you table the decision.  There certainly could be a challenge by the bidder who 
did comply with the proposal if it doesn’t get awarded to them.  So you get a 
challenge from either side depending on the decision that you make.  You open 
yourself up to challenges from either side.”  Vice-Chairman Dawson stated, “My 
comment is the low bidder did not meet the qualifications. This person was 
contacted numerous times is my understanding and I’ve been assured of that 



13 
 

by those in charge.   And I just feel like, yes we will hear a lot and I’m sure we’ll 
hear it in a political year, but the fact is they did not meet the requirements 
and the fact is in years gone by I could not find out what the price was when 
we were asking.” Vice-Chairman Dawson then advised that David Cook, a 
member of the public, wished to comment.  Mr. Cook, a resident of Globe, 
stated, “One thing I want to make clear on the comments I made earlier...this 
company, not only does it do these things, but when you get down to the facts 
of this is that company supplies most fuel for local contractors.  It is the only 
place in this County in the Globe-Miami area that I know where we can get red 
fuel for our equipment and stuff and tractors and agricultural equipment.  
What I’m worried about is that when you are in business, and I know, Shirley, 
that you’ve been in business before, is that these contracts are the salt and 
bread and butter of how businesses stay in business.  When I watch those 
Western (States Petroleum) trucks drive up through Gonzales Pass when I’m 
hauling hay and I realize that those people live and work and pay taxes in 
another county, they’re just trucking the fuel up here.  What’s going to happen 
is if you give this contract to somebody who doesn’t live here and has no stake 
in our County, number one, they (MV Enterprises) are the lowest bidder and 
that’s a fact.  The paperwork may not be all complete as you wish for that 
national pricing standard list, but the fact is, they are the lowest bidder and I 
think that’s something you have to take into consideration.  What we haven’t 
heard is how many bidders there are. Is there 1 bidder?  Have we rejected the 
other bidder now and said they did not comply?  So can you take a bid of one 
bidder?  How come you can’t take more information like you did on the asphalt 
and table this and bring that back?  (To Vice-Chairman Dawson) Now me and 
you can agree on a lot of things and you know that, but what I heard was you 
have been assured by someone else.  (To Supervisor Pastor) What I’ve heard 
was you’ve been assured at a dinner when they were business of the year.  So 
my question is, call them up yourself.  You know who they are.  Go there and 
visit with them.  Is it because they didn’t have 1 piece of paper that’s in the 
contract, but they are in fact the lowest bidder?  And if you are looking out for 
the best interest of the County and the taxpaying citizens, which I hope you all 
are, then I would think it should be tabled and move on because if you’re going 
to reject them then there’s just one bidder, am I correct?”  Vice-Chairman 
Dawson responded by stating, “I didn’t take one comment and I don’t make a 
habit when I know that a local car dealership is not the low dealer of calling 
them up and saying ‘change your bid.’  I believe that our administration 
worked hard to try to help get the legal requirements into this bid met and 
asked for them to be met and they were not.”  Chairman Martin stated, “I 
would like to once again have you consider letting me table this, but I have a 
motion and a second on the floor.  Are you ready for me to call for the question 
on it?”  Supervisor Pastor inquired, “If the Board tables this where does that 
put us as far as awarding the contract?  When would we do that?”  Vice-
Chairman Dawson stated, “There is someone sitting here (Louis Vuksanovich) 
beside David Cook, who is with MV Enterprises and has not commented.  This 
then becomes, ‘Do we do bidding in the back room and manipulating?’  I’m 
sorry, but I understand Tommie why you are asking, but I feel like they’ve had 



14 
 

plenty of opportunity to make the corrections necessary to come into 
compliance.  And I agree Young often needs--and I know Mitch (Vucksanovich 
of MV Enterprises) has made trips up there in the winter time.  Obviously Mr. 
Cook has followed the trucks from Western States when they come up.  That’s 
their responsibility to carry out.  My motion stands.”  Chairman Martin stated, 
“With a motion and second on the floor do we need any other discussion?  No 
comments were received.  She then called for the vote.  Vice-Chairman Dawson 
and Supervisor Pastor voted “aye” and Chairman Martin abstained from voting.  
The motion passed with a 2-0 vote with 1 abstention.   
 
ITEM 5 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: 
 

 5A.  Approval of Amendment No. 1 to a Funding Agreement (Contract No. 
174-10) between the Arizona Department of Housing and the Gila County 
Division of Community Services, Housing Services, extending the 
contract end date from May 1, 2012, to July 1, 2012.  
 

 5B.  Approval of Amendment No. 4 to an Intergovernmental Agreement 
(Contract No. DE111073001) between the Arizona Department of 
Economic Security and the Gila County Division of Community Services, 
Community Action Program, whereby the Arizona Department of 
Economic Security will provide cumulative reimbursement ceiling funding 
in the amount of $1,735,780.13 to be used to provide case management 
and community services to eligible citizens residing in Gila County for the 
period from July 1, 2010, through June 30, 2015.  
 

 5C.  Authorization of the Chairman's signature on an Agreement (Contract 
No. C353) between Gila County and the National Network of Public Health 
Institutes for the acceptance of a $5,000 grant from the Robert Wood 
Johnson Foundation, which will be utilized by the Division of Health and 
Emergency Services to complete a quality improvement project for the 
period April 1, 2012, through December 31, 2012. 
 

 5D.  Approval of Grantee Agreement No. GRA-STATE-13-0502-01 between 
the Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board (First Things 
First) and the Gila County Health Department in the amount of $16,920 
for the period July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2013.  
 

 5E.  Approval of Amendment No. 6 to an Intergovernmental Agreement 
(Contract No. HG854565) between Gila County and the Arizona 
Department of Health Services in the amount of $12,000 to provide 
tuberculosis services for the period July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2013.  
 

 5F.  Approval of Extension of the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) 
between Yavapai County and Gila County for Restoration to Competency 
Services for one year from July 1, 2012, to June 30, 2013, under the 



15 
 

same terms and conditions as set forth in the original IGA as agreed upon 
by both parties.  

 
 5G.  Approval of Extension of Delegation Agreement No. 06-0020 between 

Gila County Community Development Division, Gila County Health 
Division, and the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) to 
delegate functions of ADEQ statutes, rules and policies for water quality 
and solid waste management functions and duties.  Agreement previously 
extended until June 30, 2012, and it has been extended to June 30, 2013, 
or the effective date of the new agreement, whatever occurs first.   
  

 5H.  Approval to adopt Resolution No. 12-06-03 authorizing Gila County 
Probation Department's participation in the FY 2012-2013 Family 
Counseling Program through the Arizona Supreme Court, Administrative 
Office of the Courts, Juvenile Justice Services Division, and certifying 
that a matching fund requirement of $2,305 for the Program will be 
provided by the County. (A copy of the Resolution is permanently on file in 
the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 

 5I.   Approval of an Application for Extension of Premises/Patio 
Permit submitted by Gary Werlinger to temporarily extend the premises 
where liquor is permitted to be served at the Landmark at the Creek for 
the period June 29, 2012, through July 8, 2012, for special events.  
 

 5J.  Approval of an Agreement between Gila County and the Arizona 
Division of Forestry for the disbursement of $15,000 to Gila County in 
order to proceed with three environmental projects (that are common to 
and which impact economic development) in Apache, Gila, Graham, 
Greenlee and Navajo counties which, were identified by the 
Environmental Economic Communities Organization on behalf of the 
counties and submitted to the State Forester who has approved them.  

 
 5K.  Approval of the April 2012 monthly activity report submitted by the 

Globe Regional Justice of the Peace. 
 
 5L.  Approval of the May 2012 monthly activity report submitted by the 

Globe Regional Justice of the Peace. 
 
 5M.  Approval of the May 2012 monthly activity report submitted by the 

Payson Regional Constable's Office. 
 
 5N.  Approval of the May 22, 2012, and June 5, 2012, BOS regular 

meeting minutes; and the June 19, 2012, BOS emergency session meeting 
minutes. 

 
 5O.  Acknowledgment  of contracts under $50,000 which have been 

approved by the County Manager for the weeks of May 19, 2012, to May 



16 
 

25, 2012; May 26, 2012, to June 1, 2012; and June 2, 2012, to June 8, 
2012.  

 
Copies of the contract reports are on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office. 
 
5P.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of June 
12, 2012, June 19, 2012, and June 26, 2012. 

 
 June 12, 2012 
 

$2,250,717.51 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 246195 
through 246380. 
 
June 19, 2012 
 
$632,488.44 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 246381 
through 246497.   
 
June 26, 2012 
 
$1,704,727.10 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 246498 
through 246671.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)  
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Pastor, seconded by Vice-Chairman Dawson, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action items 5A through 5P. 
 
Item 6 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC: Call to the Public is held for public benefit 
to allow individuals to address issue(s) within the Board’s jurisdiction. 
Board members may not discuss items that are not specifically identified 
on the agenda.  Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-
431.01(G), action taken as a result of public comment will be limited to 
directing staff to study the matter, responding to criticism, or scheduling 
the matter for further discussion and decision at a future date.  
 
There were no requests to speak from the public. 

    
Item 7 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief 
Administrator may present a brief summary of current events. No action 
may be taken on issues presented. 
 
Each Board member presented information on current events.   
 
 
 



17 
 

There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Martin adjourned the meeting at 12:03 p.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Tommie C. Martin, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 
 



   

ARF-1363       4- Y             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Reporting
Period:

Human Resources reports for the weeks of 7/3/12, 7/10/12, 7/17/12,
7/24/12 and 7/31/12.

Submitted For: Berthan DeNero Submitted By: Candy Bell,
Human
Resources &
Library
Services
Assistant,
Human
Resources

Information
Subject
Human Resources reports for the weeks of July 3, 2012, July 10, 2012, July 17, 2012,
July 24, 2012 and July 31, 2012.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of July 3, 2012, July 10, 2012,
July 17, 2012, July 24, 2012 and July 31, 2012.

Attachments
July Human Resources Summary Report
7/3/12 Human Resources Agenda
7/10/12 Human Resources Agenda
7/17/12 Human Resources Agenda
7/24/12 Human Resources Agenda
7/31/12 Human Resources Agenda



Summary Year To Date Jan‐12 Feb‐12 Mar‐12 Apr‐12 May‐12 Jun‐12 Jul‐12

Human Resources Action Items

DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE 94 7 13 14 13 15 15 17

HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE 55 7 9 14 3 8 4 10

TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE 20 3 2 1 1 2 10 1

VOLUNTEERS TO COUNTY SERVICE 87 0 0 0 0 7 80 0

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS 25 1 3 1 6 3 1 10

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD 29 3 4 6 5 4 3 4

POSITION REVIEW  57 11 13 5 7 6 10 5

REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST 67 6 10 7 2 7 20 15

  Total Trans 434 38 54 48 37 52 143 62



Aug‐12 Sep‐12 Oct‐12 Nov‐12 Dec‐12



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JULY 3, 2012 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Robert Hernandez – Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 05/18/12 – Constituent II Fund – 
DOH 01/12/12 – Services no longer needed 

2. Victoria Wampole – County Attorney – Child Support Case Manager – 06/29/12 – IV D 
Incentive/SSRE Fund – DOH 04/14/08 – Resignation  

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

3. Jennifer Alvarez – Finance – Buyer – 07/09/12 – General Fund – Replacing Cassandra Villegas 
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

4. Antonella Campos – Public Fiduciary – From Administrative Clerk – To Public Fiduciary Assistant – 
07/05/12 – General Fund – Replacing Jo Anna McDaniel 

5. Cassandra Villegas – Finance – From Finance and Purchasing Specialist – To Procurement 
Administrator – 07/02/12 – General Fund 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

6. Amber Martinez – Health & Emergency Services – Animal Regulations Enforcement Officer – 06/12/12 
– Rabies Control Fund 

 
REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST: 
 

7. County Attorney – Child Support Case Manager – Position vacated by Victoria Wampole 
8. Public Fiduciary – Administrative Assistant – Position vacated by Antonella Campos 

 
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

9. Candace Jorgenson – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatch Supervisor – 06/30/12 – General Fund -  DOH 
04/10/06 – Resignation  

10. Stephanie Saiz – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 07/02/12 – General Fund – DOH 04/30/12 – 
Resignation  

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JULY 10, 2012 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. David Caddell – Community Services – GEST Program Manager – 06/25/12 – GEST Fund –DOH 
11/29/04 – Resigned  

2. Myron Mayr – Community Services – Temporary Davis Bacon Specialist – 07/02/12 – Housing Fund – 
DOH 09/09/09 – Services no longer needed 

3. Thomas Tanner – Public Works Consolidated Roads – Road Maintenance/Equipment Operator – 
06/28/12 – Public Works Fund – DOH 03/26/07 – Resigned 

4. Francis Cline Jr. – Public Works Engineering – Temporary Engineering Technician – 06/27/12 – Public 
Works Fund – DOH 06/18/12 – Services no longer needed 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

5. Amanda Robles – Community Services – Community Services Worker – 07/02/12 – GEST Fund 
6. Anita Yanora – Community Services – Community Services Worker – 07/02/12 – GEST Fund 
7. Nancy Holland – Community Services – Community Services Worker 07/02/12 – GEST Fund 
8. Angela Anthony – Community Services – Community Services Worker – 07/02/12 – GEST Fund 
9. Valerie Kaufmann – Community Services – Community Services Worker – 07/02/12 – GEST Fund 
10. Samantha Jerome – Health and Emergency Services – Staff Nutritionist – 07/16/12 – WIC Fund 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

11. Francis Cline Jr. – Public Works Engineering – Temporary Engineering Technician – 06/18/12 – Public 
Works Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

12. Anna Sanchez – Public Works Consolidated Roads – From Road Maintenance/Equipment Operator – 
To Administrative Assistant – 07/12/12 – Public Works Fund – Replacing Cecilia Wentz  

 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

13. Judy Alexander – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 07/2/12 – General Fund – Change from 
regular full time status to temporary part time status 

14. Nancy Mach – Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Assistant – 07/01/12 – Change in 
position fund codes and hours worked 

 
REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST: 
 

15. County Attorney – Chief Detective – Position vacated by Ernie Meeske 
16. Community Services – GEST Program Manager – Position vacated by David Caddell 

 
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 

 
REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST: 
 

17. Sheriff’s Office – Public Health Nurse – Position vacated by Anjanette Bolinger 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JULY 17, 2012 

 
REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST: 
 

1. County Attorney – Deputy County Attorney Senior – Position vacated by Kyle Mann 
 

SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

2. Linda Allinson –Sheriff’s Office – Administrative Clerk – 06/28/12 – General Fund – DOH 08/16/10 – 
Resignation 

3. Misty Cisneros – Sheriff’s Office – Assistant Chief Administrative Officer – 06/29/12 – General Fund – 
DOH 02/02/09 – Position elimination  

4. Craig Smith – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff (Sgt.) – 06/30/12 – General Fund – DOH 05/19/98 – 
Resignation 

5. Linda Carnahan – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/31/12 – General Fund – DOH 05/04/98 – 
Retirement  

 
REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST: 
 

6. Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatch Supervisor – Position vacated by Candice Jorgenson 
7. Sheriff’s Office – Administrative Clerk – Position vacated by Linda Allinson 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JULY 24, 2012 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Debbie Carl – Probation – Office Supervisor – 07/13/12 – General Fund – DOH 03/24/08 – Resignation 
2. Celina Corona – Probation – Surveillance Officer – 07/19/12 – General Fund/Adult Probation Service 

Fees – DOH 09/04/01 - Resignation 
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

3. Danielle Toumberlin – Child Support - From Administrative Clerk – To Case Manager – 07/26/12 – 
From General Fund - To IV-D Incentive/SSRE Fund  
 

REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST: 
 

4. Public Works Auto/Equipment Maintenance – Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic – Position vacated by 
Kevin Moran 

5. Public Works Engineering – Engineering Technician Sr. – Position vacated by Gary Tamietti 
6. Recorder – Voter Outreach Assistant – Position vacated by Julie Anderson 

 
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

7. Diana Ortiz – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 06/30/12 – General Fund – DOH 04/06/87 – 
Retirement  

 
OFFICE TRANSFERS: 
 

8. Christopher Pena – Sheriff’s Office - From Deputy Sheriff – To Deputy Sheriff/Task Force Agent – 
07/30/12 – From General Fund – To Drug Gang Violent Crime Control Fund 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JULY 31, 2012 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 

 
1. Anthony Martinez – School Superintendent – Accounting Clerk – 07/23/12 – General Fund – DOH 

06/12/06 – Resignation 
 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

2. Carolyn Cummings – Finance – Accountant Senior – 07/30/12 – General Fund – Replacing Nicholas 
Montague 

3. Marc Stanley – County Attorney – Law Clerk – 08/09/12 – General Fund – Replacing Kyle Mann 
4. Patty Comstock – Public Fiduciary – Administrative Clerk - 08/02/12  – General Fund – Replacing 

Antonella Campos 
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

5. Rebecca Baeza – Globe Regional Justice Court – From Justice Court Clerk Senior – To Justice Court 
Lead – 07/30/12 – General Fund – Replacing Delia Benavidez 

6. Leigh Ann Kenton – From Juvenile Detention – To Globe Regional Justice Court – From Juvenile 
Detention Officer – To Justice Court Clerk Associate – 07/30/12 – General Fund – Replacing Rita Lewis 

7. Samson Arney – Public Works Recycling and Landfill Management – From Solid Waste Operations 
Worker Senior – To Solid Waste Operations Supervisor – 08/02/12 – Solid Waste Fund – Replacing 
Pete Ortega 

8. Debra Overholt – From Finance – To County Attorney – From Payroll Specialist – To Legal Secretary – 
07/23/12 – From General Fund – To Diversion Program CA Fund – Replacing Debra Overholt 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

9. Nicole Kavanagh – Public Works Facility and Land Management – Administrative Clerk Specialist – 
07/23/12 – Facilities Management Fund 

10. Erin Elizabeth Maupin – County Attorney – Deputy County Attorney – 06/26/12 – Drug Prosecution 
Grant Fund 

 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

11. Kimberly Rust – Globe Regional Constable – Constable Clerk – From part time regular status – To full 
time regular status – 07/23/12 – General Fund 

12. Bertina Pratt- Public Works Facilities – Custodial Assistant – 07/23/12 – Change in position fund codes 
13. Mary Mendez – Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk Senior – 07/30/12 – Change in 

position control number 
 
REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST: 
 

14. Public Works Recycling and Landfill Management – Solid Waste Operation Worker Senior – Position 
vacated by Samson Arney  

15. Finance – Procurement Coordinator  
16. School Superintendent – Administrative Assistant – Position vacated by Julia Vasquez 
17. School Superintendent – Accounting Clerk – Position vacated by Anthony Martinez 

 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JULY 31, 2012 
PAGE 2 

SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

18. Nash Marlow – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/12/12 – General Fund – DOH 10/10/11 - 
Failure to complete probationary period 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

19. Kristine Feezor – Sheriff’s Office – From Administrative Clerk part time – To Administrative Clerk 
Senior – 07/30/12 – General Fund – Replacing Michelle Keegan 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

20. Melissa Kennedy – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 07/05/12 – General Fund  
 



   

ARF-1370       4- Z             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/07/2012  

Reporting
Period:

Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks
Ending 7-6-12, 7-13-12, and 7-20-12

Submitted For: Joseph Heatherly Submitted By: Valrie
Bejarano,
Contracts
Support
Specialist,
Finance
Department

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending 7-6-12,
7-13-12 and 7-20-12

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved by the County
Manager for the weeks of June 30, 2012, to July 6, 2012, July 7, 2012, to July 13, 2012,
and July 14, 2012 to July 20, 2012.

Attachments
County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50K for Weeks Ending 7-6-12, 7-13-12, &
7-20-12
Canyon State Wireless Agreement
Hunt Materials Agreement 062112
Arizona Water Co. Agreement 2012-1-AWC
JCG Technologies Agreement
Arizona Commercial Plumbing Agreement 060712
Arizona Public Service Extranet Agreement
Arizona Public Service Line Extension Agreement WFNCOMSVC
Thomas Reprographics Agreement
Buck Mountain Enterprises Agreement 060612



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
 
 
June 30, 2012, to July 6, 2012 

 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
- 

Canyon State Wireless 

 
Radio Communications 
Maintenance Agreement  

 
$5,505.00 

 
6-1-12 to 5-31-13 

 
7-3-12 

 
Expires 

 
Radio maintenance services and repair for the 
Gila County Emergency Management Dept. for 12 
months. 

 
062112 

Hunt Materials 

 
Cherry Creek Emergency Bridge 
Cleanout 

 
$7,190.00 

 
7-4-12 to 7-15-12 

 
7-3-12 

 
Renewable for 1 

year term 

 
Debris & vegetation cleanout above and below the 
Cherry Creek Bridge for unobstructed water flow. 

 
2012-1-AWC 

Arizona Water Co. 

 
Utility Relocation & 
Reimbursement Agreement 

 
$13,208.00 

 
Until Project 
Completion 

 
7-3-12 

 
Expires 

 
Relocation of water utilities for the road 
reconstruction project on Russell Rd., north of 
Hope Lane. 

 
 
 
 
July 7, 2012, to July 13, 2012 

 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
- 

JCG Technologies 

 
Bench Conference System 
Superior Court, Amendment #1 

 
$1,520.80 

 
5-1-12 to 7-31-12 

 
7-11-12 

 

 
Expires 

 
Amendment to agreement for unplanned time 
and materials installation for Payson Court. 

 
060712 

AZ Commercial Plumbing 

 
Sewer Line Replacement Payson 
Health Dept. Amendment #1 

 
$658.32 

 
7-1-12 to 7-15-12 

 
7-11-12 

 
Expires 

 
Amendment to agreement to add extra excavation 
due to electrical water and sewer in same ditch. 

 
- 

Arizona Public Service 

 
APS Agency Guarantee Extranet 
Agreement 

 
0 

 
7-1-12 to 6-30-12 

 
7-11-12 

 
Renewable for 1 

year term 

 
Online billing assistance with APS for CAP low 
income clients. 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 
July 14, 2012, to July 20, 2012 

 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
WFNCOMSVC 

Arizona Public Service 

 
Line Extension Agreement 

 
$228.50 

 
Until Complete 

 
7-18-12 

 
Expires 

 
APS to extend the electrical line as part of the 
Payson S.O. Communications electrical upgrade. 

 
- 

Thomas Reprographics, 
Inc 

 
OCE Plotwave 300 Printer 
Maintenance Agreement 

 
$1,680.00 

 
9-1-12 to 8-31-13 

 
7-18-12 

 
Renewable for 1 

year term 

 
Renewal of the maintenance agreement for the 
Public Works & Community Development OCE 
Plotwave printer. 

 
060612 

Buck Mountain 
Enterprises, Inc. 

 
Sidewalk & ADA Parking 
Replacement  Amendment #1 

 
$754.17 

 
6-6-12 to 7-31-12 

 
7-20-12 

 
Expires 

 
Extra work needed to complete the sidewalk 
replacement for the Payson Health Dept. 
 

 
 
 


















































































































































































































































































































	Agenda
	Item2.A.  Adoption of Resolution No. 12-08-01 Regarding P&Z Dept Case No. CUP-12-02--Stephanie Marr
	ATT.Public Hearing Notice
	ATT.Staff Report
	ATT.Resolution and Exhibit
	Item2.B.  Adoption of Resolution No. 12-08-02  Re_ P&Z Dept Case No. CUP-12-01 
	ATT.Resolution No. 12-08-02 and Exhibit
	Item3.A.  Adoption of Proclamation No. 12-06 Proclaiming August 1-31, 2012 As Child Support Awareness Month
	ATT.2012 Child Support Awareness Proclamation No. 12-06
	ATT.Governor's Proclamation
	Item3.B.  Library Service Agreements with Hayden, Isabelle Hunt (Pine), Miami, Payson, Tonto Basin and Young Libraries.
	ATT.Hayden Library Service Agreement
	ATT.Isabelle Hunt Memorial Library Service Agreement 
	ATT.Miami Library Service Agreement
	ATT.Payson Library Service Agreement
	ATT.Tonto Basin Library Service Agreement
	ATT.IGA Legal Explanation
	ATT.Non-IGA Legal Explanation
	Item3.C.  FY2013 Intergovernmental Agreement (A.G.Contract No. P001-2012-001854) with the Department of Public Safety
	ATT.IGA DCESP
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item3.D.  Request to Advertise Invitation for Bids No. 032712-1 for the Russell Road Reconstruction Project
	ATT.Request to Advertise Bid 032712-1 Russell Road Reconstruction
	ATT.Invitation for Bids No. 032712-1 Russel Road Reconstruction
	Item3.E.  Request to Post Public Notice of On-line Auction of Surplus Material Quarterly for 1 Year
	ATT.Public Notice of On-line Surplus Auction 
	Item4.A.  Annual Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification Report for the Sheriff's Office
	ATT.Equitable Sharing Agreement Report
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.B.  Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Drug, Gang and Violent Crime Control Grant Agreement for FY 2013 Cycle 26 Award (ACJC_ DC-13-036)
	ATT.DGVCC Grant Agreement for FY2013
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.C.  Amendment No. 3 to Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. DE101056001) with Arizona Department of Economic Security
	Item4.D.  Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. A11PC00100 with the Bureau of Indian Affairs
	ATT.Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. A11PC00100
	ATT.Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. A11PC00100
	ATT.Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. A11PC00100
	ATT.Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. A11PC00100
	ATT.BIA Contract No. A11PC00100
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.E.  Amendment No. 3 to Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. HG060003) with Arizona Department of Health Services
	ATT.Original IGA No. HG060003
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.F.  OEP Contract No. EW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2 Weatherization Low Income Assistance Agreement 
	ATT.OEP Contract No. EW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.G.  Amendment No. 5 to Contract No. DE111073001 with Arizona Department of Economic Security
	ATT.Amendment No. 5 to Contract DE111073001 AZ Dept. of Eonomic Security
	ATT.Amendment No. 4 to Contract DE111073001 AZ Dept. of Economic Security
	ATT.Amendment No. 3 to Contract DE111073001 AZ Dept. of Economic Security
	ATT.Amendment No. 2 to Contract De111073001 AZ Dept. of Economic Security
	ATT.Amendment No. 1 to Contract DE111073001 AZ Dept. of Economic Security
	ATT.Original Contract DE111073001 AZ Dept. of Economic Security
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.H.  IGA for Election Services with Pine Creek Canyon DWID and Rim Trail DWID
	ATT.IGA with Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement District
	ATT.IGA with Pine Creek Canyon Domestic Water Improvement District
	ATT.Menu of Services
	Sheet1

	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.I.  Order to Cancel Precinct Committeeman Elections
	ATT.Order to Cancel PC Elections
	ATT.Attachment A - PC Listing
	Sheet1

	Item4.J.  IGA for Election Services with Whispering Pines Domestic Water Improvement District
	ATT.IGA with Whispering Pines Domestic Water Improvement District
	ATT.Menu of Services
	Sheet1

	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.K.  IGA for Election Services with Gila County School Superintendent
	ATT.IGA with Gila County School Superintendent
	ATT.Menu of Services
	Sheet1

	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.L.  IGA for Election Services with Pine-Strawberry Water Improvement District
	ATT.IGA with Pine-Strawberry Water Improvement District
	ATT.Menu of Services
	Sheet1

	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.M.  Beaver Valley Fire District Governing  Board Appointment
	Item4.N.  Northern Gila County Sanitary District Governing Board Appointment
	Item4.O.  Beaver Valley Domestic Water Improvement District Governing Board Resignation and Appointment
	Item4.P.  Approve appointment of Charles Adornetto as Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore for Payson and Globe Regional Justice Courts
	ATT.BOS APPROVAL - Charles Adornetto 
	ATT.Admin. Order - Adornetto
	ATT.BOS Memo - Adornetto
	Item4.Q.  Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board Updated and Corrected Membership List
	ATT.GC Community Action Program Advisory Board Membership List
	ATT.GC Community Action Program Advisory Board Bylaws
	ARTICLE I  INTRODUCTION
	Section I  Name
	Section II  Description

	ARTICLE II  Statement Of Purpose
	ARTICLE III  Advisory Board
	Section I  Membership & Tripartite Sectors
	Section II  Composition
	Section III  Petition Procedure: 
	Section IV  Residence
	Section V  Terms of Office
	Section VI  Vacancies
	Section VII  Removal of Officers
	Section VIII  Meetings
	Section IX  Powers and Duties 
	Section X  Conflict of Interest 

	ARTICLE IV  OFFICERS
	Section I  Officers of the Board
	Section II  Election of Officers
	Section III  Duties of Officers

	ARTICLE V  COMMITTEES
	Section I  General Provisions
	Section II  Appointment
	Section III  Membership and Officers
	Section IV  Standing Committee
	Section V  Term of Office
	Section VI  Committee Quorum
	Section VII  Committee Voting

	ARTICLE VI  AMENDMENT
	ARTICLE VII  DISSOLUTION
	ARTICLE VIII PUBLIC ACCESS TO GRANTEE INFORMATION
	ARTICLE IX  FISCAL YEAR AND ANNUAL BUDGET

	Item4.R.  Payson Rodeo Committe request to use Payson Court Complex grounds for a Chili Cook Off on September 15, 2012
	Item4.S.  Payson Regional Constable's Monthly Report for June 2012
	ATT.Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report June 2012
	Item4.T.  Payson Regional Constable's Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2011-2012
	Item4.U.  Globe Regional Justice Court Monthly Report for June 2012
	ATT.Globe Regional Justice Court Montly Report for 06_12
	Item4.V.  Payson Regional Justice of the Peace Monthly Report for June 2012
	ATT.Payson Justice of the Peace Monthly Report for June 2012
	PAYSON JP June 12.pdf
	JP 0404 june 2012

	Item4.W.  Recorder's June 2011 Monthly Report
	ATT.Recorder's June 2011 Monthly Report
	Item4.X.  June 26, 2012, BOS Meeting Minutes
	ATT.BOS 06-26-2012 Meeting Minutes
	Item4.Y.  Human Resources reports for the weeks of 7_3_12, 7_10_12, 7_17_12, 7_24_12 and 7_31_12.
	ATT.July Human Resources Summary Report
	ATT.7_3_12 Human Resources Agenda
	ATT.7_10_12 Human Resources Agenda
	ATT.7_17_12 Human Resources Agenda
	ATT.7_24_12 Human Resources Agenda
	ATT.7_31_12 Human Resources Agenda
	Item4.Z.  Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending 7-6-12, 7-13-12 and 7-20-12
	ATT.County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50K for Weeks Ending 7-6-12, 7-13-12, and 7-20-12
	ATT.Canyon State Wireless Agreement
	ATT.Arizona Commercial Plumbing Agreement 060712
	ATT.Arizona Public Service Line Extension Agreement WFNCOMSVC
	ATT.Thomas Reprographics Agreement
	ATT.Buck Mountain Enterprises Agreement 060612

